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ABOUT PAVNA GROUP

Your Company was incorporated as Pavna Locks Private Limited on April 19, 1994
under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of Companies, Kanpur bearing
Registration number 016359. The status of the Company was changed to public limited
and the name of our Company was changed to Pavna Locks Limited on dated October
30, 2000. Further name of the company was changed to Pavna Zadi Security Systems
Limited on dated October 30, 2000 and subsequent name of the company was changed
to Pavna Industries Limited on dated April 30, 2019.

PAVNA is engaged in manufacturing of wide range of automotive components for
reputed Original EquipmentManufacturers (OEMs) as per their requirements primarily
catering to various vehicle segments, including, passenger vehicles, two-wheelers,
three-wheelers, heavy and light commercial vehicles and off-road vehicles. Our
Company has a varied client base and PAVNA is committed to continuing to diversify
our product offerings, customer base and geographical footprint, thereby minimizing
our exposure to individual geographies and industry sectors. The Company along with
its subsidiaries has a diversified product portfolio, which consists of high-quality
reliable parts such as Ignition Switches, Fuel Tank Caps, Latches, Auto Locks, Handles,
Switches, Oil Pump, Carburettor, Throttle Body, Fuel Cocks, Injection System, Casting
Components etc. PAVNA also provide aftermarket sales and services. Aftermarket
products include products manufactured by us such as filters, clutch plates, bearings,
wiper blades and brake shoes.

PAVNA has ultra-modern manufacturing plants in India, located in Aligarh (Uttar
Pradesh), Aurangabad (Maharashtra), & Pantnagar (Uttarakhand). Facilities are located
in key auto-clusters and some of the facilities are in close proximity to the plants of our
OEM customers. The proximity of facilities to the plants of OEM customers also
facilitates greater interaction with customers, thereby enabling to respond to their
requirements in a timely manner. The facilities have been laid out to match best plant
engineering standards as plants are busy producing automotive products in large
quantities as per our customer‘s exacting standards. Our units are ISO 9001:2015, ISO
14001:2015, OHSAS 18001:2007 and IATF 16949:2016 certified.

PAVNA undertake research and development with a focus on technologically advanced
products, innovation, enhancing our products portfolio, improving the quality of our
products and our manufacturing processes both independently and through cooperation
with our customers. Research and development capabilities are a result of a combination
of the technological knowledge of joint venture partners and technical collaborators,
and those that internally developed. The Company has entered into joint ventures and
technical collaboration with Sunworld Moto Industrial Co.

At PAVNA, we focus on Quality & Customer centric components, catering to
Automotive Market. Witha unique motto to make users ‘Secure, Fast & Better’ we are
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committed to empower the lives of our employees to live better, increase their
efficiency, and promote manufacturing of innovative products and solutions. Over the
years, we have experienced a steady growth in our business in terms of product
portfolio, manufacturing plants, clients we serve, and various other aspects that set us
apart in the industry.

As the most experienced automotive part solutions company in South Asia, PAVNA
GROUP, enjoys a history of more than 50 years of innovation, technology,
manufacturing and market leadership. Today, PAVNA GROUP is a full-capability
provider of high-quality reliable parts such as Ignition Switches, Fuel Tank Caps,
Latches, Auto Locks, Handles, Switches, Oil Pump, Carburettor, Throttle Body, Fuel
Cocks, Injection System, Casting Components and other automotive parts solutions for
automobile applications, serving automobile, agricultural and other application. We are
a large-scale, multi-product and advanced auto component manufacturer, driven by new
products and technology.
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Financial Highlights
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Balance Sheet Ratios

Working Capital Days Debt to Equity
132 | 1.81 1.85
117 107 | 1.43
| 0.97
23 |
FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24 | FY21* FY22 FY23** FY24
RoCE | RoE
16.01%
14.019 14.34%
12.29% 10.88% 13.03% : 10.94é/‘g¥é}%/5 6
|
FY21* FY22 FY23%* FY24 FY21* FY22 FY23** FY24

RoCE = EBIT/(Shareholders Fund + Total Debt- Non Current Investments); RoE = Net Profit/Net Worth
*Company raised Rs.29.70 cr. via IPO of 18,00,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10 each in March 2021
**|ssue of Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1, as on September 2022
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Particulars (Rs. in Crore)

Revenue from Operations 316.88 362.22 315.61 219.41
Other Operating Income 0 0 0 0
Total Income 316.88 362.22 315.61 219.41
Total Raw Materials 202.47 231.87 201.84 138.77
Employee Cost 31.51 39.06 35.35 23.63
Other Expenses 48.40 58.45 48.74 36.98
Total Expenditure 282.38 329.38 285.93 199.37
EBITDA 34.50 32.84 29.69 20.03
EBITDA Margin % 11% 9.07% 9.41% 9.13%
Other Income 3.00 1.95 1.4 0.47
Depreciation 10.70 11.81 9.19 5.99
Finance Cast 11.08 10.87 9.21 5.90
Extraordinary ltems 0 0 0 0
Profit Before Tax 15.71 12.11 12.68 8.60
Tax 371 347 3.53 2.84
Profit After Tax 12.00 8.64 9.15 5.76
Other Comprehensive Income 0.10 0.34 0.14 0.06
Net Profit Attributable to mingrity 0.04 0 0 -0.02
Net Profit 12.14 8.97 9.3 5.80
Net Profit Margin 3.83% 2.48% 2.95% 2.65%
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PARTICULARS (Rs. In Crore) As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023 s. In Crore s at March 3T, s at Marc .

Equity and Liability Assests

Shareholders’ Funds Non-Current Assets

Share Capital 12.18 12.18 Property, Plant and equipments 73.51 85.94
Other equity 60.82 49.48 Intangible Work-in-progress 0.35 1.04
Non Conirolling Interest 11.68 12.45 Right of Use assets 1.52 1.85
Total equity 84.68 74.11 Financial assets -
Non-Current Liabilities Investments

Financial liabilities Others 9.17 9.36
Long-term Borrowings 14.44 46.61 Other non-current assets 2.33 2.16
Lease liabilities 1.53 1.76 Sub-total - Non-current assets 86.87 100.35
Other non current Financial liabilities 0.70 0.15 Current Assets

Provisions 2.63 2.31 Inventories 97.80 106.35
Deferred tax liabilities 0.04 0.51 Financial assets

Sub-total - Non-current liabilities 19.34 51.34 Trade receivables 55.70 53.45
Current Liabilities Cash and cash equivalents 0.31 0.43
Barrowings 106.52 90.57 Other Bank Balances 0.05 0.05
Lease liabilities 0.22 0.29 Loans - -
Trade Payables - Others {0.01) 0.17
Total outstanding dues of micro

enterprises and small enterprises 6.82 0.64 Income tax Assets 0.16 0.68
Total outstanding dues of creditors

other than micro enterprises and small

enterprises 32.12 53.18 Other Current Assets 16.83 17.26
Other financial liabilities 3.19 4.73 Sub-total - Current assets 170.84 178.38
Other Current Liabilities 2.66 2.31 Total -Assets 257.71 278.73
Income tax liabilities 0.32 0.05

Short-Term Provisians 1.84 1.53

Sub-total - Current liabilities 153.69 153.29

TOTAL - EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 257.71 2738.73
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EXCELLING AS A SYSTEMS SUPPLIER

Motor Controller

Component Design

Material & component data Base to speed up to design

Design of Electronics Hardware, Software & Mechanical

Sub-systems level simulation & analysis to ensure robustness

Model based design and system validation
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ent with OLA Electric to
witches and latches

from Rs.5.22 Crores in
Crores in FY 23-24

KEY OPERATIONAL
HIGHLIGHTS FOR
FY23-24

rowth from Rs.63.75
13 Crores in FY 23-24
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INDUSTRY HIGHLIGHTS

ELECTRIC MOBILITY PROMOTION SCHEME (EMPS) 2024

Introduced The EMPS 2024, a limited fund scheme of INR 500 crore for four
months, aims to boost the adoption of e2W and e3W from April 1to July 31,
2024 FAME-2 Scheme ends on 31 March 2024.

GROWING MARKET FOR 2W

Sales of motorcycles and scooters in India likely experienced double-digit
growth in the financial year 2023-24, surpassing pre-Covid levels. This increase
was driven by a consistent rise in demand in both urban and rural areas.

AUTO INDUSTRY GROWTH MOMENTUM CONTINUES

PV segment registering 10% YoY growth during the quarter with SUV saw a
strong demand Recovery in 2W market with improved rural sentiment
registering 26% YoY growth.
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PAVNA'’S EV PRODUCT PORTFOLIO (2W & 3W)

q g Horn
Steering Lock Assembly Q
Motor

Motor Controller

k Ignition Lock Assembly
.ph_

Ignition Starter Switch
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PRODUCTS UNDER PRODUCTION AND SUPPLY

Brake Handle Lock
. Lever Assembly

Mobile

Holder
Handle
Assembly

Latch Combination without Lock
switch

Seat Latch

Assembly Assembly

Motor USB Charger

Seat Catch
Controller

Assembly
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COMPREHENSIVE SOLUTION PROVIDER FOR 2W AND 3W OEMS IN INDIA

Handle Bar Switch

Casting Components

Wire Harness e
USB CHARGER

Products equipped with AIS and ICAT certifications



CAPABILITIES: PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

DESIGN & DEVELOPMENT QUALITY STANDARDS & SUSTAINABILITY INNOVATION & INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY
Lab equipped with all ISO 9001:2008 EVAP technology developed
environmental chambers ’ & implemented in Fuel Tank Cap

c Petna Lock: 5in 1Function
3D Rapid Prototype Development (S0 A biilEZ00e Lock Developed

2D & 3D Software for

Preduet Bestanig ISO 18001: 2010 Contact Less Switch

State-of-art tools equipeed with QS 9000 Certification

latest High-end CAD-CAM software il el Sl

Professional team of toolmakers ISO/TS 16949 Wheel Lock
with complex tool making capability

Dedicated Desigh & process IATF 16949

. ; Ignition cum Steering Lock
engineering teams




CAPABILITIES: MANUFACTURING

Zinc Die Casting In-House Facility developed High end machine with in-built error proofing interlocks

Capability of various metal on metal platings,

Established PAVNA cluster for wire harness, engine & el Wk, Zine, Coppen S,

stamping products

Assembly of Electrical ,Electronics and mechanical partfrom
ELECTRIC FIRED furnaces integrated with machine Precision as intricate parts as USB charger, ignition switches to heavy

control of temperature & pressures components like coupling assembly, step holders assly, etc

Fully automated process from pouring to diecoat spray All Assembly lines with integrated End of line inspections
with Al-enabled machines setup including Leak testing, continuity, performance
and functional testings

Precision control of temperature and pressures Established units for casting products
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TESTING AND VALIDATION

Spectrometer Test Voltage Drop Test Environmental Testing Vibration Test

Rain Water Test Vision Measurement Reliability Testing Durability Test

Heat Chamber Test Functional testing D;T;?‘“a‘;zr::::::"
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MANUFACTURING FOOTPRINT ACROSS INDIA

= Company has 9 facilities at

o
3 locations -

« Aligarh (UttarPradesh)
« Aurangabad (Maharashtra)
- Pantnagar (Uttarakhand)

s Strategically located Distribution
network in 17 states

LLUTENLELED]




RECENT EVENT IN BANGLADESH

«
)‘S\'urld




OUR CUSTOMERS
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OUR JOURNEY

Inception of business Commences
for supply of die- supply of Auto
casting components Locks to
OEM’s

&

1978

1999

T ErYAIID ISO Joint venture
g ecl ”°;’9V " 18001:2010 with Sunworld,
Sl ElL certi cation Taiwan

implemented in
Fuel T Cap

\,'%'7

2009 2014 -17

&

Acquired subsidiary
company Pavna
Auto Engineering

BSE

Pvt. Ltd.

3

2019

2021
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Migrated to NSE Main
Board & got listed on

&

2024

—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—0—00—

1971 1931

R —

Commences
supply of Fuel
Cocks to
OEM’s

Joint venture with
Zadi SPA, ltaly

Added new technology 2014 - Silver Award for

of Wave Key to Quality from Bajaj
Manufacturing 2015 - Gold Award for
System Quality from Bajaj

2016 - 2nd Gold Award for
Quality from Bajaj
2017 - 4th Gold Award for
Quality from Bajaj IATF
16949 Certification

@ 2004 /':‘\ 2010 @ 2018 _. ‘

Established units
for Casting Products

2020

Listed on NSE SME

No. of
patents

5

2023

(>

Land acquisition in Pantnagar,
Uttarakhand

No. of
OEMs

25+



GROUP STRENGTHS

o

Established Relationships
with Original Equipment
Manufacturers (OEMs)

Proximity to Customers

a £ [ Y )
o/
S &,

Reliable and Competent
Supplier Network

Comprehensive Aftermarket
Distribution System

&

Strategic and Technology
Driven Partnerships

Advanced Research and
Development Capabilities

povno

Effective Governance Systems

Skilled Human Resources
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OUR INSPIRATION MR.PAWAN JAIN- THE FOUNDER

“Change, Hardest At Beginning, Best At The End.” - Pawan Jain

A visionary, who thinks about the future in a creative and imaginative way, a person
who is avant-garde, whose vision came true in the process for autonomous venture
resulting in Pavna Group of Industries. Mr. Pawan Jain, our patron, moulded and
shaped bricks &amp,; walls and laid the foundation of Pavna Group of Industries
with his dedication, devotion and hard work. He planted a sapling “Pavna Group”
on 13th April, 1971 with titular resources available. He designed, developed &amp,
engineered die-casting machine by himself. Management Guru, Mr. Pawan Jain, an
exemplary personality, epitome of courage and honesty, man of relations and a
visionary, who tended the sapling with his blood and sweat. In order to save a meagre
amount, he used to stride for miles bare foot to receive and deliver orders, to organize
everything logically and comprehensively. He got his first break by Bajaj, first OEM
buyer of Pavna. Hedesigned Fuel cock for BAJAJ at the best quality to seal the deal
&amp, then it became USP of Pavna Group to give best quality product. Being a
successful industrialist was not all, his deep-rooted love for his city, ALIGARH, and
lack of quality education in the city prompted him to do something in the field of
education. Thus, he entrenched in the city, four Educational institutions - Delhi
Public School, Aligarh | Civil Lines | Hathras and PAVNA International, with world
class education system and international curriculum respectively. Despite of
flourishing in the course of industries and education, he was inspired by the path
&amp; preachings of his father - Pt. Kailash Chandra Ji. He inculcated spiritual
beliefs in him . To disseminate the same, he built Teerthdham Mangalayatan, with
Aadinath Vidyaniketan to give Moral &amp, Spiritual knowledge to young students
. In spite of the ailment, he stood strong throughout. The man with iron &amp; golden
heart lived his whole life full of energy and enthusiasm. His devotion blazing his
trails towards spiritual &amp, inner peace, Sh. Pawan Jain was a legend who instills
in each one’s heart and mind to DREAM AND ACHIEVE BIG, COME WHAT
MAY!
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MESSAGE FROM MANAGING DIRECTOR

Mr. Swapnil Jain, Managing Director

Dear Shareholders,

The global economy in 2024 faces a multitude of challenges that threaten its stability and
growth. Geopolitical tensions remain a significant risk, with ongoing conflicts in Eastern
Europe and the Middle East disrupting global trade. Economic growth is projected to slow,
with the IMF forecasting a modest 3.1% growth rat

e, below the pre-pandemic average, due to high inflation and tight monetary policies and other
geo-political tensions.

Despite ongoing economic challenges, the Indian Auto Component Industry has witnessed
remarkable growth in the last fiscal year. The government's Production Linked Incentive (PLI)
schemes and favorable trade policies have strengthened domestic manufacturing and attracted
substantial foreign investments, positioning India as a global hub for auto component sourcing.

As we continue to chart our path toward sustained growth and innovation, I am pleased to
highlight an important milestone for Pavna Industries Limited. We have recently acquired a
4,335 sq. meter land in June at the Integrated Industrial State in Pantnagar, Uttarakhand,
where we will establish a greenfield plant dedicated to producing high-quality components.
This strategic investment is designed to leverage the logistical and cost benefits of the region,
strengthening our presence in the domestic automotive sector and streamlining our operations
to better serve key clients like Bajaj Auto and several others.

We are entering an exciting phase where the automotive industry is experiencing rapid
transformation. The demand for electric vehicles is on the rise, and Pavna Industries is well-
positioned to capitalize on this trend. In the month of April, we entered into a strategic
partnership with OLA Electric, a leader in the electric vehicle industry. Under this agreement,
we will supply high-quality ignition switches and latches across OLA Electric's manufacturing
facilities in India as well as launched products in Bangladesh. This collaboration not only
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strengthens our position in the automotive components sector but also aligns us with the
accelerating shifi towards electric vehicles, reflecting our commitment to innovation and
sustainability. This expansion is driven by our strategic vision to tap into new market
opportunities and cater to the evolving needs of our customers both domestically and
internationally.

The company is focussing on the innovation, and improvement of its products and processes
on a continuous basis.

As I reflect on the growth and progress, I would like to share with you the performance results
for the financial year 2023-24 for our Company. During the year ended 315 March 2024, we
reported Rs. 316.87 cr in revenue, a decrease of 12.52% YoY, while EBITDA and PAT stood
at Rs. 34.49 cr and Rs. 12.00 cr, an increase of 5.02% and 39.01% respectively as compared
to previous year. Increase in EBITDA is mainly due to better operational efficiencies and
optimum utilization of resources. Moreover, the loss making subsidiary Pavna Goyam Auto
Pvt. Ltd. (PGAPL) is no longer associated with the Company leading to improvement in the
margins as well.

Looking ahead, we are optimistic about the opportunities in the automotive component
industry. The push towards electric mobility, coupled with favourable government policies,
presents significant growth prospects. We will continue to invest in R&D, enhance our
manufacturing capabilities, and explore new markets to drive sustainable growth.

In conclusion, I would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders, customers, employees,
and partners for their unwavering support and trust. Together, we will continue to drive
innovation, achieve excellence, and contribute to the future of auto component industry.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present 30" Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company along with
Audited Financial Statements (Standalone and Consolidate) and the Auditor’s Report thereon for the financial year

ended on March 31, 2024.

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS

Financial Performance of the Company for the year ended 31% March, 2024 is summarized below:

(Rs. In Lakh)
Particulars Standalone Consolidated
2023-24 2022-23 2023-24 2022-23

Revenue from Operations 28273.49 26323.09 31687.49 | 36222.20
Total expenditure 25431.66 23947.59 28238.36 | 32937.87
Operating profit 2841.83 2375.50 3449.13 3284.33
Other Income 33.99 39.35 299.83 194.88
Profit before interest, foreign exchange, 2414.85 3479.21
depreciation, amortization, exceptional item 2876.34 3748.96
and tax
Finance cost 931.62 695.62 1107.73 1087.28
Profit I?eforg deprec1a¥10n, amortization, 1944.72 1719.23 2641.3 2391.93
exceptional item, foreign exchange and tax
Depreciation, amqrtlzatuon and product 897.34 717.11 107025 1181.34
development/ engineering Expenses
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax 1047.38 1002.12 1570.98 1210.59
Exceptional Items - loss (net) 0 0 0 0
Profit / (loss) before Tax 1047.38 1002.12 1570.98 1210.59
Tax expenses / (credit) (net) 269.88 273.58 370.57 347.02
Profit / (loss) after Tax 777.50 728.53 1200.41 863.57
Attributable to:

- Shareholders of the Company - - 1066.32 861.59

- Non-controlling interest - - 148.14 35.72
Earning Per Equity Share 6.38 5.98 8.67 7.09

2. OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE

Standalone Operational Performance

During the review, the Company has generated revenue from operation Rs. 28,273.49 lakh which is 7.41%
higher than Rs. 26,323.09 lakh in FY 2022-23. Operating Expenses of the Company has also increased by

6.20% than to last FY.

The Company has booked Profit Before Tax (PBT) of Rs. 1047.38 Lakh and Net Profit of Rs. 777.5 lakh

compare to last year of Rs.1002.12 lakh and Rs. 728.53 lakh respectively.
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Subsidiary Operational Performance

The Company has five subsidiaries. Performance of the subsidiaries have contributed positive increase in the
revenue as well as operational profit as per below table shows-

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars SSPL PAEPL PSAPL PMPL
2023-24 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 2022-23 | 2023-24 | 2022-23

Revenue 805.68 880.55 | 3543.28 | 3619.16 65.23 86.02 | 4691.42 | 5050.01

Operational

Exp. 669.08 866.47 | 3237.85| 3428.02 72.76 79.33 | 4456.22 | 4901.15

EBITA 136.60 14.08 305.43 191.14 (7.53) 6.69 235.20 148.86

Consolidated Operational Performance
During the year, under review, consolidated revenue from operations for the year ended as on March 31, 2024
is Rs. 31,687.49 lakhs, while last year operational revenue was 36,222.20 lakh. However the expenses have
also decreased by 14.27% compare to last year. The Company has booked Net Profit of Rs. 1200.41 Lakh.

3. DIVIDEND

During the Financial Year, the Company has not declared any dividend.

4. RESERVE & SURPLUS

The Company has transferred net profit of Rs. 777.50 lakh to the reserve and Surplus during the financial year.

5. SHARE CAPITAL

(a) Authorised Share Capital
Authorised Share Capital of the Company at the beginning of the financial year stands at Rs.1,500 Lakhs.
During the year, the Shareholders of the Company has increased its Authorised Share Capital by Rs.300
Lakhs by Passing Ordinary Resolution through Postal Ballot on November 15, 2023 in their Extra-
Ordinary General Meeting.

So, the Authorised Share Capital of the Company at the end of the Financial Year stands at Rs.1,800
Lakhs.

(b) Paid-Up Share Capital

The Paid Share Capital of the Company at the beginning of the Financial Year stands at Rs. 1,218.08
Lakhs consisting of 1,21,80,800 equity shares of Rs.10/-each.

During the year, the Company has not increased its Paid-Up Share Capital.
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So, at the end of the Financial Year, the Paid-Up Share Capital stands at Rs.1,218.08 Lakhs only.

6. FUND RAISING

The Shareholders of the Company passed Resolution through Postal Ballot on November 15, 2023 in their
Extra-Ordinary General Meeting approving the Fund raising through Further Public Offer of Equity Shares.
But later on, Decision of Fund Raising through Further Public Offer was withdrawn by the Board of Directors
and approved the Fund raising through the Right Issue of Equity Shares in their Meeting held on January 10,
2024.

Fund Raising through Right Issue of Equity Shares was also revoked by the Board of Directors in their
meeting held on August 14, 2024 due to deferment of the plans.

7. MIGRATION TO NSE MAIN BOARD AND LISTING ON BSE MAIN BOARD

The Company completed the process of Migration from National Stock Exchange (Emerge) to NSE Main
Board and got listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Main Board on 1% June, 2023.

8. CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS

Your Company is engaged in manufacturing of wide range of automotive components for reputed Original
Equipment Manufacturers (OEMs) as per their requirements primarily catering to various vehicle segments,
including, passenger vehicles, two-wheelers, three-wheelers, heavy and light commercial vehicles and off-road
vehicles, Electric Vehicles.

There is no change in the nature of business during the year under review.

9. SUBSIDIARIES

The Company has 4 (Four) subsidiaries as at March 31, 2024 and detail subsidiaries as follows-

Name of | % of Subsidiary | Location Nature of Business

Subsidiary

Pavna Auto | 50.74% Aligarh, UP Manufacturing of Auto Mobile Parts,

Engineering Accessories, Spare Parts, assemblies parts,

Private Limited Fuel and petrol taps and corks and all
accessories and assembly line of Die Casting
products

Pavna Sunworld | 71.50% Aligarh UP manufacturing of all types of Automobiles,

Autotech Private Auto Parts, Engineering Goods and

Limited Hardware etc.

Swapnil 50.74% New Delhi Manufacturing of all type of electric auto

Switches Private switches and accessories thereof and store

Limited parts.

Pavna Marketing | 99.99% Aligarh UP Business of marketing and trading of

Private Limited automobiles locks, auto parts, die casting
items

One of the subsidiaries of the company M/s Pavna Goyam Auto Private Limited ceased to be a subsidiary
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13.

w.e.f 11.05.2023.

The details of the subsidiaries have been described in brief in the Corporate Governance Report which forms
an integral part of this Annual Report.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, a statement containing the
salient features of the Financial Statements of subsidiary companies in Form AOC-1 is attached to the
Financial Part of this Annual Report.

The separate audited Financial Statements in respect of each subsidiary shall be kept open for inspection at the
Registered office of the Company during working hours for a period of 21 days before the date of Annual
General Meeting.

CREDIT RATING

The Company obtains Credit Rating of its various credit facilities and instruments from CRISIL Ratings
Limited (“CRISIL”). During the year, the CRISIL has migrated the Long-term rating from °‘CRISIL
BB+/Stable to CRISIL BBB-/Stable’.

CRISIL has re-affirmed the Long-term rating to CRISIL BBB-/Stable which is valid till March 31, 2025.

MAJOR CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION AFTER
THE YEAR END TILL THE DATE OF THIS REPORT

One of the subsidiaries of the company M/s Pavna Goyam Auto Private Limited ceased to be a subsidiary
w.e.f 11.05.2023.There were no other material changes and commitments that occurred after the close of the
year till the date of this report, which affected the financial position of the Company.

During the year under review, there was no change in the nature of business of the Company.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY

Your Company has laid down adequate internal financial controls and checks which are effective and
operational. These systems are designed in a manner which provides assurance with regard to maintenance of
strict accounting control, optimum efficiency in operations and utilization of resources as well as financial
reporting, protection of Company’s tangible and intangible assets and compliance with policies, applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

The Audit Committee regularly interacts with the Internal Auditors, the Statutory Auditors and Senior
executives of the Company responsible for financial management and other affairs. The Audit Committee
evaluates the Internal Control Systems and checks & Balances for continuous updation and improvements
therein. During the year, such controls were reviewed and no reportable material weakness was observed.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for Financial Year 2023-24 are
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17.

prepared in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and as stipulated under Regulation 33 of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [SEBI Listing Regulations] as
well as in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015. The audited consolidated financial statement together with the Independent Auditor’s
Report thereon form part of this Annual Report. Pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing
the salient features of the Financial Statement of the subsidiary companies is attached to the Financial
Statement in Form AOC-1. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the Company will make
available the said financial statement of the subsidiary companies upon a request by any member of the
Company or its subsidiary companies. These financial statements of the Company and the subsidiary
companies will also be kept open for inspection by any member and the same would also be available on the
Company’s website https://www.pavna.in.

The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements along with the Auditors’ Report thereon forms part of this
Annual Report.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS, LOAND AND ADVANCES

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public within the
meaning of Section 73 and Section 74 of the Act, therefore the disclosure pursuant to Rule 8 (5)(v) & (vi) of
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, is not applicable to the Company.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34
(3) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, on the operations of the Company as prescribed under Schedule
V, is presented in a separate section forming part of the Annual Report Annexed as “Annexure-1".

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The information on conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo
stipulated under Section 134(3) (m) of the Act, read along with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014, is given in “Annexure-2” forming part of this Report.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, and in terms of Regulation 19 read with Part D of
Schedule-II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Company has a Nomination and Remuneration Policy for its
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management which also provides for the diversity of the
Board and provides the mechanism for performance evaluation of the Directors and the said Policy was
amended from time to time. It includes criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and
Independence of a Director. The Remuneration Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be
accessed on the website www.pavna.in.

18. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
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22,

The total number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on March 31, 2024 was 796.

The disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197 of the act, read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, duly
amended, forms part of this report are annexed as an “Annexure-3” and the information required under Rule
5(2) & 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, duly
amended, will be provided under request.

As per the provision of the section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report excluding the aforesaid information is
being sent to all the shareholders. Any shareholder interested in receiving the same in hard copy may write to
the Company Secretary at cs@pavnagroup.com.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments which are within the limits specified under Section 186 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, are provided
in the notes to the Audited Financial Statements of the Company forming part of this Annual Report.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND CONTRACTS:

All contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company during the year with related parties were on
an arm’s length basis and mostly in the ordinary course of business. There were no material related party
transactions (RPTs) undertaken by the Company during the year that require Shareholders’ approval under
Regulation 23(4) of the SEBI Listing Regulations or Section 188 of the Act. The approval of the Audit
Committee was sought for all RPTs. Certain transactions which were repetitive in nature and entered in the
Ordinary course of Business were approved through omnibus route. All the transactions were in compliance
with the applicable provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Accordingly, Detail of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act given in
“Annexure-4” as per AOC-2.

Details of related party transactions entered into by the Company, in terms of IND AS-24 have been disclosed
in the notes to Standalone/ Consolidated Financial Statements forming part of the Annual Accounts 2023-24.

CORPORATE SOCTAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the year under review the Company has spent Rs. 17.00 lakh under CSR activities as per the section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder. The CSR Policy is available on the website of
the Company at www.pavna.in.

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the initiatives

undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year in the format prescribed in the Companies (CSR
Policy) Rules, 2014 are set out in “Annexure-5”.

DIRECTOR S AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

As on date, the Board of the Company comprises of total 10 (Ten) directors of which 6 (Six) are Non-
Executive Independent Directors and 3 (Three) Executive Director and 1(One) is Non-Executive Non-
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Independent Director.
(a) Appointment / Re-appointment/Resignation of Directors

In terms of Section 149 of the Act and the SEBI Listing Regulations, following Independent Directors
were appointed on the Board of the Company as on date of this report:

1. Ms.Himani Bhootra (DIN: 09811030) (w.e.f 17.04.2023)

2. Ms.Priyanka Moodra (DIN: 09485101) (w.e.f 14.08.2023)

3 .Mr. Achyutanand Ramchandra Mishra (DIN: 0940098) (w.e.f 01.09.2023)
4. Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (DIN: 10277614) (w.e.f 14.08.2024)

(b) Retire by Rotation

In accordance with provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mrs. Priya Jain,
Executive Director (DIN: 03355623) is liable to retire by rotation and is eligible for re-appointment.

The disclosures required pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and the SS- 2 on
General Meeting are given in the Notice of Annual General Meeting ('AGM"), forming part of the Annual
Report.

(c) Appointment/ Resignation of Key Managerial Personnel

In terms of Section 203 of the Act, 4. Mr. Makarand Mahajan resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer
w.e.f 31.07.2023 and Mr. Ravindra Madan Mohan Agrawal was appointed on 11.09.2023 but resigned w.e.f
28.12.2023. Mrs. Palak Jain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer w.e.f 20.01.2024.

Ms. Charu Singh has resigned from the position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the
Company w.e.f. 28" August, 2024.Ms. Kanchan Gupta, an associate Member of ICSI having membership
n0.A64223 was appointed as an Additional Company Secretary and Key Managerial Personnel w.e.f 1%
September, 2023 and now re-designated as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer w.e.f 4™ September,
2024.

Mr. Ravindra Jagannath Rao Pise was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Company on September
1,2023. Mr. Alok kumar sharma (deputy general manager) was appointed as key managerial personnel w.e.f
November 7, 2023.

Mr. Arun Khanna (general manager) was appointed as key managerial personnel w.e.f November 7, 2023.

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Aggarwal (assistant vice president-production) was appointed as key managerial personnel
w.e.f November 7, 2023.

Mr. Ram Karan Malik (chief technical officer) was appointed as key managerial personnel w.e.f November 7,
2023.

Mr. Rachakonda Sambasiva Murthy as a kmp w.e.f januray 10, 2024 w.e.f November 7, 2023 and was
terminated w.e.f August 13, 2024.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All Independent Directors of the Company have given declarations under Section 149(7) of the Act, that they
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meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the Independent Directors
have confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exists or may be reasonably
anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent
judgement and without any external influence. The Independent Directors of the Company have undertaken
requisite steps towards the inclusion of their names in the data bank of Independent Directors maintained with
the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs, in terms of Section 150 read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors possess the requisite expertise and experience and are
persons of high integrity and repute. They fulfill the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 ('the

Act') as well as the Rules made thereunder and are independent of the management.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Company has conducted Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors to enable them to
understand their roles, rights and responsibilities and proactively keeps them informed of the activities of the
Company, its management and operations and provides an overall industry perspective as well as issues being
faced by the industry. Company’s policy on the familiarization programme for the Independent Directors as
well as the details of the familarization programme imparted during the year is available on the website of the

Company at www.pavna.in.

BOARD EVALUATION

The annual evaluation process of the Board of Directors, individual Directors and Committees was conducted
in accordance with the provision of the Act.

The Board evaluated its performance after seeking inputs from all the Directors on the basis of criteria such as
the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning, etc. The
performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board after seeking inputs from the committee members
on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness of committee meetings, etc.

AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

(a) Statutory Auditors

Pursuant to section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014, M/s Rajeev Kumar & Company, Aligarh (Firm’s Regn No. 000633C), was appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company at Annual General Meeting held on 27" September, 2022 to hold office for
5 years until conclusion of AGM to be hold on year 2027-28. The Auditors have represented that they were not
disqualified and continue to be eligible to act as the Auditor of the Company.

M/s Rajeev Kumar & Company, Aligarh (Firm’s Regn No. 000633C) has resigned as Statutory Auditor the
Company with effect from the closure of the business hours of August 14, 2024. They proposed the audit fees
to be revised but the proposal was not passed by the Audit Committee, hence they resigned as the Statutory
Auditor.
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Pursuant to section 139 of Companies Act, 2013 M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration NO.005560C) has been appointed as the Statutory Auditors of Pavna Industries Limited by
the Board of Directors on September 4, 2024 to fill the casual vacancy and whose term shall expire on the
upcoming Annual General Meeting. Resolution for appointment of 2013 M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration NO.005560C), Chartered Accountants has been proposed in the
upcoming Annual General Meeting for their Regularization for a term of Five years and on such remuneration
as decided by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee.

The Statutory Auditors' Report for the financial year ended 31%' March, 2024 forming part of the Annual
Report, contains an emphasis of matter on Financials of the Company.

The Auditor of the Company have not reported any fraud or any qualification as specified under the second
proviso of Section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof for the time being in force).

(b) Secretarial Audit

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Director based on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee appointed M/s D. Sagar & Associates, (CP No. - 11547), a Company Secretaries in Practice in
Aurangabad to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for year ended March 31, 2024.

The Report of the Secretarial Audit for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is annexed herewith as
“Annexure-6”.

The Secretarial Audit Report for 2023-24 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remarks.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year, the Board of Directors met 6 times. For details, please refer to the Report on Corporate
Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report as “Annexure-7".

The maximum gap between two Board Meetings held during the year was not more than 120 days.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Committees of the Board focus on certain specific areas and make informed decisions in line with the
delegated authority.

The following Committees constituted by the Board function according to their respective roles and defined
scope:

¢ Audit Committee

* Nomination and Remuneration Committee
* Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
» Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

Details of composition, terms of reference and number of meetings held for respective committees are given in
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33.

34.

the Report on Corporate Governance, which forms a part of this Report. Further, during the year under review,
all recommendations made by the various committees have been accepted by the Board.

GENERAL MEETINGS

During the year, Members of the Company met 1 time. For details, please refer to the Report on Corporate
Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report as “Annexure-7”.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board takes responsibility for the overall process of risk management throughout the organization. Our
business units and corporate functions address risks through an institutionalized approach aligned to our
objectives. This is facilitated by corporate audit. The Business risk is managed through cross-functional
involvement and communication across businesses. The results of the risk assessment are presented to the
senior management. The Senior Management reviews business risk areas covering operational, financial,
strategic and regulatory risks.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company believes in the conduct of the affairs of its constituents in a fair and transparent manner by
adopting the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. In line with the
Code of Conduct, any actual or potential violation, howsoever insignificant or perceived as such, would be a
matter of serious concern for the Company. The role of the employees in pointing out such violations of the
Code cannot be undermined. Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Act, a vigil mechanism was established for
directors and employees to report to the management instances of unethical behaviour, actual or suspected,
fraud or violation of the Company’s code of conduct or ethics policy. The Vigil Mechanism provides a
mechanism for employees of the Company to approach the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the
Company for redressal. No person has been denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. The
policy of vigil mechanism is available on the Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The primary objective of the Audit Committee is to monitor and reporting process, to ensure accurate and
timely disclosures, with the highest levels of transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting.

The Committee comprises of Mr. Dhruv Jain, Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara, Mr.Achyutanand Ramkrishna

Mishra, Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh and Mr. Swapnil Jain. For details, please refer to the Report on Corporate
Governance, which forms part of this Annual Report as “Annexure-7".

HUMAN RESOURCES

No complaints/suggestions were received during the year.

The focus on human capital continued to be a cornerstone of the Company’s strategic endeavours.
Recognizing the pivotal role of our workforce as the driving force behind our diverse business ventures, the
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Company endeavoured to cultivate an environment conducive to their growth, development, and overall well-
being.

The Company has a strength of permanent employees and contract workers as on 31st March, 2024. From the
total permanent employees, over 26.38% are Women.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Sections 92 & 134(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration)
Rules, 2014, the Annual Return for F/Y 2023-24 is available on the website of the Company.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS
IN FUTURE

No significant or material orders were passed by the any Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

37. MARKET PRICE DATA

The shares of the Company were traded as under during 2023-2024.

NSE BSE
Turnover Turnover
(Rs.in (Rs.in
Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Lakhs) High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) Lakhs)
April 281.40 244.00 34.31 - - -
May 305.00 285.05 61.83 - - -
June 378.00 291.40 79.37 375 298.05 18.34
July 338.00 269.60 23.80 343.7 265 5.38
August 470.70 282.65 249.22 465.35 295.1 64.36
September 484.00 410.50 287.04 486 411.05 102.60
October 469.80 371.00 375.90 465 378.7 59.26
November 415.00 376.05 82.46 435 381.8 22.88
December 427.00 380.00 141.84 420 382.45 35.88
January 640.85 400.00 1,315.98 640.05 398.3 339.69
February 539.95 475.00 124.24 546.5 476.25 12.97
March 601.00 475.00 1,633.71 591.65 477 280.92

(Source: www.nseindia.com and www.bseindia.com)

Company got listed on BSE from June 1, 2024.
MARKET PRICE VARIATION IN RELATION TO NSE SENSEX DURING 2023-2024:

The monthly high and low share prices of the Company in comparison with the NSE Sensex during the year are
as under:



s Lo AV4 214

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

38.

Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) NSE Nifty (High) NSE Nifty (Low)
April 281.40 244,00 17753.05 17620.26
May 305.00 285.05 18367.67 18229.46
June 378.00 291.40 18781.22 18664.46
July 338.00 269.60 19657.8 19507.59
August 470.70 282.65 19512.15 19373.17
September 484.00 410.50 19849.37 19703.97
October 469.80 371.00 19564.51 19417.61
November 415.00 376.05 19642.34 19535.81
December 427.00 380.00 21223.46 21050.91
January 640.85 400.00 21750.82 21524.64
February 539.95 475.00 22054.66 21836.18
March 601.00 475.00 22288.54 22074.9

MARKET PRICE VARIATION IN RELATION TO BSE SENSEX DURING 2023-2024:

The monthly high and low share prices of the Company in comparison with the BSE Sensex during the year are

as under:
Month High (Rs.) Low (Rs.) BSE Sensex (High) BSE Sensex (Low)
April - - - -
May - - - -
June 375 298.05 63321.87 62917.96
July 343.7 265 66365.36 65830.82
August 465.35 295.1 65665.96 65186.63
September 486 411.05 66659.2 66168.46
October 465 378.7 65599.08 65102.42
November 435 381.8 65579.57 65215.13
December 420 382.45 70647.77 70077.52
January 640.05 398.3 72112.25 71349.87
February 546.5 476.25 72610.59 71888.61
March 591.65 477 73507.04 72823.13
(Source: www.bseindia.com)
SHAREHOLDING PATTERN
The Shareholding Pattern of the Company as on 31st March, 2024 is as follows:
Sr No Category No. of Equity Shares held % of Shareholding
1 | Promoter (Non-Corporate) 7,178,520 58.9331
2 | Promoter Group (Non-Corporate) 404,840 3.3236
3 | Promoter Group (Corporate) 997,040 8.1853
4 | Public 3,600,400 29.558
TOTAL 12,180,800 100
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39. OTHER DISCLOSURES

1. DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANCE BY THE LISTED ENTITY, PENALTIES, STRICTURES IMPOSED
ON THE LISTED ENTITY BY STOCK EXCHANGE(S) OR THE BOARD OR ANY STATUTORY
AUTHORITY, ON ANY MATTER RELATED TO CAPITAL MARKETS, DURING THE LAST THREE

YEARS
Sr. Particulars Financial Year | Amount of fine/ | Date on which | Status
No. penalty (R in lakhs) | Fine/Penalty  was
imposed and name
of stock exchange
1. Non-compliance of Regulation 33 2021-22 0.50 | December 14, 2021 | Penalty paid
of the SEBI LODR Regulations (NSE)
2. Non-compliance of Regulation 17 2023-24 0.56 | November 21, 2023 | Penalty paid
(1A) of the SEBI LODR Regulations (NSE)
3. Non-compliance of Regulation 17 2023-24 0.56 | November 21, 2023 | Penalty paid
(1A) of the SEBI LODR Regulations (NSE)

2. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of sexual harassment at workplace in line with the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder. Internal
Complaints Committee (‘ICC”) is in place for all works and offices of the Company to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment.

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)
Act, 2013 during the Financial Year 2023-24:

a. number of complaints filed during the financial year : Nil
b. number of complaints disposed of during the financial year : Nil
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year : Nil

3. DETAILS OF MATERIAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE LISTED ENTITY; INCLUDING THE DATE AND
PLACE OF INCORPORATION AND THE NAME AND DATE OF APPOINTMENT OF THE STATUTORY
AUDITORS OF SUCH SUBSIDIARIES.

Pavna Auto Engineering Private Limited has been identified as a material subsidiary of the Company which was
incorporated on April 19, 1994 at Pala Sahibabad, Gopalpuri Aligarh-202001, Uttar Pradesh, India. M/s Arun
Varshney and Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 005560C) has been appointed as the
Statutory Auditor of the Company on September 30, 2019 by the members of the Company.

The Company has identified Pavna Auto Engineering Private Limited (PAEPL) as the material Subsidiary of the
Company in terms of Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. The Company has appointed one of its Independent
Directors on the Board of Pavna Auto Engineering Private Limited. The minutes of the Board meetings of the
subsidiary companies are placed at the Board meeting of the Company on a periodical basis. The Audit Committee
reviews the financial statements including investments by the unlisted subsidiaries of the Company.
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PAEPL is the material subsidiary of the company incorporated dated 19.04.1994 having directors of the company

viz. Mr Swapnil Jain, Mrs. Asha Jain, Mr. Dhruv Jain and Mrs. Priya Jain. During the FY 2023-24 PAEPL was
material subsidiary pursuant to Section 16 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations’). Mr.
Dhruv Jain, the Independent Director of the Company, has been appointed as Director of PAEPL.

The Company has duly formulated a policy for determining Material Subsidiaries. The main objective of the policy is
to ensure governance of material subsidiary companies. The Company has also complied with the other provisions of
Regulation 24 of the SEBI Listing Regulations with regard to Corporate Governance requirements for subsidiary
Company.

The Policy for determining material subsidiaries has been uploaded and can be accessed on the Company’s website at
Www.pavna.in

40. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory, secretarial auditors and external agencies and the reviews
performed by Management and the relevant Board Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the
opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2023-24.

Pursuant to the requirements under Section 134(5) read with Section 134(3)(c) of the Act with respect to Directors’
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed that:

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended 31 March, 2024, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company as at 31% March, 2024 and of loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d) the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e) the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.

f) the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.
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“Annexure-1”
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS
Forward looking statement

Statements in this Management Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations of the Company describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or predictions
may be forward looking within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations.
Forward looking statements are based on certain assumptions and expectations of future
events.

The Company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and expectations are accurate or will
be realized. The Company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, modify or revise
forward looking statements, on the basis of any subsequent developments, information or
events. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement. Important
factors that could influence the Company’s operations include changes in government
regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and such other factors
globally.

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention, on accrual basis of
accounting, and in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards as pronounced by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) from time to time. The Management of Pavna Industries Limited
has used estimates and judgments relating to the financial statements on a prudent and
reasonable basis, in order that the financial statements, reflect in a true and fair manner, the
state of affairs and profit for the year.

The following discussions on our financial condition and result of operations should be read
together with our audited financial statements and the notes to these statements included in the
annual report. Unless otherwise specified or the context otherwise requires, all references

o LT »

hereinto “we”, “us”, “our”, “the Company”, “Pavna” are to “Pavna Industries Limited”.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

Global Economic Overview

In 2024, the global economy is expected to grow at a moderate pace, with projections showing
a growth rate of around 3.1% to 3.2%. This growth is slightly higher than the previous years,
indicating a steady but slow recovery from various economic challenges. Central banks around
the world have kept interest rates high to combat inflation, which has been a significant issue
in recent years. However, inflation rates are expected to decline gradually, with global inflation
forecasted to fall from around 6.8% in 2023 to about 4.5% by 2025. This suggests that while
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the economy is stabilizing, consumers and businesses are still dealing with the effects of higher
prices and cost of living.

Different regions are experiencing varying growth rates due to several factors including
geopolitical tensions, policy decisions, and economic conditions. For instance, advanced
economies like the United States and European countries are seeing a slight acceleration in
growth, while emerging markets and developing economies are facing a modest slowdown.
This mixed picture highlights the uneven recovery across the globe, with some areas benefiting
from strong policies and others struggling with external pressures and internal challenges.

Looking ahead, the global economic outlook for 2024 remains cautiously optimistic. While
growth is expected to be moderate, the risks include potential increases in inflation, geopolitical

risks, and further disruptions in supply chains.
Source: https://'www.imf.org/en/Publications/ WEO
https://’www.conference-board.org/topics/global-economic-outlook
https://'www.oecd.org/economic-outlook/fe bruary-2024/

Indian Economic Scenario

In 2024, India's economic growth is looking very promising. The country has seen impressive
growth rates, especially in the second quarter of the fiscal year, with GDP growth expected to
be between 6.9% and 7.2% or possibly even higher. This growth is largely driven by strong
performance in the industrial sector. The positive trend is a result of various strategic steps
India has taken over the years, which are now paying off.

A decade ago, India faced significant economic challenges. The U.S. Federal Reserve's
indication of a rate hike and oil prices rising above $90 per barrel had a severe impact. The
country's current account deficit was alarmingly high, and inflation reached 10%. These factors
led to a rapid depreciation of the Indian rupee and a loss of investor confidence. However, fast
forward to today, and the situation has greatly improved. The current account deficit has
significantly reduced, inflation is under better control, and foreign exchange reserves have
nearly doubled.

Looking forward, the outlook for India's economy remains optimistic. As the global economy
recovers, India is expected to benefit from the improving international economic environment.
This global recovery is likely to boost India's economic growth even further, spreading benefits
across various sectors of the economy. The country's proactive measures and continued focus
on strengthening the industrial sector are key drivers of this positive outlook.

Source: hitps://www2.deloitte.com/us/en/insights/econonty/asia-pacific/india-economic-outlook.html

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELPOMENT
Global Automobile Industry

In 2024, the global automotive industry is seeing a mix of growth and challenges. Sales of both
passenger and commercial vehicles are expected to reach around 95 million units. This growth
is partly due to advancements in smart manufacturing and connected car features. However,
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the industry is also facing issues like high raw material costs and the need to comply with strict
environmental regulations.

Electric vehicles (EVs) are becoming more popular, with sales predicted to hit 17 million in
2024. This increase is driven by consumer interest in eco-friendly cars and government policies
aimed at reducing carbon emissions. Despite this, the industry is dealing with concerns about
the affordability of EVs and the need for more charging infrastructure.

Technology is playing a big role in the industry's future. Companies are investing in
autonomous driving and connected car technologies to improve safety and the driving
experience. Some carmakers are also partnering with tech firms to innovate and deploy 5G
systems for advanced driver-assistance systems (ADAS).

Supply chain issues that have previously affected the industry are starting to ease. This
improvement is helping car manufacturers increase production to meet the rising demand for
new vehicles. However, there are still some challenges left, such as supplier disruptions and
the ongoing economic and financial issues that could limit how high production can go.

Looking ahead, the global automotive industry in 2024 is focused on recovery and innovation.
With the stabilization of the supply chain and a strong push towards electric and autonomous
vehicles, the sector is expected to continue its growth. However, companies must navigate the
complexities of cost management and regulatory environments to capitalize on these
opportunities.

Source: https://www.marketsandmarkets.com/Market-Reports/global-automotive-industry-outlook-77960341. html
https.//'www.cloudtheory.ai/automotive-industry-trends

https.//www.autonomous-vehicles-conference.com/
htips.//www.reuters.com/business/autos-transportation/electric-car-sales-rise-affordability-focus-iea-says-2024-04-23/
https://www.marketwatch.com/guides/insurance-services/electric-vehicle-statistics-2024/

India Auto Component Industry

India has become the fastest-growing economy in the world in recent years. This fast growth,
coupled with rising incomes, a boost in infrastructure spending and increased manufacturing
incentives, has accelerated the automobile industry. The two-wheeler segment dominated the
automobile industry because of the Indian middle class, with automobile sales standing at 19.45
million units in FY23. Significant demand for automobiles also led to the emergence of more
original equipment and auto components manufacturers. As a result, India developed expertise
in automobiles and auto components, which helped boost international demand for Indian
automobiles and auto components.

The automobile component industry turnover stood at Rs. 5.6 lakh crore (US$ 69.7 billion)
between 2022-23 the industry had revenue growth of 32.8% as compared to 2021-22. Domestic
OEM supplies contributed ~66% to the industry’s turnover, followed by domestic aftermarket
(~12%) and exports (~22.3%), in FY23. The component sales to OEMs in the domestic market
grew by 39.5% to US$ 57.62 billion (Rs. 4.76 lakh crore). Between 2022-23, exports of auto
components grew by 5.2% to Rs. 1.61 lakh crore (US$ 19.49 billion). The aftermarket for auto
components grew by 15% in 2022-23 reaching Rs. 85,333 crore (US$ 10.33 billion).
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As per the Automobile Component Manufacturers Association (ACMA) forecast, auto
component exports from India are expected to reach US$ 30 billion by 2026. The auto
component industry is projected to record US$ 200 billion in revenue by 2026. Strong
international demand and resurgence in the local original equipment and aftermarket segments
are predicted to help the auto component industry to grow further.

The rapidly globalising world is creating newer opportunities for the transportation industry,
especially while shifting towards electric, electronic and hybrid cars, which are deemed more
efficient, safe and reliable modes of transportation. Over the next decade, this will lead to newer
verticals and opportunities for auto component manufacturers. To help them adjust to the
shifting dynamics of the sector, the Indian government has already offered various production
incentives. India is also investing heavily in electric car infrastructure.

Source: https://'www.ibef org/industry/autocomponents-india

Government Initiative

The Government has reaffirmed its commitment towards EVs and its mission for 30% electric
mobility by 2030. Budget announced customs duty exemption on the import of capital goods
and machinery required for the manufacture of lithium-ion batteries that typically power EVs.
The Government of India’s Automotive Mission Plan (AMP) 2006-26 has been instrumental
in ensuring growth for the sector. The Indian automobile industry is expected to achieve a
turnover of US$ 300 billion by 2026.

Additionally, the Bharat New Car Assessment Program (BNCAP) is set to enhance the auto
component sector's capabilities, spurring innovation and excellence. The extension of the
FAME Scheme until March 2024, along with the Automotive Mission Plan (AMP) 2006-26,
is expected to propel the industry to a projected turnover of US$ 300 billion by 2026.
Furthermore, the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme promises substantial investments
and job creation, marking a significant leap forward for the sector and the economy.

Source: https:/www.ibef.org/industry/autocomponents-india

About Pavna Industries Limited

Pavna Industries Limited, formerly known as Pavna Locks Limited, was incorporated in April
19, 1994. The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing wide range of reliable and
high quality automotive parts for reputed OEMs serving different vehicle segments including
passenger vehicles, two-wheelers, three-wheelers, heavy and light commercial vehicles, and
off-road vehicles. PAVNA is a well-established Company in the South Asian automotive
industry, with long history of innovation, technology, manufacturing and market leadership
spanning over 50 years.

The Company has its state-of-the-art manufacturing plants located strategically in Aligarh
(Uttar Pradesh), Aurangabad (Maharashtra), and Pantnagar (Uttarakhand). These plants are
situated in close proximity to the plants of its OEM customers, allowing for greater interaction
and timely response to their requirements. It also has diverse range of product portfolio which
includes Ignition Switches, Fuel Tank Caps, Latches, Auto Locks, Switches, Oil Pump,
Throttle Body, Fuel Cocks, Casting Components, and more. The Company has wide presence
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in the domestic as well as export markets, exporting to several countries like Italy, Sri Lanka,
Indonesia, Sudan, U.S.A. and Bangladesh. Apart from this the Company is also focused on
customer centric approach catering to various esteemed Companies in the industry like Bajaj,
Kawasaki, Honda, TVS, Mahindra, TATA, Escorts, Royal Enfield, Ashok Leyland, Mahindra
Wheels, Eicher Motors, Tork Motors, Revolt, Mahindra Electric, etc.

PAVNA is committed to providing its customers with the latest and most innovative products,
which is why the Company undertakes extensive research and development activities. The
focus is on enhancing product portfolio, improving the quality of products, and upgrading the
manufacturing processes. This is achieved through a combination of in-house R&D
capabilities, as well as joint ventures and technical collaborations with partners such as
Sunworld Moto Industrial Co, an Indo-Taiwan joint venture Company.

The Company’s goal is to continuously strive towards technological advancement and
innovation, while keeping customers' needs at the forefront of everything the Company does.
FINANCIAL OVERVIEW —

The consolidated financial performance of the Company for the financial year ended March
315, 2024, is as follows:

Total revenue from operations stood at Rs. 316.87 crore for the year ended March 31, 2024, as
against Rs. 362.22 crore for the corresponding previous period, decrease of 12.52%

EBITDA (excluding other income) was at Rs. 34.49 crore as against Rs. 32.84 crore in FY23,
increase of 5.02%

EBITDA Margin for the year ended FY24 was 10.88% as against 9.07% in FY23, an increase
of 181 bps mainly due to better operational efficiencies and optimum utilization of resources.
Moreover, the loss making subsidiary is no longer associated with the Company leading to
improvement in the margins

The PAT (profit after tax) was Rs. 12.00 crore for the year ended March 31, 2024, as against
Rs. 8.64 crore for the corresponding previous period, a growth of 39.01%

FY24 PAT Margin stood at 3.79% as against PAT Margin of 2.38 % in FY23, increase of 141
bps
RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As on March 31, 2024, the consolidated net worth stood at Rs. 73.00 crore and the consolidated
debt was at Rs. 120.95 crore

The cash & cash equivalents and bank balances at the end of March 31, 2024 were Rs. 0.31
and Rs. 0.05 crore respectively

The net debt to equity ratio of the Company stood at 0.77 as on March 31, 2024

RISKS AND CONCERNS

Like every business, the Company faces risks, both internal and external, in the undertaking of
its day-to-day operations and in pursuit of its longer-term objectives. A detailed policy drawn
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up and dedicated risk workshops are conducted for each business vertical and key support
functions wherein risks are identified, assessed, analyzed and accepted / mitigated to an
acceptable level within the risk appetite of the organization. The risk registers are also reviewed
from time to time.

The Company faces the following Risks and Concerns:

Credit Risk

To manage its credit exposure, Pavna has determined a credit policy with credit limit requests
and approval procedures. Company does its own research of clients’ financial health and
project prospects before entering into an agreement with them. Timely and rigorous process is
followed up with clients for payments as per schedule. The Company has suitably streamlined
the process to develop a focused and aggressive receivables management system to ensure
timely collections.

Interest Rate Risk

The Company has judiciously managed the debt-equity ratio. It has been using a mix of loans
and internal cash accruals. The Company has well managed the working capital to reduce the
overall interest cost.

Competition Risk

Like in most other industries, strong scope of opportunities come with intense competition. We
face different levels of competition in each of our operating categories, from domestic as well
as multinational companies. Pavna has created strong differentiators in project execution,
portfolio, level on involvement in marketing and delivery, which make it resilient to
competition. Furthermore, the Company continues to invest in technology and people to remain
ahead of the curve. A strong and stable client base, comprising large and mid-sized
corporations, further helps mitigate this risk. We counter this risk with the quality of our
infrastructure, our customer-centric approach, value-added services and our ability to innovate
customer specific solutions, focusing on pricing and aggressive marketing strategy, disciplined
project executions, along with prudent financial and human resources management and better
control over costs. Thus, we expect to be significantly insulated from this risk.

Tariffs Risk

Tariffs imposed on imported auto parts could increase the cost of production and impact the
profitability of the industry.

Regulation Risk
Changes in regulations can create pressure for automotive makers to rethink their supply base
and manufacturing locations on short notice, leading to supply chain disruptions.

Environmental regulations: The automotive industry is facing pressure to reduce its carbon
footprint, and failure to do so could lead to penalties and loss of market share.
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Disrupted supply chain: The COVID-19 pandemic has caused disruptions in the global
supply chain, leading to production shutdowns and component shortages.

Quality control: The high products liability in the auto component industry makes quality
control a critical issue.

OPPORTUNITIES

e Shifting manufacturing hub: The shift of the manufacturing hub from traditional
markets to emerging markets presents opportunities for the auto component
industry to expand its market share.

o [Electric and hybrid vehicles: The increasing demand for electric and hybrid
vehicles presents opportunities for the auto component industry to develop and
supply components for these vehicles.

e Export opportunities: The Indian auto component exports grew by 43% and are
expected to reach USD 80 billion by 2026.

e Government Support and Policies: The Indian government has introduced several
policies to support the automotive sector, including the Production-Linked
Incentive (PLI) scheme, which offers financial incentives to boost domestic
manufacturing of advanced automotive technology products.

Source: https://riskandinsurance.com/7-critical-risks-facing-the-automotive-
industry/https.//www.mckinsey.com/industries/automotive-and-assembly/our-insights/work-the-core-how-auto-
suppliers-can-get-fit-for-the-ev-transition

https://www.investindia.gov.in/sector/auto-components

THREATS

o Intense competition: The auto component industry is facing rising competition,
which can impact its market share and profitability.

e Weak demand for private ownership of cars powered by the internal
combustion engine: The weak demand for private ownership of cars powered by
the internal combustion engine can impact the market share of the auto component
industry.

o Consumer demand: Rising vehicle prices present a real risk to car demand, which
can impact the auto component industry.

¢ Rising inflation rate: The rising inflation rate can increase the cost of production
and impact the profitability of the industry.

In conclusion, the auto component industry is facing various risks, opportunities, and threats
that can impact its growth and profitability. The industry needs to adapt to the changing market
conditions, innovate, and develop new products to remain competitive and profitable.
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INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND ADEQUACY

The Company has an internal audit function designed to review the adequacy of internal control
checks in the system which covers all significant areas of Company’s operations such as
accounting and finance, procurement, business operations, statutory compliances, I'T processes,
safeguarding the assets and their protection against unauthorized use, among others. The
Internal Audit function performs the internal audit of Company’s activities based on an internal
audit plan, which is reviewed each year and is approved by the Board of Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee reviews the report submitted by the internal auditors. Suggestions for
improvement are considered and the audit committee follows up on corrective action.
Disciplinary action is taken, wherever required, for non-compliance to corporate policies and
controls.

The Company has also implemented effective systems for achieving highest level of efficiency
in operations, to achieve optimum and effective utilization of resources, monitoring thereof
and the compliance with provisions all laws including the Companies Act, 2013, Listing
Agreement, directions issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, labour laws, tax
laws etc. It also aims at improvement in financial management, and investment policy. The
System ensures appropriate information flow to facilitate effective monitoring.

HUMAN RESOURCES

We believe that our employees are key contributors to our business success. We focus on
attracting and retaining the best possible talent. Our Company looks for specific skill-sets,
interests and background that would be an asset for our business.

As on March 31, 2024, the Company had 796 employees on payroll. The manpower is a prudent
mix of experienced and young professionals which gives us the dual advantage of stability and
growth. The work progress and skilled/ semi-skilled/ unskilled resources, together with the
Company’s strong management team, have enabled it to successfully implement our growth
plans.

The Company also imparts behavioral, technical and on the job training to our employees.
Technical trainings are mandated by the vendor whenever the employees have to deal with pre-
technical or post technical issues. Training calendars are set by the vendors and nominated
employees from our Company attend the program and obtain a feedback on the completion of
the program.

OUTLOOK

As we step into financial year 2025, I am filled with excitement and confidence in the direction
Pavna Industries Limited is heading. This year is set to be transformative, as our recent strategic
initiatives and investments reflect our commitment to growth in the automotive sector.

The acquisition of (4,335 sq. mtr.) land in June in Pantnagar, Uttarakhand, is a pivotal step in
our expansion strategy. This new greenfield plant will serve primarily to the production of
high-quality die cast components. By leveraging the logistical and cost advantages of
Pantnagar, we are in a good position to align our operations and better serve our key clients
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like Bajaj Auto. This expansion will not only enhance our operational capacity but also attract
a broader range of OEMs in the region.

The Indian auto component industry is experiencing significant growth, driven by increased
vehicle production and surge in electric vehicle adoption. Leveraging the government's
Production Linked Incentive (PLI) scheme, favourable trade policies, and the increased inflow
of domestic and foreign investments into the automotive sector, Pavna is well positioned to
capitalize on emerging opportunities, driving the business forward, and solidifying our position
in the auto sector.

As we embark on this journey, we remain optimistic about the future of the industry and our
role within it. Pavna Industries is committed to supporting the 'Aatmnirbhar Bharat' initiative
by manufacturing high-quality indigenous components in our facilities. Our focus on
innovation, quality, and strategic expansion will drive our growth and ensure we continue to
meet the evolving needs of our clients and the market. We are excited about the opportunities
that lie ahead and we are confident in our ability to deliver remarkable value to our customers,
shareholders, and stakeholders.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately
previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations of Standalone
Financial Statements are as follows:

As at %
As at 31 Change
Measurnment 31 March | March March
Ratio Unit 2024 2023 2024
Current Ratio Times 1.02 1.08 -0.06
Debt Equity Ratio Times 1.70 1.54 0.10
Debt Service coverage Ratio Times 1.53 1.94 -0.21
Return on equity ratio % 0.13 0.13 -0.06
Inventory Turnover Ratio Times 2.90 3.00 -0.03
Trade Receivables turnover Ratio Times 5.85 6.23 -0.06
Trade Payables turnover Ratio Times 6.05 5.66 0.07
Net Capital turnover ratio Times 131.39 27.53 3.77
Net Profit ratio % 0.03 0.03 -0.01
Return on Capital Employed % 0.16 0.16 -0.01
Return on Investment % 0.30 0.28 0.07
Reasons for Changes in ratio above 25%:
Ratio Reason
MSME creditors have been paid which has lead to
decrease in Trade payable, thus having an impact on the
Net Capital turnover ratio ratios
Return on Investment Increase in Profits as compared to previous year
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“Annexure-2”

DISCLOSURES OF PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF
ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO AS PRESCRIBED UNDER RULE 8 OF THE COMPANIES
(ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

The Company has always been conscious about conservation of energy in its Manufacturing
Plants which leads to optimized consumption of non-renewable fossil fuels, energy
productivity, climate change mitigation and reduction in operational costs. Your Company
carries out its operations in an environmental friendly manner and continuously active to find
ways to for the betterment of the Company as well as for the society.

During the year, the Company has consumed total 789906 Units renewable electricity in its
operation.

Energy Conservation projects have been implemented at all Plants and Offices of the Company
in a planned and budgeted manner. In FY 2023-24, all Plants achieved significant reduction in
fixed energy consumption on non-working days by administrative and process controls. Some
of the major decision includes:

- amachinery based meters has been installed for each machine to calculate consumption.

- Gas furnace replaced with electricity to control environment pollution from release of
Carbon Monoxide.

- Installed in our all plants cooling towers to cut down use of water and chemicals that
also lower the risk of bacterial contamination.

- Replaced all lighting equipment with LED to reduce consumption of electricity.
- Installed exhaust blowers in every plants.

- Installed Automatic Dispensing Cabinet Machines interlock systems with timer that
helps in control of waste of electricity.

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

Efforts made towards innovation, technology development, absorption and adaptation



PV

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

- The Company used Annual Technology Planning & Development cycle for managing
its engineering and technology initiatives. The process framework enables
identification, development and deployment of the right technologies for future
products. Making use of the Technology Creation and Development System (TCDS)
process, the same has been institutionalized across its businesses.

- The Company is setting up lean and agile innovation hubs. These hubs will operate like
start-ups with focus on testing of solutions and go-to-market strategies.

Specific areas in which R & D carried out by the Company

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO

During the year the Company has imported raw material out of India of Rs 34.64 Lakh

Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

Particulars JPY USS$
Import in Foreign currency 984500 34,543.8
Particulars EURO USS$
Export in Foreign currency 2,28,178.63 12,700

Date: September 4, 2024
Place: Aligarh

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Sd/-

Swapnil Jain
Managing Director
DIN:01542555
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DETAILS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KMPS AND EMPLOYEES
AND COMPARATIVES

[Pursuant to Section 197 and Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of ManagerialPersonnel) Rules, 2014]

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the
employees of the Company and the percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in
the FY 2023-24:

Ratio of
remuneration | %, increase in
SI | Name of Directors | Designation to the
3 %
median Remuneration
remuneration
1 | Mr. Swapnil Jain Managing Director 1.09 | -
Chairperson &

2 | Mrs. Asha Jain Executive Director ] ]

Mrs. Priya Jain

3 Executive Director - -
4 Mr. Ravindra Chief Executive i i
Jagannathrao Pise Officer
5 | Mrs. Palak Jain Chief Financial Officer | - -
. Company Secretary &
6 | Mrs. Charu Singh R 0.12
7 | Ms. Kanchan Gupta Additional Company i 1
Secretary
Notes:
1. Mrs. Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya jain are Executive Director and are not getting

remuneration.

2. Apart from sitting fees no other remuneration has been paid to the Non-Executive
Independent Directors.

3. Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh was appointed as additional Independent Director w.e.f
14.08.2024.

4. Mr. Makarand Mahajan resigned from the post of Chief Financial Officer w.e.f
31.07.2023 and Mr. Ravindra Madan Mohan Agrawal was appointed on
11.09.2023 but resigned w.e.f 28.12.2023. Mrs. Palak Jain was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer w.e.f 20.01.2024.



s 1o AV4 114

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

5. Mrs. Charu Singh resigned from the post of Company Secretary & Compliance

Officer w.e.f 28.08.2024.

6. Ms. Kanchan Gupta was appointed as an additional Company Secretary w.e.f
01.09.2023 and was re-designated as the Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

w.e.f 04.09.2024.

2024: 796

b. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as at March 31,

Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees
including the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its
comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances

for increase in the managerial remuneration:

During the year increment has been taken place.

Remuneration | Remuneration
of of % increase in
Name of Director/ KMP Director/KMP | Director/ KMP l(':‘ Y. 2023-24

in F.Y. 2022- in F.Y. 2023- T

23 24
Swapnil Jain 21,600,000 21,600,000 -
Asha Jain - - -
Priya Jain - - -
Not Applicable as
Ravindra Jagannathrao Pise - 28,00,000 new Joinee
Ram Karan Malik 2,628,000 2,628,000 -
Arun Khanna 2,304,000 2,544,000 0.10
Pankaj Kumar Aggarwal 2,515,560 2,515,560 -
Vijay Sharma 2,400,000 3,600,000 0.50
Alok Kumar Sharma 1,500,000 1,860,000 0.24
Not Applicable as
Dilip Bhalchandra Godse - 750,000 new Joinee
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Not Applicable as
Makarand Mahajan 1,500,000 500,000 resigned
Ravindra Manda Mohan Not Applicable as
Agrawal - 1,050,968 new Joinee
Not Applicable as
Palak Jain - 324,150 new Joinee
Charu Singh 711,951.00 796,560 0.12
Not Applicable as
Kanchan Gupta - 628,754 new Joinee

*Date of resignation of Mr. Makarand Mahajan is w.e.f. 31.07.2023

Date of appointment of Ms. Kanchan Gupta is w.e.f 01.09.2023.

Comparison of the remuneration of the key managerial personnel against the
performance of the Company:

As per the policy, increases are dependent on actual performance rating as well as the
business performance and increase in scope of work entrusted.

The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid Director to that of the employees who are
not Directors but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid Director during the year

—-NA

Statement of particulars of employees pursuant to the provisions of Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 for the year ended March 31, 2024.

List of Top 10 Employees of the Company

Expe
rienc Age | Particulars
Remunerati | Nature of e (in Date of | (in | of last
S.N on (in Rs.) | Employm | Qualific | years | Appoint | Yea | Employme
0. Name Designation | Per month | ent ations ) ment | rs) | nt
Pavna
Mr Swapnil Managing 1-Aug- Industries
1 Jain Director 1800000 | Permanent | Mba 20 2019 | 39 Limited
Cooper
Ravindra Be Cooperation
Jagannathrao (Mecha 1-Sep- Satara &
2 Pise CEO 400000 | Permanent | nical) 39 2023 | 63 Bajaj
Diploma
In Tool Sandhar
Ram Karan & Die 19-Oct- Technologie
3 Malik CTO 219000 | Permanent | Making | 35 2010 | 62 s Ltd
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Diploma
In
Mechani 1-Apr- Huf India
4 Arun Khanna AGM 212000 | Permanent | cal Eng. | 35 2015 | 63 Pvt Ltd
Diploma
Pankaj In Bmd Pvt
Kumar Mechani 25-Nov- Ltd (Lnj
5 Aggarwal AVP 209630 | Permanent | cal Eng. | 37 2019 | 57 Group)
Be Fiem
(Mecha 1-Jan- Industries
6 Vijay Sharma VP 200000 | Permanent | nical) 30 2020 | 56 Ltd
Mr S.C 1-Jul- Gulati Auto
7 Rajpoot GM 185000 | Permanent | B.Tech | 29 2002 | 53 Pvt Ltd
M Integraph
Sukhvinder CORPIT 3-Dec- Systms Pvt
8 Singh HEAD 175000 | Permanent | M Com | 24 2021 | 53 Ltd
Anu
Alok Kumar Me 1-Jun- Industries
9 Sharma AGM 155000 | Permanent | (Design) | 24 2020 | 44 Ltd
Dilip
Bhalchandra UNIT Me 1-Nov- Badve Engg
10 Godse HEAD 150000 | Permanent | (Design) | 39 2023 | 61 Ltd

g. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company:

The remuneration for MD/ED/KMP/rest of the employees is as per the remuneration
policy of theCompany

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Sd/-

Swapnil Jain

Date: September 4, 2024 Managing Director
Place: Aligarh DIN:01542555
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“Annexure-4”

Form AOC -1

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/ associate
companies/ joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.)

Rs.in Lacs
Sl Particulars Amount Amount Amount Amount
Swapnil Pavna Auto Sunlv)va(:,rlig Pavna
1 | Name of the subsidiary Switches Engineering Autotech Marketing
Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Ltd. Pvt. Lid. Pvt. Ltd.
Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if
2 | different  from  the
holding company’s | FY 2023-24 FY 2023-24 | FY 2023-24 [ FY 2023-24
reporting period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on the
last date of the relevant
3 Financial year in the
case of foreign NA NA NA NA
subsidiaries.
4 | Share capital (Rs.) 60.9 60.9 100 10
5 | Reserves & surplus 535.56 1881.82 28.82 290.91
6 | Total assets 1020.75 3124.05 194.76 1771.29
7 | Total Liabilities 1020.75 3124.05 194.76 1771.29
8 | Investments 0 0 0 0
9 | Turnover 805.68 3543.28 65.23 4691.42
10 | Profit before taxation 96.49 162.94 -23.51 181.19
11 | Provision for taxation 12.63 41.76 -2.78 49.08
12 | Profit after taxation 83.86 121.18 -20.73 132.11
13 | Proposed Dividend 0 0 0 0
14 | % of shareholding 50.74% 50.74% 71.50% 99.99%

The following information shall be furnished:-

1.

2.

Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations —Nil

Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year- Nil
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Form No. AOC-2
Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of
the Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the
company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso
thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis

S.N| Particulars [Remarks

(a) | Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship Nil

(b) | Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions Nil

(c) | Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions Nil

(d) | Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions Nil
including thevalue, if any

(e) | Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or Nil
transactions

(f) | Date(s) of approval by the Board Nil

(g) | Amount paid as advances, if any Nil

(h) | Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting| Nil
as requiredunder first proviso to Section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis

Name(s) of the related party Mr. Swapnil Jain Mrs. Asha Jain

M D - Di hiointh
Nature of relationship anaging Director 1n irectorship 1n the

the Company Company
Nature of ) - Building Rent
contracts/arrangements/tra - Remuneration - Trade Mark Royalty
nsaction - Interest - Interest
Duration of the contracts /

. 1 Year

arrangements/transactions 1 Year
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Salient terms of the contracts

or arrangements or

transactions including the

value, if any

As approved by the
Board of Directors
from time to time

As approved by the
Board of Directors
from time to time

Date(s) of approval by the

) 30-May-2023 30-May-2023
Board, if any
Amount paid as advances, if NA NA
any:
Name(s) of the related .
party Swapnil Pavna Auto Pavna Sunworld
Switches Pvt. Engineering Autotech Pvt.
Ltd. Private Limited  |Ltd.
Subsidiar Subsidiar Subsidiary Compan
Nature of relationship Cl(l)mpanyy Clcl)mpanyy " i pany
Nature of - Purchase -Purchase -Purchase
contracts/arrangements| _ Sale _Sale e
/transaction
Duration of the 1Y 1Y
contracts / 1 Year car car
arrangements/transa
ctions
Salltent :erms of the As approved As approved As approved by
contracts ort by theBoard by the Board theBoard of
arrangements or of Directors of Directors Directors from

transactions including
thevalue, if any

from time to
time

from time to
time

time to time

Date(s) ofapproval | 30 1002023 | 30-May-2023 | 30-May-2023
by theBoard, if any
Amount paid as NA NA NA

advances, ifany:
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Pavna PJ Wealth Pavna Goyam
Name(s) of the related | MarketingPvt. | Management Auto Private
party Ltd. & Consultant Limited
Pvt.Ltd.
Nature of relationship Subsidiary Group Company | SubsidiaryCompany
Company
Nature of contracts/ lgzlrghase Loan Taken Advances
arrangements
/transaction
Duration of the
contracts / 1 Year 1 | Year
arrangements/transa Year
ctions
Salient terms of the Ashapgrovzd tf)y As approved by |As approved by the
contracts or the Board o the Board of [Board of Directors
arrangements or Directors from Directors  from [from time to time
transactions including time to time . .
. time to time
thevalue, if any
Date(s) of approval
) 30-May-2023 30-May-2023 30-May-2023
by theBoard, if any
Amount paid as NA NA NA

advances, ifany:

Date: September 4, 2024
Place: Aligarh

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Sd/-
Swapnil Jain

Managing Director

DIN:01542555
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“ANNEXURE-5”
ANNUAL REPORT ON CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Corporate SocialResponsibility Policy) Rules, 2014]

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy

The Company is not only committed to being a good citizen, but also to being a good
neighbor in the communities we call home. We contribute as a company to various
charitable trusts and we seek to participate in ways that touch people's lives in these
communities. The Company aims to create educated, healthy, sustainable and culturally
vibrant communities. We also support employees’ commitment to our communities
through various programs including our volunteerism initiatives.

The Company’s philosophy of discharging its social responsibility goes beyond
donations and sponsoring charity events, where it engages with the society to maximize
the overall impact on the livelihood and welfare of people. The Company engages in
various dynamic initiatives which vary with the needs of the society and the
environment.

CSR policy of Pavna group placed on the Company’s website https://www.pavna.in

Overview of projects program proposed to be undertaken
The Company donated funds for promoting education, including special education and
employment enhancing vocation skills especially among children, women, elderly and
differently abled and livelihood enhancement projects.
Composition of CSR Committee:
The CSR Committee comprises of Mr. Swapnil Jain (Managing Director) as Chairman of
the Committee, Mr. Noazer Firoze Aibara (Independent Director) and Mrs. Priya Jain
(Executive Director) as members of the committee.
Average Net Profit of the Company for last three financial years: Rs. 850.00 Lakh
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of Average Net Profit): Rs. 17.00 Lakh
Details of CSR Spend during the financial year:

a. Total amount spent during the year- Rs. 17.00 Lakh

b. Amount unspent, if any: 0.00 Lakh
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(a)

CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Total Amount
Spent for the
Financial Year

Amount Unspent (in *)

Total Amount transferred to
Unspent CSR Account

Amount transferred to any fund
specified under Schedule VII as per

(" in lakh) as per Section 135(6) second proviso to Section 135(5)
Amount Date of Transfer | Name of | Amount Date of
Fund Transfer
Nil Nil - Nil -—-- -
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11
Sl. | Name Item from | Local | Location of the | Project Amount Amount Amount Mode of Mode of
No | of the the area project duration | allocated | transferred | transferred | Implementation Implementation
Project | list of (Yes/ (in for the to to - Direct - Through
activities | No) years) project Unspent Unspent (Yes/No) Implementing
in (in CSR CSR Agency
Schedule lakh) Account Account
VII for for
to the Act the project | the project
as as
per Section | per Section
135(6) 135(6)
(" in lakh) (* in lakh)
State | District Name CSR
Registration
number
NOT APPLICABLE
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Sl. | Name of the Item from the Local Location of the Amount Mode of | Mode of Implementation -
No | Project list of activities area project spent for impleme | Through Implementing Agency
in Schedule VII (Yes/No) the project | ntation
to the Act (" inlakh) | - Direct
(Yes/No)
State District Name CSR Registration
1. |Promoting Education No Delhi Delhi 17.00 No Shree Shantinath
Education Akampan Kahan
Digamber Jain
Trust
(d) Amount spent in administrative Overheads Nil
() Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if Applicable Nil
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(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year : Rs. 17.00 Lacs

Responsibility Statement

The implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy is in compliance with CSR
objectives and policy of the Company.

The CSR Committee ensures that the projects and programmers, recommended by it to
the Board, are as per theCSR Policy and Schedule VII to the Companies Act, 2013.

The CSR Committee reviews update on the progress of the activities with respect to
each programmer and/ or project approved, from time to time and suggests measures

for effective implementation thereof.

The statement of expenses incurred for each activity is reviewed in detail vis-a-vis the

budget.
For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited
Sd/-
Swapnil Jain
Date: September 4, 2024 Managing Director

Place: Aligarh DIN:01542555
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“ANNEXURE-6”

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31%, 2024
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014

TO,

THE MEMBERS,

PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED
VIMLANCHALHARI NAGAR ALIGARH,
UTTAR PRADESH UP 202001 IN

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and
the adherence to good corporate practices by PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED (CIN:
L34109UP1994PLC016359) (hereinafter called (“The Company”). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of Company’s books, papers, registers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the
financial year ended on March 31%, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31%, 2024 according to the
provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made there under;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-law framed there under;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -
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a)

b)

d)

2)

h)

)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (No Specific transactions were found during the reporting
period.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,
1992; (No specific transactions were found during the reporting period.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2015; (No specific transactions were found during the
reporting period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (No specific transactions were found during the
reporting period.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (No specific transactions were found
during the reporting period, to which the above guidelines shall be applicable.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; (No specific transactions were found during the reporting period, to
which the above guidelines shall be applicable.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client. (Specific
compliances with respect to the regulations were adhered to by the company during the
reporting period.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; (No specific transactions were found during the reporting period, to which the above
guidelines shall be applicable.)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998.
(No specific transactions were found during the reporting period, to which the above
guidelines shall be applicable.)

Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representations made by the Management.
(1) The Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(2) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with NSE Limited, read with

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 to the extent listing of Equity shares;

During the period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act,
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Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc.

Y

2)

3)

Form CSR-2 is applicable to the Company; the company is trying to file the form but due
to system migration from V2 to V3 portal the company is not able to file the same. The
company has raised the ticket to MCA but till the date of audit no response is received.
Form CSR-2 is pending as on report date.

As per Reg.17(1A) The Company has to take the prior approval of the members of the
company by passing special resolution for appointment of director whose age is more than
75 years. The company has appointed the director having age more than 75 years by passing
special resolution instead of getting prior approval, therefore penalty of Rs. 56000/- has
imposed by NSE and BSE.

As per regulation 24(1) of LODR, At least one independent director on the board of
directors of the listed entity shall be a director on the board of directors of an unlisted
material subsidiary, whether incorporated in India or not. The Company is listed on main
board on 1st June, 2023. The Company has appointed the independent director in material
subsidiary on 08th February, 2024, during previous financial year.

The regulation 24 is silent on the time period within which director shall be appointed, hence

4)

S)

a)

b)

c)

d)

we are unable to comment on non-compliance of the same.

The company during the reporting period has filed a few e-forms including Form DIR-12
and Form MGT-14 with additional fees. Therefore, it has to be treated as compliance after
the due date along with payment of additional fees.

We also adhere the same “remarks or observations” as pointed out by the statutory Auditor
in his report and the company in financial statements as on date 31.03.2024.

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of
Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provisions of the Act.

All the decisions of the Board as well as committee meetings are carried out unanimously
as recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of directors or the committees of
the Board, as the case may be.

Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and
recorded as part of the minutes.

I further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.
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I further report that during the audit period, the following mentioned events/ actions having a major
bearing on the company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations,
guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above.

FOR D. SAGAR & ASSOCIATES,

CS SAGAR RAMRAO DEO

(Practicing Company Secretary) Place: CH. Sambhajinagar CP No: 11547
(Aurangabad)

UDIN: F009518F000972568

Peer Review NO.: 1192/2021 Date: 14/08/2024

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “ANNEXURE-I”
and forms an integral part of this report.
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TO,

ANNEXURE-I

THE MEMBERS,

PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED,
VIMLANCHALHARI NAGAR ALIGARH,
UTTAR PRADESH UP 202001 IN

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records.

The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
Secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books
of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited
to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted
the affairs of the Company and non-compliances reported shall not be conclude as complete
& final.

FOR D. SAGAR & ASSOCIATES,

Sd/-

CS SAGAR RAMRAO DEO

(Practicing Company Secretary) Place: CH. Sambhajinagar CP No: 11547
(Aurangabad)

UDIN: F009518F000972568
Peer Review NO.: 1192/2021 Date: 14/08/2024
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FORM NO. MR-3 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
For The Financial Year Ended 31.03.2024

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To

The Members,

M/s PAVNA AUTO ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: US0300UP1994PTC016358

Registered Office: Pala Sahibabad Road Gopal Puri Aligarh,
Uttar Pradesh, India - 202001

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s Pavna Auto
Engineering Private Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). The Company is
a unlisted Private Company, having CIN: U50300UP1994PTC016358 for the
Financial Year ended 31% March 2024. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during
the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 315 March, 2024 (“Audit
Period”), complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the
Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 315 March, 2024
according to the provisions of:

I The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

I The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
NOT APPLICABLE;

. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; NOT
APPLICABLE;
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IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made
thereunder (‘FEMA”) to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; NOT APPLICABLE;

V. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of

Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 2015;

¢) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee
Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and
Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act

and dealing with client;

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 2018;

i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

The Company is a Private Company, hence not applicable.

VL. The Company has identified laws specifically to the Company and we have relied
upon the representation made by the company and its officer for the system and
mechanism framed by the Company for compliances made under the following
laws:

a) Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 And their
applicable rules.
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b) The Factories Act, 1948 and their application rules and notifications.

¢) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and Rules issued
by the State Pollution Control Boards.

d) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1975 and Rules issued
by the State Pollution Control Boards.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

Compliance with the applicable Secretarial Standards with regard to meetings of the
Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India (ICSI);

Accordingly, we state that during the period under review there were adequate
systems and processes in place to monitor and ensure compliance with various
applicable laws and that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Acts,
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above.

We have not examined compliance by the company with respect to:

1. Applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, maintenance of
financial records, etc., since the same have been subject to review by statutory
(financial) auditors, tax auditors and other designated professionals.

2. Listing Agreement with the Stock Exchange(s), as the company is a Private
Company.

3. As informed by the company the industry specific laws/general laws as applicable
to the company has been complied with. The management has also represented and
confirmed that all the laws, rules, regulations, orders, standards and guidelines as
are specifically applicable to the Company relating to Industry/Labour etc., have
been complied with.

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
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secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) The Compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws like direct taxes
and indirect taxes and maintenance of financial records and books of accounts
has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same has been the subject to be
review by statutory financial audit and designated professionals.

d) Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about
the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the Corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management
has conducted the affairs of the Company.

We have checked the compliance management system of the Company, to
obtain reasonable assurance about the adequacy of systems in place to ensure
compliance of specifically applicable laws and this verification was done on test
basis. We believe that the Audit evidence which we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

I further report that:

* The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper
balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors. The changes in the
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

* Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further Information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.
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» All Decisions of the Board were carried out with requisite majority.

I further report that:

We are of the opinion that Management has adequate systems and processes
placed in the Company which is commensurate with the size and operations of
the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with all applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

I further report that:

During the audit period, no event/ action having a major bearing on the
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the laws, rules, regulations, guidelines,
standards, etc. have taken place.

We further report that during the audit period, the Company has following
specific events/actions having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in
pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.
referred to above:

1) The Company has availed the credit facilities from HDFC Bank
amounting to Rs. 5,19,00,000/- (Five Crore Nineteen Lacs Only) on the
terms and conditions including the securities to be created in favour of the
HDFC Bank as contained in HDFC Bank’s letter of offer/ sanction letter
dated 20™ July 2023.

2) The Company held its Annual General Meeting dated 30/09/2023

3) Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN - 09835701) has appointed as and additional director
(Non-Executive and Independent Position) of the Company w.e.f. 08"
February 2024, pursuant to regulation 24(1) of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015 as the said Company is a material subsidiary of Listed
Holding Company.
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This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure “A” and forms an integral part of this report.

Place: Agra

Date: 28/08/2024 (Company Secretaries)
Sd/-

Fes Ankur Verma

(verma ankur & co.)

Proprietor

M. No.: 11072

C.P. No.: 15924

Peer Review Certificate No.: 5392/2023
UDIN: F011072F001066940
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Annexure -A

To

The Members,

M/s PAVNA AUTO ENGINEERING PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: US0300UP1994PTC016358

Registered Office: Pala Sahibabad Road Gopal Puri Aligarh,
Uttar Pradesh, India — 202001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

Management’s Responsibility:

1. It is the responsibility of the management of the Company to maintain
secretarial records, devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the systems
are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility:
2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records,
standards and procedures followed by the Company with respect to secretarial
compliances.

3. We have conducted the Audit as per the applicable Auditing Standards issued
by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

4. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s
management is adequate and appropriate for us to provide a basis for our
opinion.

5. Wherever required, we have obtained reasonable assurance whether the
statements prepared, documents or records, in relation to Secretarial Audit,
maintained by the Company, are free from misstatement.

6. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer:

7. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability
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of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the
management has conducted affairs of the Company.

8. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Place: Agra

Date: 28/08/2024 (Company Secretaries)
Sd/-
Fes Ankur Verma

(verma ankur & co.)

Proprietor

M. No.: 11072

C.P. No.: 15924

Peer Review Certificate No.: 5392/2023

UDIN: FO11072F001066940
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

“Annexure-7”
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“Annexure-7"

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
COMPANY ’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

As a Company, the Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance is founded upon a rich legacy of fair,
ethical and transparent governance practices, many of which were in place even before they were Omandated by
adopting the highest standards of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behavior.

The Company has adopted the Code of Conduct for its employees, including the Managing and Executive
Director and other senior Managerial Personnel, which encompasses an appropriate mechanism to report any
concern pertaining to non-adherence to the said Code. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct
for its Non-executive Directors which includes a Code of Conduct for Independent Directors, as specified under
Schedule IV of the Act and of the SEBI Listing Regulations, all members of senior management have confirmed
that there are no material, financial and commercial transactions wherein they have a personal interest that may
have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. Also the Company has Code of Conduct for
Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices (Insider Trading Code), pursuant
to the provisions of Regulations 8 and 9 under the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015. The
Company is in full compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI Listing
Regulations’).

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises of 10 Directors, out of which 5 Directors are Independent Directors.

SL. | pIN NAME OF DIRECTOR DESIGNATION

01 00035024 | Mrs. Asha Jain Chairperson and Executive Director

02 01542555 | Mr. Swapnil Jain Managing Director

03 03355623 | Mrs. Priya Jain Executive Director

04 08759817 | Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara Independent Director

05 09835701 | Mr. Dhruv Jain Independent Director (w.ef 14.02.2023)

06 09811030 | Mrs. Himani Bhootra Independent Director (w.e.f 17.04.2023)

07 09485101 | Mrs. Priyanka Moodra Independent Director (w.e.f 14.08.2023)

08 03008142 | Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain Non- Executive Director

09 08940098 | Mr. Achyutanand Ramchandra Independent Director (w.e.f 01.09.2023)
Mishra

10 10277614 | Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh Additional Independent Director (w.e.f

14.08.2024)

Mr. Achyutanand Ramchandra Mishra (DIN: 08940098) earlier resigned from the post of Independent Director
on 20" April, 2023. But again he is re-appointed by the Shareholders as an Independent Director w.e.f 1
September, 2023 by passing a Special Resolution.

ANNUAL REPORT 2023-24

Mr. Keshav Rathi was appointed as an additional Non-Executive Independent Director by the Board of Directors in
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the meeting held on 20" April, 2023 but he resigned on 14™ August, 2023.

Mrs. Himani Bhootra was appointed by the board of Directors w.e.f 17.04.2023 and approved by the Shareholders
on 29.09.2023.

Mrs. Priyanka Moodra was appointed by the board of Directors w.e.f 14.08.2023 and approved by the Shareholders
on 29.09.2023.

The IDs have further stated that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be
reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective,
independent, judgment and without any external influence. The Company has received confirmation from all the
existing IDs of their registration on the Independent Directors Database maintained by the Institute of Corporate
Aftairs pursuant to Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. All the
Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their Directorships as required under Section 184 of the
Act and on the Committee positions held by them in other companies. None of the Directorson the Company’s
Board hold the office of Director in more than 20 companies, with not more than 10 public Companies. None of
the IDs serve as IDs in more than 7 listed entities and in case they are whole-time Directors/managing Directors
in any listed entity, then they do not serve as IDs in more than 3 listed entities. In accordance with Regulation
26 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, none of the Directors are members in more than 10 committees or act as
chairperson of more than 5 committees. All Non-Independent Non-executiveDirectors (‘NINEDs”) are liable
to retire by rotation.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD

During the year under review, 13 Board Meetings were held on dates as per table-

01 | Monday, 17-April-2023 02 | Thursday, 20-April-2023 03 | Thursday, 30-May-2023
04 | Tuesday, 27-June-2023 05 | Monday, 31-July-2023 06 | Monday, 14-August-2023
07 | Thursday, 01-September-2023| 08 | Thursday, 11-October-2023 | 09 g(t)lggday, 07-November-

10 | Wednesday, 10- January-2024| 11 | Saturday, 20-January-2024 12 | Saturday, 10-February-

2024
13 | Wednesday, 14- February-
2024

The following table, illustrates the composition of the Board, Director’s attendance at Board Meetings held
during the financial year under review and at the last AGM, number of Directorships held in other companies,
total number of committee positions held, their shareholding in the Company’s shares names of other entities
in which Directorship is held, including category of Directorships, as at March 31, 2024:

Name of No. of Board | Attendance | Holding in | Directorships in
Director Meetings attended at the Company’s other Listed
in the year last AGM Shares Entities
Mrs. Asha Jain 13 No 58,21,960 -
Mr. Swapnil Jain 13 Yes 13,56,560 -
Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara | 12 Yes - -
Mr. Achyutanand Mishra | 9 No - -
Mrs. Priya Jain 13 Yes 4,04,000 -
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Jain 12 Yes - -
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Mr. Dhruv Jain 13 Yes 5000 -
Mr. Keshav Rathi 3 No - -
Ms. Himani Bhootra 10 No - -
Ms. Priyanka Moondra 7 No - -
Rathi

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has four (4) Committees i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee, Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee and Stakeholder Relationship Committee constitution of which is given below:

A. AUDIT COMMITTEE

Date of Name of Director and Designation in Committee
Meeting Naozer Firoze Aibara Dhruv Jain Swapnil Jain Keshav Rathi
Independent Director | Independent Director Managing Director |Independent Director
Chairman Member Member Member
30/05/2023 Y - Y Y
14/08/2023 Y Y Y -
11/10/2023 Y Y Y NA
07/11/2023 Y Y Y NA
10/01/2024 Y Y Y NA
20/01/2024 Y Y v NA
10/02/2024 Y Y Y NA
14/02/2024 Y Y Y NA

The Board of the Company has constituted a qualified and independent Audit Committee All members of the audit
committee have sound knowledge on the financial matters and ability to read and understand financial matters.

Mr. Achyutanand Ramkrishna Mishra and Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (Independent Directors) has been introduced as
members w.e.f August 14, 2024 in the Audit Committee.

Terms of Reference for the Audit Committee:

Powers of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall have powers, including the following:

to investigate any activity within its terms of reference;

to seek information from any employee;

to obtain outside legal or other professional advice;

to secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if it considers necessary; and

such other powers as may be prescribed under the Companies Act and SEBI Listing Regulations.

Role of Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the following:
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Recommendation for appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of
the Company and the fixation of the audit fee;

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the
financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible.

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory auditors.

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms
of clause (c¢) of sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;

Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management;

Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;

Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements;

Disclosure of any related party transactions;

Qualifications in the draft audit report; and

Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through an issue (public issue,
rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer
document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds
of a public or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and making appropriate
recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter;

reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;

approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties and omnibus approval for
related party transactions proposed to be entered into by the Company subject to such conditions as may be prescribed;

scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;
valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;
evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

reviewing with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal control
systems;

reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit department, statfing
and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit;

discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up there on;
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reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud
or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

to look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders, shareholders (in
case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;

to review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;

approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and background, etc. of
the candidate;

carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the audit committee;

reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in the subsidiary exceeding
%100 crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is lower including existing loans / advances /
investments existing;

consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving merger, demerger, amalgamation
etc., on the Company and its shareholders;

Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee;

Carrying out any other function as may be required / mandated as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and/or any other applicable laws;

the Audit Committee shall mandatorily review the following information:

a. Management discussion and analysis of financial information and results of operations;

b. Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the Audit Committee), submitted by the

management;

Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;

Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

e. The appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor shall be subject to review by the
Audit Committee.

/o

B. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has been constituted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as in terms of Regulation 19 of the SEBI Listing
Regulations comprising of requisite number of Independent Directors.
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Date of Name of Director and Designation in Committee |
Meeting Dhruv Jain Naozer Firoze Aibara Sanjay Kumar Jain
Independent Director Independent Director (Non-Executive Director)
Chairman Member Member
17/04/2023 - Y Y
20/04/2023 - Y Y
31/07/2023 - Y Y
14/08/2023 - Y Y
01/09/2023 Y - Y
07/11/2023 Y - Y
10/01/2024 Y - Y
20/01/2024 Y - Y

Mr. Achyutanand Ramkrishna Mishra and Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (Independent Directors) has been
introduced as members w.e.f August 14, 2024 in the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Terms of Reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and
recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other
employees (“Remuneration Policy”).

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, while formulating the above policy, should ensure that:

(a) the level and composition of remuneration be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors
of the quality required to run our Company successfully;

(b)  relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

(©) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflecting short- and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company
and its goals;

Formulation of criteria for evaluation of independent directors and the Board;

Devising a policy on Board diversity;

Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management in
accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal and carrying out
evaluation of every director’s performance (including independent director);

Analysing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensation matters;

Deciding whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the report
of performance evaluation of independent directors;

Recommending to the board, all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to senior management and other staff, as
deemed necessary;

Determining the Company’s policy on specific remuneration packages for executive directors including pension rights
and any compensation payment, and determining remuneration packages of such directors;
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Reviewing and approving the Company’s compensation strategy from time to time in the context of the then current
Indian market in accordance with applicable laws;

Perform such functions as are required to be performed by the compensation committee under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014, if applicable;

Frame suitable policies, procedures and systems to ensure that there is no violation of securities laws, as amended from
time to time, including:

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; and

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Practices Relating to the
Securities Market) Regulations, 2003, by the trust, the Company and its employees, as applicable; and

Perform such other activities as may be delegated by the Board or specified/ provided under the Companies Act, 2013
to the extent notified and effective, as amended or by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended or by any other applicable law or regulatory authority.

C. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Company in terms of Section 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee comprising of 3 (Three) members. The Company contributes to eligible trust established which are
registered for the social cause to undertake CSR activities as per applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013. These
trust are pursing various activities namely upliftment of socio—economic backward society by providing health,
education and selfemployment.The Committee will also monitor the usage of the funds in the desired activities on a
regular basis.

Date of Meeting Name of Director and Designation in Committee
Swapnil Jain Naozer Firoze Aibara Priya Jain
(Managing Director) (Independent Director) (Executive Director)
Chairman Member Member
30/05/2023 Y Y Y
14/08/2023 Y Y Y
10/01/2024 Y Y Y

Role of CSR Committee is as under :

1. Formulating and recommending to the Board, CSR Policy and the activities to be undertaken by the
Company.

2. Recommending amount of expenditure to be incurred on activities undertaken.
3. To constitute Management Committee for implementation and execution of CSR initiatives/ activities.

4. Reviewing performance of the Company in the areas of CSR.
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5. Monitoring CSR Policy from time to time.
D. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Company has constituted Stakeholders Grievances Committee of the Board of Directors to look into the
redressal of investors’ grievances.

Date of Name of Director and Designation in
Meeting Committee
Mr. Sanjay Kumar Swapnil Jain Priya Jain Dhruv Jain
Jain (Non- (Managing (Executive (NE-
Executive Director) Director)Member Director)Member Independent
Chairman Director)
30/05/2023 Y Y Y -
10/01/2024 Y Y Y -

The Stakeholder Relationships Committee shall oversee all matters pertaining to investors of our Company.

Terms of Reference for the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee:

1.

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed entity including complaints related to transfer of shares or
debentures, including non-receipt of share or debenture certificates and review of cases for refusal of transfer /
transmission of shares and debentures, non-receipt of annual report or balance sheet, non-receipt of declared dividends,
issue of new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc. and assisting with quarterly reporting of such complaints;

Investigating complaints relating to allotment of shares, approval of transfer or transmission of shares, debentures, or
any other securities;

Giving effect to all transfer/transmission of shares and debentures, dematerialisation of shares and re-materialisation of
shares, split and issue of duplicate/consolidated share certificates, compliance with all the requirements related to shares,
debentures and other securities from time to time;

Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders;

Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed entity in respect of various services being rendered
by the registrar and share transfer agent of the Company and to recommend measures for overall improvement in the
quality of investor services;

Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the shareholders of the
company; and

Carrying out such other functions as may be specified by the Board from time to time or specified/provided under the

Companies Act or SEBI Listing Regulations, or by any other regulatory authority.

SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
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Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI Listing Regulations mandates the
Independent Directors of the Company to hold at least one meeting in a year, without the attendance of Non-
Independent Directors and Members of the Management. The Independent Directors discussed on the matters
pertaining to review of performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board of Directors as a whole including
the Chairperson of the Company (considering the views of the Executive Directors), assessed the quality, quantity and
timeliness of flow of information between the Management of the Company and the Board, so that the Board can
effectively and reasonably perform its duties.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Board has carried out
the annual evaluation of its own performance, of individual Directors and that of the Audit Committee. Feedback was
sought by way of a structured questionnaire covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy

of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board Culture, Execution and Performance of Specific Duties,
Obligations and Governance and the evaluation was done, based upon the responses received from the Directors. The
entire Board (excluding the Director being evaluated) carried out the performance evaluation of the Independent
Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Regulation 25(7) of the SEBI Listing Regulations, during the financial year 2023-24, the Company
imparted Familiarization Programme to Independent Directors to acquaint them about their roles, rights and
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, Prohibition of Insider
Trading Regulations, SEBI Listing Regulations, etc. The details of the familiarization programme are available on the
website of the Company at www.pavnagroup.in.

STATUS OF INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCES:

During the year 2023-24 no complaints were received by the Registrar and Transfer Agents. The Company regularly
updates the status of Investors Complaints on “SCORES”, an online portal introduced by SEBI for resolving investor’s
complaints. There were no investors’ complaints pending at the end of the financial year on the SCORES. Certain
grievances regarding revalidation of dividend warrants were received and were attended accordingly and no grievance
was outstanding as on 3 1st March, 2024.

Category

Number of
Complaint (s)
Pending (Begin)

Number of
Complaint (s)
Received

Number of
Complaint (s)
Resolved

Number of
Complaint (s)
Pending

SEBI (SCORES)

NSE

BSE

ODR

MCA

Depository

Others

Total
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GENERAL MEETINGS

The details of General Meetings of the Company held in last 3 years are as under:

Type of Meeting Date of Meeting Place of Meeting

Annual General Meeting Friday, 29" September, 2023 Pavna International
School, Agra-Aligarh

Annual General Meeting Tuesday, 27" September, 2022 Pavna International
School, Agra-Aligarh

Annual General Meeting Wednesday, 29" September, 2021 | DPS,  Junior ~ Wing,
Mandir Ka Nagla, Sasni
Road, Aligarh

Extra-Ordinary General Meeting was held through Postal ballot on 15" November, 2023.

Details of SR in the 1 rsin AGM/EGM

S.No. | Particulars ‘ Date
Re-Appointment of Mr. Achyutanand Ramchandra Mishra (DIN: 08940098)
as an Independent Director of the Company

1 29 September, 2023
Disinvestment in Subsidiary (Pavna Goyam Auto Private Limited) under 29 September, 2023
Section 180(1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013

2
Review and approve the Related Party Transactions 29" September, 2023

3
Regularization Of Additional Non-Executive Director, Mr. Sanjay Jain (Din:

03008142) As Non-Executive Director Of The Company

4 27" September, 2022
Approval Of Managerial Remuneration Of Mr. Swapnil Jain (Managing 27" September, 2022
Director)

5
To Review And Approve The Related Party Transaction 27" September, 2022

6
Appointment Of Statutory Auditor M/S. Rajeev Kumar & Co., Chartered 27" September, 2022
Accountants

7

Alteration in the remuneration of Mr. Swapnil Jain (Managing Director)
8 30™ June, 2020
Authorisation For Issue Of Shares Through Public Issue
9 30™ June, 2020
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Details of Resolution passed in the last 3 vears through postal Ballot

S.No. | Particulars Result Date

Increase authorised share capital of the company to Rs.18 Crores

1 15" November, 2023
Alteration of the capital clause of the memorandum of association 15" November, 2023

2
Raising of capital through a further public offering 15" November, 2023

3
Migration from SME to Main Board of NSE Limited and BSE Limited

4 26" August, 2022
Increase in Authorised Share Capital of the Company

5 26" August, 2022
Alteration of the Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association

6 26" August, 2022
Issue of Bonus Shares

7 26" August, 2022

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of

Pavna Industries Limited

Sd/-
Swapnil Jain
Date: September 4, 2024 Managing Director

Place: Aligarh DIN:01542555
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M]EEV KMR & COMPANY +91-8057555520 Telephone (O)
+91-9837068178 Mobile (P)
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

.B -120, CENTRE POINT auditors.aligarh@ gmail.com
MARRIS ROAD, ALIGARH-202001 www.rkcompanyca.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Pavna Industries Limited

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial

Statements Opinion

We have audited the accompan}ing Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of Pavna
Industries Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income),
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and noles to Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the Consolidated state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its Consolidated
statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income, its consolidated
statement of cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the
Act, and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
ovidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.




Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial
vear ended 315 March, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there
are no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Other Information

I'he Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the company’s ahnual report but does
ot include the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have no thing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act, with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and ostimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completenéss of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either



intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to

do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Regsonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but 1s not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Ind
AS Financial Statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our
auditor’s report.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the
Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to
the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

ol

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 2 (B) (f)
below on reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rules,
2014 ;

¢) The consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive income), the consolidated Cash Flow Statement and
the consolidated Statement of Changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the relevant book of account maintained for the purpose of
preparation of the consolidated financial statements ;

d)In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
company as on 31st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the

NN o



Holding company none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2(A)(b) above on reporting under
Section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2(B)(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g)
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014.

¢) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to
Financial Statements of the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Companies
incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure C” to this report;

(B)

With respect to the other matters (o be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
LS

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Consolidated Financial Statements. Refer income tax liabilities disclosed in the
consolidated balance sheet along with Note No. 43 of notes to accounts to the
consolidated financial statements.

i) The Group did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses during the year ended 31 March
2024;

i) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company during the year ended 31¢
March 2024, There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor
FEducation and Protection Fund by the subsidiary companies incorporated in India
during the vear ended 31st March 2024..

iv) i. The management of the Holding Company represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note- 45 of notes to accounts of the
consolidated financial statements , no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(cither from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
Dy the Holding Company or any of its Subsidiary companies incorporated in India to
or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any
of its Subsidiary companies incorporated in India (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii. The management of the Holding company represented that, to the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in Note- 45 of notes to accounts to the

consolidated financial statements , no funds have been received by the Holding
Company or any of its Subsidiary companies incorporated in India from any persons
or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding,
©ether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of its



Subsidiary companies incorporated in India shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

iii. Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) of Rule 11 (e) as
provided under (i) & (ii) above contain any material misstatement.

v) There is no interim dividend declared & paid by the Holding company during the
year and untl the date of this Audit Report.

vi) The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is
applicable from 1st April 2023. '

Based on our examination of holding company which included test checks, and as
communicated by the respective auditors of the subsidiaries, except for the instances
mentioned below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, except
PGAPL; have used accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which
have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated; in
case of the holding company w.e.f. 13 june, 2023 to the end of the year and in case of
the subsidiaries, except PGAPL; throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the respective software.

In case of the subsidiary PGAPL we have not received any confirmation from their
auditors in respect of the above therefore we are not able to comment on the same.
However PGAPL ceased to be subsidiary w.e.f. 11 May, 2023.

Further, for the periods where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and
operated for the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance
of the audit trail feature being tampered with.

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16)
of the Act:

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the
subsidiaries incorporated in India, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March
31, 2024 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company, its subsidiaries incorporated in
India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule
V 1o the Act.




Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements/ financial information of five subsidiaries,
namely, a) Pavna Marketing Private Limited (PMPL); b) Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private
Limited (PSAPL); c) Swapnil Switches Private Limited (SSPL); d) Pavna Auto Engineering
Private Limited (PAEPL) and e) Pavna Goyam Auto Private Limited (PGAPL) (Ceased to be
a subsidiary w.e.f. May 11 2023). These Financial statements and financial information have
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by management
and our opinion on consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the
amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and ouyr report in terms of
sub section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to aforesaid subsidiaries, is
based solely on the reports of other auditors. In respect of one of these subsidiaries i.e. Pavna
Goyam Auto Private Limited which ceased to be a subsidiary w.éf. May 11 2023, the
accounts are consolidated on the basis of unaudited financial statements of the subsidiary as
on May 11, 2023 on which limited review report of the Statutory Auditor has been issued.
The financial statements/ financial information of these subsidiaries refiect total assets of Rs.
6,101.43 Lacs as at 31st March, 2624, total revenues of Rs. 9,089.46 Lacs and net cash flows
amounting to Rs. (8.94) Lacs for year ended on that date, as considered in consolidated Ind
AS financial statements.

Our opinion on consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect
to our reliance on the work done and the reports of other auditors and financial statements/
{financial information certified by the management.

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000633C
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PLACE: ALIGARII CA RAJEEV KUMAR
DATE: 30 MAY 2024 PROPRIETOR
UDIN: 240301 03RK coMM 3463 M.NO. 070103
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AnnexureA

Responsibilities for Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« Fvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounling estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Iivalﬁate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any

significant deficiencies in internal control ﬂla};ffg identify during our audit.




We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000633C

A

PLACE: ALIGARH CA RAJEEV KUMAR
DATE: 30 MAY 2024 PROPRIETOR
UDIN: 24 030103 B3 KCOHM <269 M.NO. 070103
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors Report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 of the Holding Company did not include any
unfavorable answers or qualifications or adverse remarks. In respect of the following entities
the CARO report relating to them has not been issued by its auditor il the date of principal

auditor's report:

Name of Subsidiaries CIN

| PAVNA AUTO ENGINEERING PRIVATE | U50300UP1994PTC016358
LIMITED

PAVNA MARKETING PRIVATE LIMITED | U50400UP2019PTC116110

SWAPNIL SWITCHES PRIVATE LIMITED | U74899DL1991PTC042822

PAVNA SUNWORLD AUTOTECH | U74994UP2018PTC100570
PRIVATE LIMITED

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 000633C
P00 Q;__Qa_g—%
PLACE: ALIGARH CA RAJEEV KUMAR
DATE: 30 MAY 2024 PROPRIETOR

UDIN: 24073040238 KCOMMHE2¢Y M.NO. 070103




ANNEXURE C

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 {“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial veporting of PAVNA
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (the “company”) as of 31 March 2024 in conjuncton with our audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company for the year ended on that

date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of ade.quate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013(hereinatter referred to as
“The Act”)

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial
controls with reference to consclidated financial statements of the Holding Company based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal financial controls over financial reporting and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively
in all malerial respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporling and their operating



offectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effecliveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements. '

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting with reference to
Consolidated Financial Statements

A Holding company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Holding company's internal financial
control with reference to Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the holding company;

5 Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the holding company;
and

Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

[

acquisition, use, or disposition of the holding company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of PAVNA
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “The Holding Company”) as of and for
the year ended 31¢ March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with



reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and such companies incorporated
in India under the Companies Act, 2013, which are its subsidiary companies as of that date.

[n our opinion, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in India which are
its subsidiary companies have , in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on
the internal controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal controls stated in the Guidance
Note issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Qur aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
stalements insofar as it relates to subsidiary companies, is based on the corresponding
reports of the auditors of such companies except PGAPL which ceased to be a subsidiary
w.e.f. May 11, 2023,

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000633C

PLACE: ALIGARH CA RAJEEV KUMAR

DATE: 30 MAY 2024 PROPRIETOR

UDIN: 240 Fel03 BK (OMMS 2469 M.NO. 070103




PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED, ALIGARH
CIN: L34109UP1994PL.C016359

NOTES

These Consolidated Financial Information comprise the financial information of Pavna Industries Limited
hereinafter referred to as the ("Pavna Industries Limited" or "The Company") and its subsidiaries, (the
Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as "the Group"), for the years ended forming part of the
Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024. Pavna Industries Limited is a Public
Limited Company incorporated in India on 19 April 1994 under the Provision of Companies Act 1956.
The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing of Locks, Auto Locks and Auto Parts i India.

1. Corporate Information

The Group consists of 6 units i.e. Pavna Industries Limited (Holding Company) and its 5 (five)
subsidiaries Companies namely

(1) Pavna Marketing Private Limited (PMPL)

(2) Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private Limited (PSAPL)

(3) Swapnil Switches Private Limited (SSPL)

(4) Pavna Auto Engineers Private Limited (PAEPL)

(5) Pavna Goyam Auto Private Ltd. (PGAPL) (Ceased to exist w.e.f 1 1™ May 2023)

The Group has been re-organized (i.e in Q4 of FY 2019-20) such that all its key manufacturing activities
are consolidated into a single corporate Holding Company.

2. Significant Accounting Policies
a. Basis of Consolidation

The Company consolidate entities which it owns or controls. The consolidated financial statements
comprise the consolidated financial statements along with Statement of Adjustments to Audited
Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™). Control exists
when the Parent has power over the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the
entity. Power is demonstrated through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities,
those which significantly affect the entity’s returns. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
control commences until the date control ceases.

The Company re assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the
investee when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company considers all relevant facts and circumstances

in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power,
including:

a) the size of the Company’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings
of the other vote holders;

b) potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties;

¢) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and



d) any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has. or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made,
including voting patterns at previous shareholders® meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a
subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated Profit or Loss
from the date the Company gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Whenever necessary, adjustments are made to the consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses, and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Details of subsidiary company considered in the consolidated accounts:

S : Extent of Ownership / Control
R 0 e e e S s

Pavna Marketing Private Limited 100.00%

Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private Limited 74.00%

Pavna Auto Engineering Private Limited 50.74%

Swapnil Switches Private Limited 50.74%

Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt Ltd 51.00% (ceased to exist w.e.f 11" May 2023)

Basis of preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended have been prepared using
the historical audited general purpose financial statements of the Company as at respective Financial
year ended which was prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in India (IND AS) and
originally approved by the Board of Directors of the Company at that relevant time.

Accounting policies adopted in the preparation of consolidated accounts:

The consolidated accounts related to Pavna Industries Limited (Holding Company) and its subsidiaries
namely (1) Pavna Marketing Private Limited (PMPL), (2) Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private Limited
(PSAPL), (3) Swapnil Switches Private Limited (SSPL) and (4) Pavna Auto Engineers Private Limited
(PAEPL) (5) Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt Ltd. (hereinafter collectively referred as “Subsidiary

*Companies™), have been prepared in accordance with IND AS - 110 "Consolidated Financial
Statements" issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

The Consolidated Financial Information:

a) have been prepared based on line-by-line consolidation by adding together the book values
of each & every item like Assets, Liabilities, Income and Expenses as per the accounts of
the Holding Company and its Subsidiary Company and intra group balances/ intra group
transactions have been eliminated.

b) have been prepared afier incorporating adjustments in respect of changes in accounting
policies, material errors and regrouping/reclassifications, as may be applicable,
retrospectively in the financial years ended March 31, 2024

¢) do not require any adjustment for qualification as there are no qualifications in the underlying
audit reports.



d) The accounting policies have been consistently applied by the group in preparation of the
Consolidated Financial Information and are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of
Consolidated Financial Information for the year ended March 31, 2024. These Consolidated
Financial Information do not reflect the effects of events that occur subsequent to the respective
dates of Auditor’s report on the audited consolidated financial statements mentioned above.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared using uniform policies for like transactions
and other events in similar circumstances and are presented to the extent possible, in the same manner
as the holding company's individual accounts.

Historical Cost Convention

The Consolidated Financial Information have been prepared on the Historical cost basis, except for the
following items:

o Certain Financial Assets and liabilities measured at Fair Value.
e Defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value.

4

Estimates and Assumptions:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its
assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.
Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are
reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

b. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification.
Assets:
An asset is treated as current when it is:
a) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.
b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading
c) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or
d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period.
- All other assets are classified as non-current.
Liabilities:
A liability is current when:
(a) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
(b) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
(c) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

¢. Property, Plant & Equipment
Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of



materials and direct services, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to its working
condition for their intended use and cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing
costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising
on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss within other income.

Depreciation: Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method as per useful life specified in
schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of
additions. On assets sold, discarded, etc. during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of
sale/discard. Further, the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 requirés that useful life and
depreciation for significant components of an asset should be determined separately. The identification
of significant components is matter of technical judgment and is decided on case to case basis; wherever
applicable.

Asset Estimated useful life
Plant & equipment 8 years

Office equipment 10 years

Computers and Computer peripherals 3 years

Building 30 years

Car 8 years

Furniture and fixture 10 years

An exception to the above method of depreciation, Pavna Goyam Auto Private Ltd. (PGAPL) has
adopted WDV method for computing depreciation for the year.

d. Intangible Assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company to be measured initially at cost. Intangible assets
with finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and aceumulated impairment
.losses, if any. Software purchased by the Company are amortized on a straight line basis over 5 Years.

Amounts paid towards technical know-how fees for specifically identified projects/products being
development expenditure incurred towards product design is carried forward based on assessment of
benefits arising from such expenditure. Such expenditure is amortized over the period of expected future
sales from the related product, i.e. the estimated period of 60 to 72 months on straight line basis based
on past trends, commencing from the month of commencement of commercial production.

Technical knowhow

Amounts paid towards technical know-how fees for specifically identified projects/products being
development expenditure incurred towards product design is carried forward based on assessment of
benefits arising from such expenditure. Such expenditure is amortized over the period of expected future
sales from the related product commencing from the month of commencement of commercial
production.



e. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest and amortization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to
the borrowing costs.

.

f. Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency )

The Company’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees () which is also the
Company’s functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic
environment in which a Company operates and is normally the currency in which the Company
primarily generates and expends cash® All the financial information presented in * except where
otherwise stated.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value
are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

The company is not dealing in any kind of derivatives.

¢. Revenue Recognition

Revenue to be recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue to be measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and
excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.

Sale of goods

The Company recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation

were transferred to the customer. Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based on a 5-
Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume
discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if any, as
specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.



Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is
unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.
Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there is billings in excess of revenues.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in confract specification and
requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original
contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or
transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price is
revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition:

a) The Company’s contracts with customers could include promises to transfer products to a
customer. The Company assesses the products promised in a contract and identifies distinct
performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinct performance obligation involves
judgment to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer to begefit independently from
such deliverables. '

b) Judgment is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price
could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable consideration with elements
such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives. The transaction price is"also adjusted for the effects of the time value of money if the
contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is
adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the
customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting period. The Company
allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the performance obligations of the contract
unless there is observable evidence that they pertain to one or more distinct performance obligations.
¢) The Company uses judgment to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a
performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price

To each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct
product or service promised in the contract.

e) The Company exercises judgment in determining whether the performance obligation is
satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators such as how
customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created
or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to date and alternate use of such
product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the customer, acceptance of delivery
by the customer, etc.

Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion
- of the transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of

work performed.

Job work and development charges are recognized upon full completion of the job work and

development services and when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have

been passed to the buyer, on delivery of the goods and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the

collection of the consideration.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or
to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument



(for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in the statement of profit and loss

h. Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in, first
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale. The Cost in case of Work-in-Progress and finished goods to be inclusive of allocable
manufacturing overheads. The Provision for obsolescence to be made whenever necessary.

i. Leases

Finance lease

Leases of property, plant and equipment are classified as finance leases where the lessor has
substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company. ‘
Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are"charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to
compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 116, Leases, was notified as part of the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2019, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, vide notification dated March 30, 2019. These Rules came into force w.e.f. April
1, 2019. Accordingly, Ind AS 116, comes into effect in respect of annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1st April, 2019.

j- Employee's Benefits

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employee benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve
months of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits. When an employee has
rendered service to the Company during an accounting period, the Company recognises the
undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service
as an expense unless another Ind AS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an
asset. Benefits such as salaries, wages and short-term compensated absences, bonus and ex-gratia etc.

are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

A lability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid after deducting any amount already paid
under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation
can be estimated reliably. If the amount already paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits,
the Company recognises that excess as an asset /prepaid expense to the extent that the prepayment will
lead to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.

Defined contribution plan ;

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions to a statutory authority and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and contributions
paid/payable towards Provident Fund and Employee state insurance scheme (ESI) are recognised as an



expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related
service.

Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible
employees. The plan provides for a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while
in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s
salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs upon completion of five years of service. The
Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an independent
actuarial valuation report using the projected unit credit method as at the year end.

The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate
is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds at the reporting date with a
term that matches that of the liabilities. .

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling
(if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest and if applicable), is reflected
immediately in Other Comprehensive Income in the statement of profit and loss. All other expenses
related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee benefit
expenses. Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified to
statement of profit and loss hence it is treated as part of retained earnings in the statement of changes
in equity. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service
costs.

k. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is
recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any
reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted vsing a
current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of
discount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the
obligation, the provision is reversed.

1. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial
liability or equity instrument for another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
-Debt instruments at amortised cost



-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when:

(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

(ii) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party
under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retajned substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits received etc.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-Financial liabilities at amortised cost

-Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
anew liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

m. Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk
exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent
measurement at amortised cost e.g., trade and other receivables, security deposits, loan to employees,
etc. The Company to be follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for
trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes
in credit risk. Rather, it to be recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted
at the original effective interest rate.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At



every reporting date, the historically observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘CGU") is the greater of its value in use or
its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (‘CGU”).

An impairment loss is recognized, if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at end of each reporting period for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

n. Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

(a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

(b) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to
‘generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable



For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

0. Taxes on Income

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that
are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognmed outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income (OCI) or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for consolidated financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except when the deferred tax asset
relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax
assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either
in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the
underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

‘Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.

p- Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the consolidated balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balance on
hand, cash balance at banks and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of outstanding bank
overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.



q. Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to the shareholders of
the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding as at the end of reporting
period. Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the shareholders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the vear plus the
weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive
potential equity shares into equity shares.

We have also calculated EPS amount by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the sharcholders
of the Company by actual outstanding number of equity shares as at the end of reporting period.

r. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets ,

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a present obligation whose amount
cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless
the possibility of outflow of resources is remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed
in the consolidated financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it
is virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits will arise, the asset and related income are
recognised in the period in which the change occurs.

s. Segment Reporting

The Group is primarily engaged in the business of manufacture of auto components for two wheeler,
four wheelers and commercial vehicle industry, which are governed by the same set of risks and returns
but subject to the geographical industry trends and hence the Group’s business activities fall within a
single primary business segment. Hence disclosure of Segment wise information is not applicable under
IND AS — 108. Geographical segment is not material and hence not reported.

3. Notes on Consolidated Financial Statements

a. There is no employee who is in the receipt of remuneration exceeding the limit prescribed in
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

b. Trade receivables, Trade payables, L.oans & Advances and Unsecured l.oans have been taken at
their book value subject to confirmation and reconciliation.

The company has not received any intimation from supplier regarding their status under micro,
small and medium enterprises development Act, 2006 and hence disclosure, if any, in relation to
amount unpaid as at the year-end together with interest payable as required under the said Act have
not furnished. We have put the amount of Outstanding of those parties for which we have received
the declaration. We have sent a declaration in form of mail to all vendors but only few have
responded, which has been considered above. The interest payable on these outstanding amount is
immaterial due to which it is not provided.

¢. In the opinion of the management the value on realization of current assets, Loans & Advance in
the ordinary course of business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in the
Balance Sheet.

d. Loans and Advances are considered good in respect of which company does not hold any security
other than the personal guarantee of persons.

e. The Management has confirmed that adequate provisions have been made for all the known and
determined liabilities and the same is not in excess of the amounts reasonably required.



f. Payments to Auditors:

. i o vy
Particulars .  March 31,
Audit Fees - 320 |

 Total ) L 320

g. Related Party disclosure:
The transactions with related parties are disclosed in Note No. 35

h. Deferred Tax Liability have been created during the current year as per the provisions prescribed
in AS-22 issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

i. Other Information
1. Company has received following GST orders and Notices-Order for Aligarh Unit is Rs. 1489753
and for Aurangabad Unit Rs 9589497. Notice for Input Tax - Reconciliation has been received and
we are in process of its disposal apd necessary step has been taken. There is dispute regarding
accidental claim by worker which amounts to approximately Rs 17 Lakhs.
2. One of the subsidiaries of the company M/s Pavna Goyam Auto Private Limited ceased to be a
subsidiary w.e.f 11.05.2023.
3. There are certain charges open at MCA portal. These charges are created against the loan availed
and which has been fully repaid. We have got no dues certificate from respective institution and
charge satisfaction form filing with MCA is under process.
4. Since payments to MSME creditors has been made by way of Account Payee cheques, within
the specified time limits hence no provision has been made.

FOR & ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED

ASHA JAIN SWAPNIL JAIN

DIN: 00035024 DIN: 01542555
DIRECTOR DIRCTOR

PALAK JAIN CHARLU SINGH

CHIEF FINANICAL OFFICER COMPANY SECRETARY
PAN: BDEPJ7242M PAN: CVBPS56669B



Pavna Industries Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024
{All amounts are in locs{3), uniess atherwise specified)

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Froperty, plant and eguipment
Intangible Asset Under Development
Right of Use assets

Financial assets

Investments

Others

Deferred tax Assets(net)

Other Non Current assets

Current assets
Inventories

Financial assets

Trade Receivable

Cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Loans

Others

Income Lax assets (net)
Other current assets v
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Equity share capital

Other equity

Mon Controlling Interest
Total equity

Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Long term Borrowing

Lease liabilities

Other Nan current financial liabilities
Provisions

Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Current liabilities

Financial lizbilities

Borrowings

Lease Liabilities

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities

Other current liabilities

Income Tax liabilities

Short term provisions

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an Integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Rajeev Kumar & Co-
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 000&833C

Rajeev Kumar
Proprietor
Membership No.: 070103

Place: Aligarh
Date: 30,/05/2024

Nota As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
3A 7,350.77 8,594.16
3A 34.61 103.90
38 151.66 185.43
4 916.76 936.39
5 233.18 215.60
8,686.58 10,035.49
6 9,779.98 10,635.41
7 5,569.67 5,944.74
8 30.58 43.09
9 4.56 4,61
10 - -
11 {1.00) 16.50
12 16.47 67.50
13 1,683.23 1,725.93
17,083.49 17,837.87
25,770.47 27,873.35
14 1,218.08 1,218.08
15 6,081.57 4,948.44
164 1,168.28 1,244.52
8,467.93 7,411.04
17A 1,443.63 4,660.51
3B 153.26 175.61
18 70.32 15.00
19 262.61 23131
20 4.24 51,13
1,934.05 5,133.56
178 10,651.75 9,057.16
3B 22.35 28.88
184 -
681.82 £3.92
3,212.10 5,317.82
194 319.07 472.57
20 265.74 230.85
21 31.53 4,52
22 184.13 153.05
15,368.50  15328.76
25,770.48 27,873.36

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

. e

e

Swapnil lain Asha Jain

Director Director

- DIM: 01542555 DIN: 00035024
"J/D :

Palak Jain Charu Singh

Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary

PAN : BDEPI7242M

PAN : CVBPS66698

)
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Pavna Industries Limited

Consoclidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2024

{All amounts are in igcs(%), unless otherwise specified)

Note
Revenue:
Revenue from operations 23
Other income 24
Total income
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumed 75
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade 26
Change in Inventory of finished goods 7
Employee benefits expense 78
Finance costs 29
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 30
Dther expenses 31
Total expenses
Profit/(Loss) before tax
Tax expense: 32
Current tax

Deferred tax credit

Earlier years tax adjustments (net)
Mat Credit adjustments

Total tax expense

Profit/{Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to above item

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

Total comprehensive Profit /{loss) for the year

Profitf (Loss) for the year attributable to
- Owners of the company
- Non- Controling interest

Other comprehensive income / (loss) for the year attributable to
- Owners of the company
- Non- Controling interest

Total comprehensive Profit /{loss) for the year attributable to
- Owners of the company
- Non- Contraling interest

Earnings per equity share (% 10 per share)
Basic EPS on actual outstanding 33
Basic & Diluted EPS weighted average

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Rajeev Kumar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 000633C

SN
Rajeev Kumar

Proprietor
Membership No,: 070103

Place: Aligarh
Date: 30/05/2023

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
31,687.48 36,222.20
299.83 194.88
31,987.32 36,417.08
17,160.21 19,922.94
4,047.05 3,823.45
{960.24) (559.51)
3,151.13 3,905.68
1,107.73 1,087.28
1,070.25 1,181.34
4,840.17 5,845.27
30,416.34 35,206.50
1,570.98 1,210.58
383.69 310.31
(13.12) 3671
370.57 347.02
1,200.41 863.56
18.78 45.43
(4.73) (11.68)
14.05 33.75
1,214.46 897.32
1,056.06 835.79
144.35 27.77
10.26 25.80
3.79 7.95
1,066.32 861.59
148.14 35.72
8.67 6.86
8.67 8.88

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Pavna Industries Limited

R
Swapnil Jain Asha lain
Director Director
DIN: 01542555 DIN: DO035024
QPM’ >
Paldk Jain Charu Singh
Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary

PAN | BDEPJ7242M

PAN : CVBPSHG63E



Pavna Industries Limited
Consolidated Cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March 2024
LA ansonends are dn Lacs(T), wnless atberiise specfied)

Far the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,570.98 1,210.58
Adjusoments for:
Diepreciaton and amorisaton expense 1,070.25 1,181.34
Interest mcome on bank deposits (0.86) (233
Interest ncome on loan - -
TInterest expense on lease haluhey 1817 21.35
Loss/(Profit) on sale of PPE (3.76) [71.46)
Provision for mpasment on advances/ balance wemten off - .
Taterest expense on borrowings 1,107.73 1,(44.66 :
Operating profit before working capital changes 3,762.51 3,384.14
Movement in working capital
Invenoncs (330.26) (1,454.49)
Trade Recervables [©31.43) (332461)
Other non current financal assers (34.95) (79414
Cther current financial assets 17.55 254
Other eurrent assets 9.59 [T62.84)
Cicther MNon current assets (17.58) 37.33
Oyther financial current habibives {163.01) 7627
Orther financial non cureat habidites 5552 [eUAED]
Other current Libiities ¥ 8275 (69.23)
Proviston Long Teem 31,30 33.34
Provision Short Term 31.08 3511
Trade payables (1,415.50) 1.263.76
Cash used in operating activities post working capital chunges B96.85 2,148.29
Income tax pad {net) {34730 (301.09)
MNet cash used in operating activities (A) 549,58 1,847.20
B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and cquipraent (206432 (247408}
Sale of property, plant and equipment 23.28 « 16353
Sale of Tavestment in subsidanes 23500 =
Loans - -
Invesmment made i subsidases e (.00
Interest recerved 0.86 2.33
Met cash vsed in investing activides (B) (1,785.18) (2,308.23)
C Cash flows from financing activites
Proceeds From ssur of share capral - g
Payment of Lease labdhry 46.68) (39.99)
Fenance cost paad (1,107.73) (1,044.66)
Bonus / Diwadend Pasd - {121.81)
Proceeds from borrowings 237740 1,686.04
Net cash flows from financing activities (C) 1,223.08 459,58
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [A+RB+C) (12.51) (1.486)
Cash and eash equevalents at the begmning of the year 4300 44.53
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 30.58 43.00
The accompanying notes form an meegral past of these financal statements
This 15 statement of cash flows referred to m wur report of even date
Far Rajeey Kumar & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Payna Industrics Limited
Tiem's Regisration Noc (0006330 -
/j‘ ﬁ%ﬁl J [~
Rajeev Kumar P Swapnil Jan Asha Jain
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.: 070103 DIM: 01542555 DIN: 00035024
“ *
Q&”" LA
Palak Jain Charu Singh
Cheef Financial officer Company Secretary

Place: Algarh
Date: 30/05/202

PAN : BDEP]7242M PAN : CVEPE6660R




Pavna Industries Limited

Summary of significant aceounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 2024
(AN omourts are in locsf¥), unless otherwise specified)

_3A Property, plant and equipment

PBarticulars Land Building l\:l:c:li:’:' (Mfice Equipment  Furniture and fixtures Computer Vehitle Total
Grogs block
_Balanc= asat 31 March 2022 R 146651 718,09 182.47 135.25 219.13 75658 11,855.30
Additions = 8598 v 204576 ShEd o 4213 8600 234883
Diisposals £ > (121 32] - = = 118.70) 114102}
Balanca as at 31 March 2023 36682 1,552.50 10,645.52 245,11 16321 26126 Ar3.28 14,062.72
Additions A 1159 196255 Ga4 a.76 11LEE g.E2 2,220.54
Disposals - £ (27-95] 5 = (@.44) {4.80) 33.20)
Entity dispesed durmg the year {7032 {352 39) (2,592 34) (143 56) [4.59] £13.73] 145.23) i3,222.36)
Halznce as at 31 March 2024 20650 L2117 8gEsls 112.40 167.38 36887 782.07 12,527.80
Accumulated depraciation
Balance 3z at 31 March 2022 349.10 354237 7L 1T 165.03 29198 443160
Charge Ioc the y=ar B3.13 21516 26.20 1022 2501 &9.18 1,132,850
Disposals - - 186 0} = i = 159:90] {95.54)
Balance os at 31 March 2023 - 412.24 437148 57.52 82.02 194.04 311326 5468.56
Charge for the year 3755 s42m .11 292 5108 B430 1,033.36
Disposals % = (10.21) - - |o.a3} {264 [13.68)
Entity dispased during the year {80.61] {753.80) (48 78) [2.62) [10.00) i6.02] {511 85)
Balance = at 31 March 2008 - 355,16 4,445.48 5785  A3al 23330 3EI0 557002
_Net block 23 at 31 March 7023 366.82 1,140.25 6,275.05 15160 £119 6723 512,02 8,504.16
Mat black as at 31 March 2024 296.50 B52.52 553930 54.55 78.06 134,67 395.17 7.350.77
_Intangible Asset Under Development —_— —————————= =S e,

Particulars Knowhow Sohware Balance as at 1 April 2022 - Z
“Balance ax at 31 March 2022 25.00 Charge for the year 2.50

Additinns E140 Disposals -

Disposals o - Balance az at 31 March 2023 250 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 25 .00 Bl40 0 10540 Charge for the year 250 -
Addrtions 1461 1561 Dizposale -

Disposals 8140 B140 Balance as at 31 March 2024 5.00 - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 35.61 - 35,61

Net block a5 at 31 March 2073 10350
“Net block 3z at 31 March 2024 34.61




Pavna Industries Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 2024

{AN amounts are in lacs{3), unless otherwise specified)
38 Leases

(i) Right of Use Assets

Particulars Buildings Total
As at 31 March 2022 283.81 283.81
Additions -
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2023 283.81 283.81
Additions - * -
Deletions £ i
As at 31 March 2024 283.81 2B3.81
-
Accumulated Depreciation
As at 31 March 2022 52.44 52.44
Charges during the year 4595 4595
Deletions - e
As at 31 March 2023 98.32 9R38
Charges during the year 33.77 33.77
Deletions o =
As at 31 March 2024 132.15 132.15
Net Carrying Value
As at 31 March 2023 18543 185.43
As at 31 March 2024 151.66 151.66
{ii) Lease Liahilities
Particulars Current Non Current Total
As at 31 March 2022 38.63 204.12 242.75
Additians - - -
Accretions of interest = 2136 2136
Payments of lease liahilities -38.63 -21.36 (59.99)
Deletions - . _
Re-classification from non current to current 2888 -28.51 037
As at 31 March 2023 28.88 175.61 204.49
Additions 2 - -
Accretions of interest - 18.17 18.17
Payments of lease liahilities -26.24 -20.43 -46.68
Deletions ¥ - -
Re-classification from non current to current 19.72 -20.09 -0.37
As at 31 March 2024 22.35 152.26 175.61




Pavna Industries Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024

(Al amounts are in locs{T), unless ctherwise specified)

" As at As at
4 Other non current financial assets §i ik 034 31 March 2023
Margin monay deposits {including interest accrued) [a)
Margin money deposits 0.12 0.11
Advance From Supplier & s
Security deposits 478.19
- Unsecured considered good 405,11 B 936.28
Trade Recievable considerad doubtfull 29.34 -
916.76 936.39
(a) Includes Margin Depasit with Government authorities
As at Asat
S Other non current assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expense 189.29 215.60
Capital advances-Unsecured, considered good 43.89 -
233.18 215.60
L4
4 As at As at
SRk 31March2024 31 March 2023
[Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)
Finished Goods z 955,83
Goods in Transit 25874 95.18
Raw Materials 2,660.70 3,080.76
Work in Progress 5,833.73 524164
Store and Spares 411.14 £94.70
Trading Material 848.67 662.31
9,779.98 10,635.41
Impairment provision on Project in progress
9,775.98 10,635.41
) As at As at
7 Trade Receivable 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good 5,569.67 5,344.74
Unsecured, considered doubtful - -
5,569.67 5,344.74
Trade receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2024
Outstanding for following periads from due date of payment Undisputed Trade Undisputed
Receivables— Trade
considered good Receivables-
considered
Not due #
0-6 Months 4,425.89 -
6-12 Months 595.08 -
1-2 Years 393.36 -
2-3 Years 62.20 -
abave 3 years 87.15 -
Total 5,569.67 -

Trade receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Undisputed Trade

Not due

0-6 Months 4,681.24 -
6-12 Months 550.01 -
1-2 Years 15.81 -
2-3 Years 476 -
above 3 years 92.92 -
Total

5,344.74




As at

As at

8 Cash and cash equivalents 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 18.57 23.92
Balances with banks 12.01 19.17
30.58 43.09
As at As at
5 Other Bank Balances
& 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance with bank in deposit account having maturity of more than three months but are 4.56 4.61
due for maturity within twelve months from balance sheet date (z)
4.56 4.61
(a} Includes Margin Deposit with Government authorities
As at As at
11 Other Current assets 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
-
Security deposit to others (1.00) 16.50
(1.00) 16.50_
isi o As at As at
ncome tax asse 31 Marc.h 2024 31 March 2023
Income Tax paid (net of provision for taxation) ' 16.47 67.59
16.47 67.59
13 0th nt ts e A
frofemane 31March2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 214.98 129,75
Advances to contractors and material suppliers E =
Unsecured, Consider Good 1,002.63 1,264.62
Unsecured, Considered Doubtful 71.01 -
Other advances 136 27.10
Balances with government authorities 353.68 138.45
13.95
1,657.61 1,655.91
Amount receoverable - Others 2561 b6.02
Less : Allowance for Impairment (net) - -
1,683.23 1,725.93
As at As at
i ital
13 Equrty Shargicap 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorized shares Number* Amount Numbar® A .
Equity shares of % 10 each with voting rights 1,80,00,000 1,800.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00
1,80,00,000 1,800.00 1,50,00,000 1,500.00
Issuad, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity share capital of face value of % 10 each 1,21,80,800 1,218.08 1,21,80,800 1,218.08
1,21,80,800 1,218.08 1,21,80,800 1,218.08
a, Reconciliation of number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,21,80,800 1,218.08 €0,90,400 605.04
Shares Issued during the period - - - -
Bonus Issued during the period 60,90,400 609.04
Balance at the end of the year 1,21,80,800 1,218.08 1,21,80,800 1,218.08




Pavna Industries Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

(All amounts are in lacs(S), unless ctherwise specified)

A. Equity share capital*

Opening balance as

Changes in equity

Balance as at

Particulars

at 31 March 2023

share capital
during the year

31 March 2024

Farticulan at3iMarch2022 | AR ERPIEl | gy ch 2023
during the year
Equity share capital 602.04 602.04 1,218.08
hanges i uf
Opening balance as Goepperimenuily Balance asat :

Equity share capital

1,218.08

1,218.08

B. Other equity™**

Reserves and Surplus ocl
| Remeasurement of
Pt Security Premium | Retained Earnings | Capital Reserve :enem defined benefit ol
eserve lag
Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,338.‘;2 3,381.18 15.46 1.62 1671 4,817.69
Profit/ (Loss) for the year - 835.79 - ] 835.79
Issue of Banus Shares (609.04) (605.04)
Dividend (121.81) [121.81)
Other comprehensive inceme for the year (net of - - - 25,80 25.80
Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,398.72 3,486.12 19.46 1.62 42,51 4,948 44
Profit/ {Loss) for the period - 1,056,068 - - 1,056.06
Other comprehensive income for the year [net of . . 5 1076 —
tax impact)
Change Due to sale of subsidary (25.02] 91.84 b6.81
Balance as at 31 March 2024 1,398.72 4,517.16 111.30 1.62 52.77 6,081.57

*Refer nate 14 for details
*Refer note 15 for detoils

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is statement of changes in equity referred to in gur report of even date

For Rajeev Kumar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 000633C

Rajeev Kumar
Proprietor
Membership No.: 070103

Place: Aligarh
Date: 30/05/2024

T i S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Swapnil Jain  Asha Jain
Director Director
DIN: 01542555 DIN: 00035024

(B AL
alak fain  Charu Singh

Chief Financial officer Company Secretary
PAN : BDERJ7242M  PAN : CVBPS66E69B




b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has only ane class of equity shares having & par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees, The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors in any financial year is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the
holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution
will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders. The equity shares shall be transferable subject to the provisions
contained in the Articles of Association and in the agreements entered/to be entered into with the investors/shareholders from time to time.

¢. Details of shares held by Holding Company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at As at
Name of the equity shareholder (Promotor) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number % Number %
Smt. Asha Jain 58,21,960 47.80% 58,21,960 47.80%
Shri Swapnil Jain 13,56,160 11.13% 13,56,160 11.313%
P.. Wealth Management and Consultant Private Limited 9.97,040 8.19% 9,97,040 8.19%
Smt. Palak lain 5,78,200 4.75% 9,23,200* 7.58%
Smt. Sadhna Jain 3,58,529 2.54% 6,70,400 5.50%
d, Aggregate number of bonus shares issued for a consideration other then cash
'Pursuant to the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 26.08.2022, the Company issued and allotted fully
paid-up “bonus shares” at par in proportion of one new equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every one existing fully paid up eguity share of Rs. 10 each
L]

e. Shareholding of Promoters
As at 31st March 2024
Shares held by Promoters and Promoter Group at end of the year % change during
S.n |Particulars No. of shares % of total shares the yesr
a.

1}Asha lain 58,21,960 47.80%

2| Swapnil Jain 13,565,560 11.14% -

3{Pj Wealth Management And Consultant Pvt Ltd 9,657,040 8.189% -

4| Priya lain 4,04,000 3.32% -

5|Pawan Jain Huf 840 0.01% -

As at As at

15/ @eherkquity 31March2024 31 March 2023
General Reserve
Opening balance 162 162
Add: Transfer from Profit/{loss) _ =
Closing balance (A) 162 162
Capital Reserve
Opening balance 19.46 19.45
Add : Sale of Subsidiary 91.84
Closing balance (B) 111.30 19.456
Securities premium
QOpening balance 1,398.72 1,398.72
Add; Addition during the year o - :
Closing balance {C) 1,398.72 1,398.72
Profit/ (Deficit) in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance 3,528.64 3,397.89
Less: Issue of Bonus Shares & (609.04)
Less : Dividend - (121.81)
Add: Profit / (Loss) for the year | 1,056.06 835.79
Add: Other comprehensive income for the year [net of tax impact) 10.26 25.80
Less: Transfer to general Reserve {2502 -
Closing balance {D) 4,569.93 3,528.64
Total (A+B+C+D) 6,081.57 4,948 44




16A Non Controlling Interest

Mon Controlling Interest
Opening Balance

Entity sold during the year

NCl share in current year Profit
Closing Balance

17A Long term borrowing

Secured

Indian rupee term loan from Bank

Indian rupee term loan from financial institutions
Indian rupee vehicle loan from Bank

Unsecured

Indian rupee loan from related parties

From Directors & KMPs

From Corporate entities

178 Short term Barrowings

Secured

Cash credit facilities from Bank / financial institutions - Secured
Cash credit facilities from financial institutions - Unsecured
Current maturities of long term borrowings - Secured

Total

18A Other Non current financial liabilities

Security deposit from customer
Trade payable Long outstanding

18A Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (a)
Gratuity

(a) Refer Note 36

20 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities on account of -

Property, plant and equipment

Unused business losses

Origination and reversal of temporary difference due to employee expenses
Effect of adoption of Ind AS

Others

Deferred tax Assets (net)

Deferred tax assets/liabilities on account of :-
Property, plant and equipment

Unused business losses

Origination and reversal of temporary difference
Effect of adoption of Ind AS

Others

As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1,244.52 1,208.80
224.38 -
148.14 35.72
1,168.28 1,244.52
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

1,431.03 . 229555
¥ 202.46
12.60 56,13

= 1,316.37
. 790.00

1,443.63 4,660.51

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

7,537.34 6,284.64
2,479.00 2,060.00
635.40 712.52
10,651.75 9,057.16
12,095.37 13,717.66
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

12.50 15,00

57.82

70.32 15.00
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

262.61 23131
262.61 231.31
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

116.60 131.53
{72.60) {56.66)
= (2.08)
(3.96) (0.91)
40.04 7188
As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(7.90) (23.39)
(3.88) (2.08)
4141 39,10
2.16 35
4.00 3.76

35.80 20.75




As at As at
LSRR Rk 31March2024 31 March 2023
Due to micro and small enterprises 681.83 63.92
Due to others (a) 3,212.10 5,317.82
3,893.93 5381.74
Trade payable aging schedule as at 31st March 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment Micro and Small Others
Enterprises
("MSME")
Not due
Unbilled dues ' -
Less then 1 year 681.84 2,984091
1-2 Years 17467
2-3 Years 15.28
above 3 years - 33.23
Total 681.84 3,212.09 |
Trade payable aging schedule as at 31st March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Miecro and Small Others
s Enterprises
"MSME")
Not due el
Unbilled dues : -
Less then 1 year 63.92 4,890.07
1-2 Years 390.38
2-3 Years 8.24
above 3 years 29.12
Total 63.92 5,317.82
" i : As at As at
19 Other Financial liabilities 31 March 2024 T
Interest accrued but not due on horrowings 0.04 73.97
Payable to employees 315.03 398.60
319.07 472,57
20 Other current liabilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advance received from customers 34.20 105.47
Statutory dues payable 231.54 125.38
265.74 230.85
T As at As at
Biincgme AnA TTATOn 31March2024 31 March 2023
Income Tax Payable {Net of advance tax) 3L53 452
31.53 4.52
22 Short term provisions As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity, 184.13 153.05
184.13 153.05

(This sapce has been intentionally left blank)




Pavna Industries Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024

{All omounts are in lacs(T), unless otherwise specified)
Furniture

23 Revenue from operations
Sale of products
Other operating revenue

24 Other income

Interest income on:

Bank deposits -

Loan Given

Security deposits mearsured at amortised cost
Income tax refunds

Profit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Income from export incentive

Rent received

Foreign Exchange fluctuation gain (Net)

Gain on investments carried at fair value through profit or loss
Excess liability/provision written back
Miscellaneous incame

25 Cost of raw material & companents consumed

Inventery at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchase during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

26 Purchase of Stock-in-Trade

Purchases of material
Packing expense
Freight & Cartage Inward

27 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress

Closing Inventories
Trading Material
Work in Progress

Opening Inventories
Trading Material
Work in Progress

28 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratuity expense

Staff welfare expenses

Less : Personnel Cost capitlized during the year #
Net Employee benefits expense

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
31,687.49 36,170.62
- 51.58
31,687.49 36,222.20
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.86 233
- . 4.73
35.24 32.53
- 578
376 75.26
23.17 9.39
0.60 36.60
(4.21) B.66
(1.74) -
0.02 829
24213 11.31
299.83 194.88
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
4,306.73 347258
16,899.86 20,757.08
21,206.59 24,229.66
4,046,38 4,306.73
17,160(.21 19,922.94
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
3,892.06 3,622.67
153.80 198.73
113 2.08
4,047.09 382349
1,247.44 765.00
5,566.54 5,088.74
765.00 865.90
5,088.74 4,428.34
(960.24) (559.51)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,738.99 3,278.30
203.69 196.01
84,91 G8.44
463.05 362.93
3,490.64 3,905.68
(329.51) -
3,151.13 __3,005.68

# Being portion of Employee Cost of Research & Development division engaged in dies and tools development.



29 Finance costs

Interest expense

Interest expense on Term loan
Interest expense on Security depaosit

Other borrowing costs

Interest on lease ohligation

30 Depreciation and Amortisation
Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on right of use assets

31 Other expenses

Factory expenses

Consumption of stores and sparest
Diecasting/ Job work charges

Material Testing Exp
Packing material
Gas Expenses
Power & Fuel

Advertisement and publicity

Bank charges

Communication & Postage Expense

Donation
Electricity expenses

House keeping expenses

Insurance Expenses

Legal and professional fees
Loss on sale of Property, Plant and equipment
Payments to auditors##

Printing and stationery
Rates and taxes

Rent

Building Rent

Machine Rent

Repair and maintenance - Machinery
Repair and maintenance - office

Repair and maintenance - Computer
Vehidle running and maintainance expense
Research and development expense###
Sales promaotion expenses

Security charges
Software expenses
Trade mark royalty

Travelling and conveyance-Foreign
Travelling and conveyance-Local

Bad debts

ISO T5 certification expense
Warranty claim/ Line rejection expense

Office expense
Rebate & Discount
Prior Pericd expense

Freight & forwarding expense
Miscellaneous expenses

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
95.88 851.88
# 333
930.00 26.23
62.67 44.48
18.17 21.35
1,107.73 1,087.28
For the year ended For the year ended
1,036.49 1,135.40
33.77 45.94
1,070.25 118134
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
- 17.94
756.28 578.12
1,344.44 1,973.83
- 2.07
4,87 -
- 259.95
684.98 943.66
30.67 5534
2248 28.87
23.06 22,75
16.62 29.41
27.87 33.97
36.66 42495
96.29 36.30
170.78 130.80
- 3.80
3.20 4.61
10.86 2264
54.56 27.23
87.01 6.68
425 58.40
- 0.14
25.86 173.11
40.82 117 66
- 0.40
141.01 158.09
119 5.65
110.32 48.08
9.89 131.65
1191 7.18
83.65 76.93
161 -
80,13 12543
70.69 -
533 2.24
128.04 18.87
33.05 39.03
262,57 293.15
3.45 -
454 .56 36452
1.18 (0.16)
4,840.17 5,845.27




# Consumption of Stares, spares, packing and tools For the year ended For the year ended
Opening stock 474,84 530.32
Add: - -
Consumption of stores, tools and spares parts 348.26 355.00
Consumption of Packing materials 212.42 194.78
Consumption of polishing and plating material 0.23 75.65
Less: Closing stock 279,56 577.63
Net Consumption of stores ,spares, Packing & tools 756.28 578.12
For the year ended For the year ended
47 Payment to auditors 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
As auditors
-Audit fees 3.20 ' 461
3.20 4.61
For the year ended For the year ended
S Ingomatax 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tax expense comprises of:
Current tax 353.65 31031
Deferred tax credit (14.10) 36,71
Earlier years tax adjustments (net) - -
Minimum Alternative Tax v - -
Incame tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 369.60 347.02
Deferrad tax credit (0.98) {9.08)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of Other comprehensive income (0.98) (9.08)

The major companents of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax expense hased on the domestic effective tex rate

of the Company and the reported tax expense in profit or loss are as follows:
Effective Income Tax Rate

25.168% 25.168%

Aceounting profit before income tax 1,570.98 1,210.58
At India's statutory income tax rate 385.38 304.68
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income:
Item on which deferred tax has not been created - -
Tax impact of expenses which will never be allowed - =
Effect of tax incentive -
Earlier years tax adjustments (net) = =
Impact of change in tax rate - -
Others - -
Income tax expense 395.38 304.68

For the year ended For the year ended

Earni

A Fenl=- e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Net Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders 1,056.06 835.79
Nominal value of equity share in X - -
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year® 1,21,80,800 60,590,400
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year* 1,21,80,800 1,21,80,2800
Weighted average number of equity shares* 1,21,80,800 91,35,600
Basic Earning per Share on actual outstanding at year end B.67 6.86

* These are in absolute numbers



Pavna Industries Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al amounts are in lacs(3), uniess otherwise specified)

35 Related party transactions
A. Name of the Ralated Parties and description of relationship is as follows:

a) Subsidiary Company Swapnil Switches Pyt Ltd.
Pavna Auto Engineering Put. Ltd,
Pavna Sun World Autotech Pvt Ltd
Pavna Marketing Pvt Ltd

b) Entity having substantial interest in the Company PJ Wealth Management & Consultants F. Ltd.

) Key Managerial Personnel {KMP}

Managing Director Shri Swapnil Jain
Director Smit. Asha Jain
Director Smit. Priya lain
Director Shri Sanjay Kumar Jain
CEQ Shri, Ravindra J Pise
CFO Smt. Palak Jain
CFO Shri Makarand Haribhau Mahajan
{ai o] Shri. Ravindra Madan Mohan Agrawal
s v Ms. Charu Singh
cs Ms. Kanchan Gupta
KMP Mr. Ajay Maheshwari
KMP Mr, Vijay Sharma
KMP Mr. Ram Karan Malik
Kmp Mr. Arun Khanna
KMP Mr. Pankaj Agarwal
KMP Mr. Alok Sharma
KMP Mr. Rachakonda Murthy
Independent Director Shri Naozer Firoze Aibara
independent Director Shri Dhruv Jain
Independent Director Shri Achyutanand Ramchandra Mishra

&) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel [KMP)
Where transactions have taken place during the year or previous year or balances are outstanding

f] Enterprise over which KMP exercise control or significant influence Pavna Sports Venture Private Limited
Ascus Cricket Private Limited
Pavna Electric Systems Private Limited
Pavna International Schools Private Limited
F) Wealth Management & Consultants P, Ltd.



Pavna Industries Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024
{All amounts are in lacs(3), uniess otherwise specified)

Note No.- Related Party

Disclosure - Contd..

B. The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant

Nature of Transactions |Name of Related Party Relationship For the year For the year ended
ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
Loan taken during the year
Loan taken Smt. Asha Jain KMP - 120.00
Loan taken Smt. Priya Jain KMP - 180.00
Loan taken Shri Swapnil Jain KMP 5 859.00
Loan taken PJ Wealth Management & Consultants P. L} Entity having substantial 414.50 150.00
Loan Repaid during the year -
Repayment of Loan taker{Smt. Asha Jain KMP 9500 | ° 225.00
Repayment of Loan taker] Smt. Priya Jain KMP - 180.00
Repayment of Loan taker{Shri Swapnil Jain KMP 269.00 590.00
Repayment of Loan taker| P Wealth Management & Consultants P. Lt| Entity having substantial 1,204.50, 325.00
Interest on Loans {Net of TDS} -
Interest(Net) Smt. Asha Jain KMP 0.70 10.52
Interest(Net) Shri Swapnil Jain KMP 1.99 9.26
Interest(Met) Smt. Priya lain KMP - 0.83
Interest{Net) Pl Wealth Management & Consultants P. LY Entity having substantial 54.10 76.85
Remuneration, Salary & Other Expens'e =
Remuneration Smt. Asha Jain KMP 96.00 96.00
Remuneration Shri Swapnil Jain KMP 216.00 216,00
Remuneration Smt. Priya lain KMP 180.00 180.00
Rermuneration Mr. Ajay Maheshwari KMP 10.80 11.90
Remuneration Shri. Ravindra | Pise CEO 28.00
Remuneration Shri. Makarand Mahajan CFO 5.00 15.00
Remuneration Shri. Ravindra Madan Mohan Agrawal CFO 10.61 -
Remuneration Ms. Palak Jain CFO 3.24
Remuneration Ms. Charu Singh Cs 7.90 7.12
Remuneration Kanchan Gupta cs 6.23 -
Remuneration Vijay Sharma KMP 24.00 24.00
Remuneration Ram Karan Malik KMP 26.28 26.28
Remuneration Arun Khanna KmP 25.44 23.44
Remuneration Pankaj Agarwal KMP 25.16 22,16
Remuneration Alak Sharma KMP 18.60 15.58
Remuneration Rachakonda Murthy KMP 7.29 -
Building Rent Smt. Asha Jain KMP 31.08 28.08
Lease Rent Smt. Asha Jain KMP 0.10 0.10
Rent Pavna Goyam Auta Pvtltd Fellow Subsidiary - 20.48
Trade Mark Royalty Smit. Asha Jain KMP 81.64 76.93
Purchase & Sales -
SSPL & PIL 317.68 368.59
PAEPL & PIL 2,040.06 2,295.54
PIL & SSPL 158.31 242.99
PIL & PAEPL 66.27 235,19
PIL & PSAPL 0.10 0.58
PSAPL & PIL 5.43 11.46
PIL & PMPL 203.64 100.81
PMPL & PIL 3,044.69 2,695.60
PGPL & PIL - 238.71
PIL & PGPL - 967.81
PAEPL & SSPL -
PAEPL & PMPL - 239
SSPL & PMPL 0.18 13.5
PSAPL & PMPL 0.03 0.02
PMPL & PAEPL 3536 0.83
PMPL & SSPL 334.74 278.58
PMPL V5 PSPL 9.38 14.54
Sale / Purchase of Fixed ASSPL & PIL - 4426
Investment of Shares- Sales/ Purchase
Advances Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt. Lid. Subsidary Company 250.00
Security Deposits =
Security Deposit Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary Company
Short Term Loans & Advances
Advances Pavna Goyam Auta Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary Company 100.00




Pavna Industries Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31st March 2024
(All amounts are in lucs(Z), unless otherwise specified)

Note No.- Related Party Disclosure - Contd..
C. Details of related party balances as at year end:

Nature of Name of Related Party Relationship As at As at
Transactions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Loan Taken Smt. Asha Jain Director 95.00
Loan Taken Shri Swapnil Jain Director 269.00
Loan Taken Pl Wealth Management & Consultants P. Ltd. Entity having 790.00

Debtors & Creditors = =
PIL & SSPL 114.40 231.76
PIL & PMPL 755.01 216.05
PIL & PSAPL 107.85 64.34
PIL & PAEPL 255.26 193.16
PGAPL & PIL - 37.83
SSPL & PMPL 12.40 89.94
PSAPL & PMPL 1.58 1.77
Smt. Asha Jain Whole time director - 2.86
Investments Swapnil Switches Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary company 197.76 197.76
Investments Pavna Marketing Pvt Ltd Subsidary company 10.00 10.00
Investments  |Pavna Sun World Autotech Pvt Ltd Subsidary company 71.50 71.50
Investments Pavna Auto Engineering Pvt, Ltd. Subsidary company 684.77 684.77
Investments Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary company 255.00
Security Deposit [Shri Pawan Jain & Smt. Asha Jain Managing director 300.00

300.00
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Pavna Industries Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion v

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of Pavna
Industries Limited (“the Company"”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (inclu ding the statement of Other Comprehensive Income),
the Cash Ilow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and notes to standalone Ind AS financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements give the information required by
the Companies Act, 2013 as amended, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other
comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India, together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act,
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.




Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2024. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there are
no key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information inciuded in the company’s annual report but does
not include the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements does not cover the other
information and we do riot express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act, with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting
Standards (Ihd AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statement that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.




In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accountin g unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but fo
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is notva guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected .to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor’s

report.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we
give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

2. A. As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our olpinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company, so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the
matters stated in the paragraph 2B(f) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors ) Rules , 2014. ;

¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Statement of Other Comprehensive income), the Standalone Cash Flow Statement and
the Standalone Statement of Changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements comply with the

Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with

Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;



¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
31st March, 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

£

With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control with reference to these
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure C” to this report;

#) The modifications relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in the paragraph 2A(b) above on reporting under Section
143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 2B(f} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements. Note No. 43 of noles to accounts

ii) The Company did not have any long- term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv)
i. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons - or - entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

ii. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

iii. Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable
and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement. )
v)  The Company has not paid interim dividend during the year.
vi) Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used
accounting software for maintaining its books of account, which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has o perated w.e.f. 13 June 2023 to
the end of the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective software.




Further, for the periods where the audit trail (edit log) facility was enabled and operated for
the respective accounting software, we did not come across any instance of the audit trail
feature being tampered with.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act:

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been
paid/ provided by the Company to their directors in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000633C

PLACE: ALIGARH CA RAJEEV KUMAR

DATE: 30 MAY, 2024 PROPRIETOR
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AnnexureA

Responsibilities for Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due fo fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desi gn audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements in
place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» LEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS
Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.




We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCQUNTANTS
FRN: 000633C

PLACE: ALIGARH CA RAJEEV KUMAR

DATE: 30 MAY, 2024 PROPRIETOR
UDIN:24-040102 B K COMLRoH2-




ANNEXURE B

The annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of Our Report on “Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of Pavna Industries Limited (the Company)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) (a)
(A) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment;
(B) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, of
intangible assets.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment

have been physically verified by the management at reasonable intervals; no
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification;

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease
agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial
statements are held in the name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not revalued its
Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible assets
during the year ended 315t March, 2024.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no proceedings have been
initiated or are pending against the company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made
thereunder.

(i)  (a) Asexplained to us & on the basis of the records examined by us, in our opinion,
physical verification of inventory has been conducted at reasonable intervals by the
management. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. No discrepancy of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has been sanctioned
working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks
and/or financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current
assets of the company. In our opinion quarterly returns or statements filed by the
company with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books
of account of the Company except as disclosed in note no. 43 of the notes to
accounts.

(i)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the company, the company has not made investments in,
or has not provided guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in the




(vii)

(viii)

nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties during the year.

However, the company had advanced a loan to its subsidiary in earlier years which
stands repaid on 03 May, 2023. The company has not charged any interest on the loan.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, in respect of loans, investments, guarantees, and security,
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been complied with
except not charging interest on the loan.

Lhe company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which’are deemed to be
deposits covered under sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly,
clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable,

e

As per information & explanation given by the management, the Central Government
has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the
Companies Act for the products manufactured by it (and/or services provided by it).
Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company is generally regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident
fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanation given to us there were no
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st of March, 2023 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable except as disclosed in note 43 of notes to
accounts.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to, there are no statutory
dues referred to in sub-clause (a) that have not been deposited on account of any
dispute except as disclosed in note 43 of notes to accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the Company has not surrendered or
disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any
lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the company, the company has not been declared a
willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or government
authority; ’

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the
company has utilized the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for
the purposes for which they were obtained.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall
examination of the balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised
on short term basis have been used for long term purposes by the company.

, L‘:&%



(xii)

(i)

(xiv)

(¢) According to the information and explanation given to us and on an overall

examination of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements of the company, the
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet obligations of its subsidiaries as defined under the Act. The company does
not hold any investment in any associate or joint ventures ( as defined under the
Act ) during the year ended 31 March 2024.

(f) According to the information and explanation given to us and based on the audit
procedures conducted by us, we report that, the Company has not raised loans
during the year on pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries as defined under the
Act. The company does not hold any investment in any associate or joint ventures (
as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2024,

(2) The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible debentures
(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year.

(a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to

the information and explanations given to us, considering the principles of materiality

outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by the company or on the
company has been noticed or reported during the course of audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the auditors in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government;

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, no
whistle-blower complaints have been received by the company

According to the information and explanations given to us the company is not a Nidhi
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii)(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, where applicable and the details of the related party transactions have
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, as required by the applicable
accounting standards;

(a) Based on the information and explanations provided to us and our audit
procedures, in our opinion, the company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business;

(b) The reports of internal auditors for the period under audit were considered by us;

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not
applicable to the company.



(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviil)

(xix)

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934). Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities without a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of
India as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of
the Order is not applicable.

(c) In our Opinion and based on our examination, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by ‘the management, the
Group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies ( Reserve Bank )
Directions, 2016)does not have not more than one CIC as part of the Group.

Based on our examination,*the company has not incurred cash losses in the financial
year and in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly,
clause 3(xviii) of the order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and
management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither
give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

Also refer to the Other Information paragraph of our main audit report which explains
that the other information compromising the information included in Company’s
annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors

report




a. In respect of other ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter
has been disclosed in note 42 of the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

b. There is no unspent amount in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 42 of the standalone Ind
AS financial statements. '

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FRN: 000633C

PLACE: ALIGARH (RAJEEV KUMAR, F.C.A.) |
DATE: 30 MAY, 2024 PROPRIETOR




ANNEXURE C

Report on Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) ‘

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements of
PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with
our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended

on that date.

L]

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors” Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
Financial Statements, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to Financial Statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to Financial Statements
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference to



Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
reference to Financial Statements. '

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to Financial Statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control with reference to
inancial Statements includes those policies and procedures that

1. Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

3. Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisilion, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to Financial
Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with
reference to Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls system with reference to Financial Statements and such internal financial controls
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For RAJEEV KUMAR & COMPANY
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FRN: 000633C
PLACE: ALIGARH CA RAJEEV KUMAR
DATE: 30 MAY, 2024 PROPRIETOR

UDIN:24 0T 10 BKCOM LACH 2 M.NO. 070103




‘Pavna Industries Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(All amounts are in locs(=), unless atherwise specified)

ASSETS
MNon-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Wark in Progress
Right of Use assets
Financial assets
Investments
Others
Other Non Current assets

Current assets
Inventories
Financial assets
Trade Receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Loans
Others
Income tax assets (net)
Other current assets
Total current assets
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital
Other equity
Total equity
Non current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Long term Borrowing
Lease liabilities
Other Non current financial liabilities
Provisions
Deferred tax liabilities [net)

Current labilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease Liabilities
Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Income Tax liahilities
Short term provisions
Total current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is the Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For Rajeev Kumar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 000633C

 SA

Rajeev Kumar
Proprietar
Membership No.: 070103

Place: Aligarh
Date: 30/05/2024

Note

3A
3A
38

w

10
11
12
13
14

15
16

17A
3B

18
15

178
3B
20

21
22

23

Asat Asat
21 March 2024 31 March 2023
6,641.34 5,626.40
- 8140
33.18 3871
964.03 1,219.03
313.17 254,81
102.66 58.76
8,054.38 7,275.11
L
7,082.85 6,682.00
5,290.06 4,375,22
13.37 * 1684
4,44 450
- 250.00
{1.50) 16.00
20.67 16.83
1,438.99 1,053.73
13,848.88 12,415.23
21,903.26 19,694.34
1,218.08 1,218.08
5,298.90 4,515.05
6,516.98 5,733.13
1,431.25 2,272.33
35,39 38.86
242,44 154.99
43.50 35.91
1,752.58 2,502.09
9,616.77 6,553.18
3.47 4.96
506,53 63.92
2,867.29 4,293.23
278.64 347.43
173.91 126.28
87.09 70.13
13,633.69 11,459.13
21,903.26 19,694.34

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Al o

Asha Jain
Director
DIM: 00035024

ok

/’{/’

Palak Jain

'Swapnil Jain
Director
DIN: 01542555

r

-

Charu Singh

Chief Financial officer Company Secretary
PAN : BDERJ7242M  PAN : CVEPSEBRIE

e ——



Pavna Industries Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amounts are in locs(%), unless otherwise specified)

For the year ended For the year ended

Not 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Revenue:
Revenue from operations 24 28,273.49 26,323.09
Other income 25 33.8% 39,35
Total income 28,307 .48 26,362.44
Expenses:
Cost of materials consumead 26 19,939.45 18,628.89
Change in Inventary of finished poods 27 (703.73) {621.79)
Employee benefits expense 28 2,281.61 2,371.13
Finance costs 29 §31.08 595.62
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 30 897.34 717.11
Other expenses 3 3,914.33 3,559.35
Total expenses 27,260.09 25,360.32
Profit/(Loss) before tax 1,047.38 1,002.12
Tax expense: 32

Current tax 264.43 257.58

Deferred tax credit 5.456 16.00
Total tax expense . 269.88 27358
Profit/{Loss) for the year 777.50 728,53
Other comprehensive income
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurements of the defined henefit plans 8.49 23.53
Income tax relating to above item (2.14) {5.92)
Other comprehensive income / (loss) 6.35 17.61
Total comprehensive Profit /(loss) for the year 783.85 746.14
Earnings per equity share (% 10 per share) )

Rasic EPS on actual outstanding 23 6.38 5.58
The sccompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.
For Rajeev Kumar & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Pavna Industries Limited
Firm's Registration Np.: 000633C

BBty B
Rajeev Kumar Asha lain Swapnil Jain
Proprietor Director Director
Membership No.: 070103 : DiN: 00035024 DIN: 01542555
- F’min Charu Singh

Place: Aligarh Chief Financial officer  Company Secretary
Date: 30/05/2024 PAN | BDEFJ7242M  PAN : CVBPS6GG9B



Pavna Industries Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al apmorents are in lacs(T), anless otherive speciffed)

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/ (Loss) before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Interest income on bank deposits
Re-measurements of the defined benefit plans
Interest expense oo lease liability
Loss/ (Profit) on sale of PPE
Interest expense on borrowings
Operating profit before working capital changes
Movement in working capital
Inventonies
Trade Receivables
Other non current financial assets
Other current Anancial asscts
Other current asscts
Other Non current assets
Other current financial habilivies
Other current liabihnes
Provision Short term
Provision Long term
Trade payables

Cash used in operating activities post working capital changes

Income tax paid {net)
Net cash used in operating activities (A)
B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Sale of property, plant and equipment
Lians
Investment made in subsidaries
Interest received
Net cash used in investing activities (B)
¢ Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from ssue of share capital
Payment of Lease liability
Finance cost paid
Bonus / Dividend Paid
Proceeds from borrowings
Net cash flows from financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash cquivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents ar the end of the year

Note:

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,047.38 1,002.12
BY7.35 T17.11
0.08) (0.56)
849 2553
3.93 4.9G
(3.76) 6949
927.15 695.62
2,880.47 g 2,435.84
(400.85) (956.60)
(914.54) (295.61)
(58.36) (8.89)
17.56 1348
(385.25) (425.05)
(43.89) 277
(68.79) 44.87
47.62 56.71
16.96 5.58
/745 21.14
(883.33) 703.74
294,76 1,655.00
(268.27) (235.54)
26.49 1,419.46
(1,888.62) (1.884.97)
G6.65 35.16
250,00 100.00)
255.00 =
008 (1.56
(1,316.89) (1,949.25)
(852 (21.83)
(927.15) (695.62)
g (12181
2222.50, 1,373.83
1,286.83 534.57
(3.58) 4.78
16.94 12,16
13.37 16.94

[

(i) The above cash flow statement has been prepared under the "Indirect method" as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS-7)

statement of cash flow,

(ii) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities under Ind As 7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

This 15 statement of cash flows referred 1o in our report of even date

For Rajeev Kumar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Fimm's Registration No.: 000633C

R0 S

Rajeev Kumar
Proprietor
Membership No.: 070103 p— =2

q\\l'h ,3:{.

z/ E‘
Ahgarh 3
Place: Aligarh b
Date: 30/05/2024 \ f/ “‘-\

x '“=L Accet)

Asha Jain
Director
DIN: 00035024

W
Palak Jain

Chief Financial officer
PAN : BDEP]7242M

Rloi Sei, _—F

Swapmnil Jain
Director
IDIN: (01542555

-

e

Charu Singh
Company Secretary
PAN : CVBPS6669B



Pavna Industries Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(All amounts are in lacs{T), unless otherwise specified)

Note 1: Corporate Information

Pavna Industries Limited ["PIL" or 'the company') is a Public Limited Company incorporated in India on 19 April 1994 under the Provision of Companies Act 1956. The Company i3
engaged in business of manufacturing of Locks, Auto Locks and Auto Parts in India.

Note 2:

Basis of Preparation:

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS as notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and relevant presentation requirements of the Companies Act 2013, The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical cost
convention except for certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value as required under relevant Ind AS,

The financial statements are presented in % and all values are rounded to the nearest Lacs upto two decimal places except otherwise stated.

Note 2.1: Significant accounting policies

a)

b

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about the_:e assumptions and estlrnates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Judgements:

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the financial statemeants:

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment X

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the ead of each reporting period. This reassessment may result in change in depreciation expense in
future periods.

Esti and A

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances
arising that ara beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumplions when they occur.

Recoverability of deferred taxes
In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. The

ultimate realisation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible.
hManagement considers the projected future taxable income and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheat hased an current/ non-current classification.

Assets:

An asset is treated as current when it is;

a) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumad In normal operating cyele.

b) Held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢} Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting pericd, or

d) Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve maonths after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

Liabilities:

A liability is current when:

(a) It is expected to be settled in normal eperating cycle

(b) it is held primarily for the purpose of trading

(¢ It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

(d) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reparting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liahilities.

Operating cycle: The operating cycle is the time betwesn the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified
twelve maonths as its operating cycle.



Pavna Industries Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

c) Property, Plant and Equipment

d

E

h)

)

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated 2t cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct services, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for their intended use and cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term
canstruction projects if the recognition criteria are met,

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are
met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
staternent of profit and loss within other income.

Depreaciation: Depreciation is provided using the Straight Line Method as per useful life specified in schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation is calculated on a pro-
rata basis from the date of additions. On assets sold, discarded, etc. during the year, depreciation is provided up to the date of sale/discard. Further, the Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013 requires that useful life and depreciation for significant components of an asset should be determined seperately. The identification of significant

components is matter of technical judgement and is decided on case to case basis; wherever applicable. F

The company has used following rates to Provide depreciation which coincides with the rates indicated with schedule Il of the act on its property, plant and Equipment:
Useful Lives estimate by the management (Years)

Factory Buildings 30 Years -
Pland and Machinery B Years
Computer 3 Years
Office Equipment 10 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Commercial Vehicles B Years

Subsequent costs: The cost of replacing a part of an item of propetty, plant and equipment is to be recognised In the carrying amount of the item of property, plant and
equipment, if it is probable that the future econcmic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of
the replaced part getting derecognised. The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment to be recognised in statement of profit and loss 2¢ and when incurred.

Capital work in progress: Capital work in progress comprises the cost of fixed assets that are not ready for their intended use at the reporting date,

Intangible assets
Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company to ba measured initially at cost. Intanglble assets with finite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Software purchased by the Company are amortized on a straight line basis over 5 Years.

Amounts paid towards technical know-how fees for specifically identified projects/products being development expenditure incurred towards product design is carried forward
based on assessment of bensfits arising from such expenditure. Such expenditure is amortized over the period of expected future sales from the related product, i.e. the
estimated period of 60 to 72 months on straight line basis based on past trends, commencing from the month of commencement of cormmereial production.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consists of interest and amortization of ancillary costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the barrowing of funds. Barrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

Eoreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (7} which is zlso the Company's functional currency. Functional currency is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which a Company operates and is normally the currency In which the Company primarily generatas and expends cash. All the financial information
presented in * except where otherwise stated,

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the date
that the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction.

Derivative (Forward contract)

Derivatives are initially recognisad at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Revenue Recopnition

Revenue to be recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue to be
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected an
behalf of the government.
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k]

Sale of goods

The Company recognized revenue when (or as} a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the gonds underlying the particular performance obligation

were transferred to the customer, Further, revenue from sale of goods is recognized based an a 5-Step Methodology which is as follows:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligation in cantract

Step 3; Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when [or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Revenue is measurad based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and
incentives, if any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables {only act of invoicing is
pending) when there is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time s required, as per contractual terms. Unearned or deferred revenue is recognised when there
is billings in excess of revenues.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and requirements, The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the
original contract, basis which the transacticn price could be allacated to a new performance obligation, or transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In
the event transaction price is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

.

Use of significant judgements in revenue recognition:

a) The Company’s cantracts with customers could include promises to transfer products to @ customer. The Company assesses the products promised in a contrzct and identifies
distinct performance obligations in the contract. Identification of distinet performance obligation involves judgement to determine the deliverables and the ability of the customer
to benefit independently from such deliverables. A s

b) Judgement is also required to determine the transaction price for the contract. The transaction price could be either a fixed amount of customer consideration or variable
consideration with elements such as volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, The transaction price is also adjusted for the
effects of the time value of money if the contract includes 2 significant financing component. Any consideration payable to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price,
unless it is a payment for a distinct product or service from the customer. The estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur and is reassessed at the end of each reporting pericd. The
Company allocates the elements of variable considerations to all the pgrformance obligations of the contract unless there is ohservable evidence that they pertain to one or more
distinct performance abligations.

¢} The Company uses judgement to determine an appropriate standalone selling price for a parformance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price

to each performance obligation on the basis of the relative standalone selling price of each distinct product or service promised in the contract,

d} The Company exercises judgement in determining whether the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time or over a period of time. The Company considers indicators
such as how customer consumes benefits as services are rendered or who controls the asset as it is being created or existence of enforceable right to payment for performance to
date and alternate use of such product or service, transfer of significant risks and rewards to the custemer, acceptance of delivery by the customer, ete.

Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in profit or loss in propartion to the stage of cornpletion of the

transaction at the reporting date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.

Job wark and develonment charges are recognized upon full completion of the job work and development services and when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods have been passed to the buyer, on delivery of the goods and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the collection of the consideration.

Interast income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective Interest rate
{EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates
the experted cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider
the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in the statement of profit and loss

Inventories

|nventorias are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the first in, first out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the szle. The Cost in case of Work-in-Progress and finished goods to be inclusive of allocable
manufacturing overheads. The Provision for obsolescence to be made whenever necessary.

Leases

Finance lease

Leases of property, plant and equipmant are classifled as finance leases where the lessor has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Company.
Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 116, Leases, was notified as part of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rules, 2019, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India, vide notification dated March 30, 2019,

Employee's Benefits -

Short Term Employee Benefits: All employes benefits expected to be settled wholly within twelve maonths of rendering the service are classified as short-term employee benefits.
When an employee has rendered service to the Company during an accounting period, the Company recognises the undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits
expected to be paid in exchange for that service as an expense unless another Ind AS requires or permits the inclusion of the benefits in the cost of an asset. Benefits such as
salaries, wages and short-term compensated absences, bonus and ex-gratia etc. are recognised in statement of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the
related service.

A lizbility is recognised for the amount expected to be paid after deducting any amount already paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a
present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably. If the amount already
paid exceeds the undiscounted amount of the benefits, the Company recognises that excess as an asset /prepaid expense to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund.
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Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is @ post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions to a statutory authority and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.

Retirement benefits in the form of Provident Fund is a defined contribution scheme and cantributions paid/payable towards Provident Fund and Employes state insurance scheme
{ESI) are recagnised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employess. The plan providas for 2 lump sum payment to vestad employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the tenure of employment. Vesting occurs
upon completion of five years of service. The Company accounts for the liability for gratuity benefits payable in futurs based on an independent actuarial valuation report using
the projected unit credit method as at the year end.

The obligations are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rate is generally based upon the market yields available on Government bonds
at the reporting date with a term that matches that of the liabilities.

Re-measurements, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interast and if
applicable), is reflected immediately in Other Comprehensive Income in the statement of profit and loss. All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in
statement of profit and loss as employze benefit expenses. Re-measurements recognised in Other Comprehensive Income will not be reclassified to statement of profit and loss
hence it is treated as part of retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settle'nent of any defined benefit plan are recognised
when the curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

Pravisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligztion (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be mads of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimb8rsed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain,

The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss, net of any reimbursement. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are
discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of discount is recognised in the staterment of profit and loss
as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be
reguired to settle the cbligation, the provision is reversed.

Einancial instruments
A financial instrument is a contract that gives rise to a financial asset for one entity and a financial liability or eguity instrument for another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subseguent measurement

For purposes of subseguent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

-Debt instruments at amortised cost

-Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

-Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair velue through prefit and loss (FVTPL)
-Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s Balance Sheet) when:

(i) The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired, or

{ii) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an oblization to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially zll the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred contral of the asset.

Financial Liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, security deposits recelved etc.

ek +
n

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
-Financial liabilities at amortised cost
-Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)

De-recognition

A financial fiability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the
same lender on substantially different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification is treated as the de-recognition of the
original lizbility and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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n) Impairment of financial assets

o)

=)}

)

In accordance with Ind-AS 104, the Company applies expected credit loss {ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are initially measured at fair value with subsequent measurement at amortised cost e.g., trade and other receivables, security
deposits, loan to employees, ete.

The Company to be follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it to be recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original effective interest rate.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its
historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historically abserved
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed,

ECL impairment loss allawance lor reversall recoznized during the oeriod is recosnized as income/ exoense in the statement of orofit and loss,

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, ather than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end of each reporting pcrlod to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit ('CGU') Is the greater of its value in use or its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the astimated future
cash flows are discounted to their prasent value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest grcup of assets that penerates cash inflows
from continuing use that are |argely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets {('CGU').

An impairment loss is recognized, if the carrying amount of an asset or its OGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount and is recognised in statement of profit and loss.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at end of each reporting period for any indications that the |oss has decreased or no longer exists, An impairment |oss
is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amartisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
v

Fair value measurement

Fair valug is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

{a) In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

{b) Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the mast advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability s measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or
by selling it to another market participant that would use the assetin its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value 1s measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest l2vel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liahilities

Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale) at the end of each reporting period

Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovared from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to
compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss {either in other comprehensive income [OCH) or in equity). Current tax
items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OC! or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and estabiishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equily). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCl or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate
to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash balance on hand, cash balance at banks and short-term deposits, as defined above, net
of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company's cash management,
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s)

t)

Earnings per share {EPS

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the sharehaolders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
as at the end of reporting period.

Dilutad EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during
the year plus the welghted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares inta equity shares.

We have also calculated EPS amount by dividing the prafit for the year attributable to the shareholders of the Company by actual outstanding number of equity shares as 2t the
end of reparting period.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability exists when there is a possible but not probable obligation, or 2 present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources, or a
present pbligation whose amount cannot be estimated reliably. Contingent liabilities do not warrant provisions, but are disclosed unless the possibility of outflow of resources is
remote. Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements. However, contingent assets are assessed continually and if it is virtually certain that an
inflow of economic benafits will arise, the asset and related income are recognised in the perind in which the change occurs.

For Rajeev Kumar & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Pavna Industries Limited -
Firm's Registration No.: 000633C

"
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
{44l cineumts ere in lacs{T), unless otherwise specifisd)

h Progarty, plant and
Partioilar Land Building .':h']‘. 2t Office Equipment  Furniture and fixtures Computer vehide Total Intanghe Work
¥ e e __ inProgress

Gross block
Ualanee as at 31 March 2022 29650 111223 6,019.02 55.39 11111 176.10 277.54 8,047.88
Additians - 37.56 ¥1,687.00 2012 2428 34851 = 1,603.57 BL4D
Dispasals - . (28.23] - . - - [28.23)
Capital Wark In Progress a -
Ralance pe at 31 March 2023 796,50 1,149,785 7.677.50 75.51 135.29 210,71 27754 9,823.22 BLAD
Additlons - 1159 1,767.38 561 B 12183 BB2 1,823.73
Disposals - - [25 4%) = = 10 40 14 80) [30.65] (B1.43)
Balance as ot 31 March 2024 296,50 1,161.37 241872 21,12 14283 23218 281.56 11,716.31 5
Accumulated depreciat

_Balance 33 2t 31 March 2022 - 282,15 2,887.10 29.84 s162 124.74 120.71 3,500.16
Charpe for the year - I0.62 602.20 436 .20 23.49 2964 63940
Dispasals - - (2.73) i2.73]

[Balance as at 31 arch 2023 - 312.77 3,486.56 3410 &0m2 15223 15035 a12683]
Charge for the year - 3150 76607 5.19 9.56 49.74 29.76 BILEL
Disposals & - {10.21] (0.83) {2.64] [13.68}
Balance a5 at 31 March 2024 - 34427 4,242.82 33.29 70349 20114 177.47 507696
Net blockas at 31 March 2038 96.50 (AT 319124 i 7457 sa4a 17718 582640 B140

et block as at 31 March 2024 296.50 B17.11 5177.31 41.B4 7345 131.05 104.09 660134 -




Pavna Industries Limited

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infoarmation for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All omounts are in lacs(), unless otherwise specified)

3B Leases

(i) Right of Use Assets

Particulars Buildings Total

As at 1 April 2021 g1.88 81.88
Additions 2 o
Deletions - -
As at 31 March 2022 81.88 £21.88
Additions

Deletions

As at 31 March 2023 a1.88 | , £1.88
Additions

Deleticns

As at 31 March 2024 81.88 81.88

-

Accumulated Depreciation
As at 1 April 2021 6.64 6.64
Charges during the year 18.82 18.82
Deletions - :
As at 31 March 2022 25.45 25.45
Charges during the year 17.71 17.71
Deletions
As at 31 March 2023 43,16 43,16
Charges during the year 5.53 £53
Deletions

As at 31 March 2024 48.69 48.69
Net Carrying Value

As at 1 April 2021 75.24 75.24
As at 31 March 2022 56.42 56.42
As at 31 March 2023 s8N 38.71
As at 31 March 2024 33.18 33.18
(if) Lease Liabilities

Particulars Current Non Current | Total

Asat 1 April 2021 15.44 61.33 76.78
Additions - -
Accretions of interest - £.58 6.53
Payments of lease lizbilities [15.44) (7.60) (23.04)
Deletions = 3 =
Re-classification from non current to current 16.87 (16.87) -
As at 31 March 2022 16.87 43.45 60.33
Additions -
Accretions of interest 4.96 4.96
Payments of lease liabilities (16.87) (4.98) (21.83)
Deletlons =
Re-classification from non current to current 4.96 (4.59) 0.37
As at 31 March 2023 4.96 38.26 43.82
Additions -
Accretions of interest 3.93 3.93
Payments of lease liabilities (4.59) (3.83) (8.52)
Deletions =
Re-classification from non current to current 3.10 (3.47) 0.37)
As at 31 March 2024 3.47 35.39 38.86
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March 2024

{all amaounts are in lacs(T), unless otherwise specified)

As at Asat
AN SR NI 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Investment at cost in subsidaries
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Swapnil Switches Private Limited 197.76 197.76
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Pavna Marketing Private Limited 10.00 10.00
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private Limited 71.50 71.50
Equity shares of Rs. 100/- each fully paid up in Pavna auto Enginearing Private Limited 684.77 6584.77
Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up in Favna Goyam Auto Private Limited - 255.00
964.03 1,219.03
Details of number of shares held in Equity investments in subsidaries As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Swapnil Switches Private Limited 303 3.09
Pavna Marketing Private Limited 1.00 1.00
Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private Limited 7.15 TS5
Pavna Auto Enginearing Private Limited 031 0.31
Pavna Goyam Auto Private Limited - 25.50
5 Other non current financial assets * i —
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security deposits
Advance to Suppliers - =
Interest accrued on fixed depasits - held as margin money
- Unsecured considered good 283.83 254.81
Trade Recievable considered 28,34
313.17 254.81
As at Asat
RO IS S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expense 58.76 58.76
Capital advances-Unsecured, considered good 43.90
102.66 58.76
7 Inventories piin i
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, unless otherwise stated)
Raw Materials 1,791.68 1937.78
Worl in Progress 5,047.03 4,343.30
Store and Spares 218.41 400.92
Stock-in Transit 15.74 -
7,082.85 6,682.00
7,082.85 6,682.00
" As at Asat
70 Feemetie 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsecured, considered good 5,290.06 4,375.22
Unsecured, considered doubtful = i
5,290.06 4,375.22
Trade receivable aging schedule as at 31st March 2024
Outstanding for fallowing periods from due date of payment Undisputed Trade Undisputed Trade
Receivables— considered |Receivables—
good considered
doubtful
Not due
0-6 Months 4,705.17 -
6-12 Months 394.78 -
1-2 Years 14391 -
2-3 Years 20.29 -
above 3 years 2590 -
Total -

5,290.06




Trade receivable aging schedule as at 31 March 2023

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Undisputed Trade Undisputed Trade
Receivables— considered |Receivables—
good |considered
doubtful
Not due
0-6 Months 4,252,93 -
6-12 Months 105.76 -
1-2 Years 12.41 -
2-3 Years -
above 3 years 0.12 -
Total 4,375.22 -
N Asat Asat
QG el Tlenky 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 697 895
Balances with banks 6.40 8.00
13.37 16.94
Asat * Asat
RO R iay 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balance with bank in deposit account having maturity of more than three months 4,44 450
but are due for maturity within twelve months from balance sheet date (a}
. 4.44 4.50
(a) Includes Margin Deposit with Government authorities
11 Loans Asat As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(Unsecured, considered good)
Loans to related parties - 250.00
- 250.00
12 Other Current assets As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security deposit to others {1.50) 16.00
(1.50) 16.00
Asat As at
S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Income Tax paid (net of provision for taxation) 20,67 16.83
20.67 16.83
As at As at
AT 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid expenses 12834 31.95
Advances to contractors and material suppliers 5 2
Unsecured, Consider Good 932.76 825.70
Unsecured, Consldered Doubtful - "
Balances with government authorities 352.28 130.26
1,413.37 987.71
Amount recoverabie - Other 25.61 66.02
Less : Allowance for Impairment [net) - -
" 1,438.99 1,053.73
. Asat As at
15 Rty A 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Authorized shares Number* Amaount Number® Amount
Fquity shares of % 10 each with voting rights 1,80,00,000 1,800.00 61,00,000 610.00
1,80,00,000 1,800.00 61,00,000 610.00
Issued, subscribed and
Equity share capital of face value of X 10 each 1,21,80,800 1,218.08 1,21,80,800 1,218.08
1,21,80,800 1,215.08 1,21,80,800 1,218.08




a. Reconciliation ef number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
Balance at the beginning of the period 1,21,80,800 1,218.08 £0,90,400 603,04
Shares Issued during the period < g b ]
Borus lssued during the periad 60,90,400 609.04
Balance at the end of the 1,21,80,800 1,218.08 1,21,80,800 1,218.08

b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has cnly one class of equity shares having a par value of % 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vate per share. The
Company declares and pays dividend in Indian rupees. The dividend propesed by the Board of Directors in any financial year is subject to the approval of the
shareholders in the ensuing Annuz| General Meeting, except interim dividend. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be
entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proporticn to the number of
equity shares held by the shareholders. The equity shares shall be transferable subject to the provisions contained in the Artides of Association and in the

¢. Details of shares held by Holding Company and shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

As at As at
Name of the equity shareht 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number % Number %
Smit. Asha lain 58,21,550 47.80% 29,10,980 47.80%
Shri Swapnil Jain 13,56,160 11.13% £,78,080 11.13%
P.J. Wealth Management and Consultant Private Limited 9,97,040 8.19% 4,98 520 8.19%
Smt. Palak lain 5,78,200 4.75% 4,48,000 7.36%
Smt. Sadhna Jain 3,58,529 2.94% 3,35,200 5.50%
91,11,889 74.81% 48,70,780 79.97%

d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued for a consideration other then cash
'Pursuant to the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 26.08.2022, the Company issued and allotted fully paid-up
“bonus shares” at par in proportion of one new equity shares of Rs. 10 each for every one existing fully paid up equity share of Rs. 10 each held as on the
record date of 06.09.2022
e. Sharehaolding of Fromoters
As at 31st March 2024
Shares held by Promoters and Promoter Group at end of the year % change during the
S.n No. of shares % of total shares yesr
o.

1|Asha Jain 58,21,960 47 .80%

2 Swapnil Jain 13,56,560 11.14%

3|Pj Wealth Management And Consultant Pvt Ltd 9,97,040 8.19%

4| Priya lain 4,04,000 3.32%

5|Pawan Jain Huf 840 0.01%
As at 31st March 2023
Shares held by Promoters and Promoter Group at end of the year % change during the
5.n Mo. of shares % of total shares yesr
o.

1|Asha Jain 58,21,96D 47.80%

2| Swapmil Jain 13,556,560 11.14%

3|Pj Wealth Management And Consultant Pvt Ltd 8,97,040 8.19%

4|Priya lain 4.,04,000 3.32%

5|Pawan Jain Huf 840 0.01%
16 Other Equity Asat psat

31 March 2023 31 March 2023

General Reserve
Opening balance 112 112
Closing balance (A) 112 1.12
Securities premium
Opening balance 1,388.72 1,398.72
Add: Addition during the year -
Closing balance (B) 1,398.72 139872




Profit/ (Deficit] in the statement of profit and loss
Opening balance

Less: Issue of Bonus Shares

Less : Dividend

Add: Profit f {Loss) for the year

Add: Other comprehensive income for the year {net of tax impact)

Closing balance (A)

Total (A)
Nature and purpose of other reserves
Securities premium

3,115.21 3,099.51
- {609.04)
{121.81)

777.50 728.53
5.35 17.61
3,899.06 3,115.21
5,298.90 4,515.05

Securities premium represents premium received on issue of shares. The amount is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2013.

17A Long term borrowing

Secured
Indian rupee term loan from Bank
Indian rupee term loan from financial institutions
Indian rupee vehicle loan from Bank
Unsecured
Indian rupee loan from related parties
From Directors & KMPs
From Corporate entities

178 Short term Borrowings

Cash credit facilities from Bank / financial institutions - Secured
Cash credit facilities from financial institutions - Unsecured
Current maturities of long term horrowings - Secured

Total

18 Provisions

Provision for employee benefits (a)
Gratuity

Compensated absences

Trade payable Long outstanding

19 Deferred tax liabilities (net)

As at
31 March 2024

As at
« 31 March 2023

1,431.03 1,112.82
0.22 541
= 364.00
= 790.00
1,431.25 2,272.33
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7,003.18 3,979.06
2,000.00 2,000.00
513.59 574.11
9,616.77 6,553.18
11,048.02 8,825.51
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
184.63 154.99
57.82
242.44 154,99

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Deferred tax
Property, plant and equipment 118.59 94.65
Unused business losses i A
Origination and reversal of temporary difference (72.60) (56.66)
Others (2.48) (2.08)
43.50 35.91
(i) Movement in deferred tax liabilities {(net)
N Ri nised/ —
Particulars 31 March 2023 rE\.r::s‘:gd theugh | T oaksed W other 31 March 2024
comprehensive income
profit and loss
Assets/ (Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 94.65 2394 - 118.59
Unused business losses - = . .
Origination and reversal of temporary difference (56.66) |18.08) 2.14 {72.60)
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 115 (2.08) 2.08 = s
Others - {2.48) - {2.48)
Totzl 35.91 5.46 2.14 43.50




Recognised/

Recognised in other

Particulars 31 March 2022 reversed through A 31 March 2023
i comprehensive income
profit and loss
Assets/ (Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment 65.54 29.11 - 94.65
Unused business losses - - - -
Origination and reversal of temporary difference (49.93) (12.65) 5.92 (56.66)
Effect of adoption of Ind AS 115 (1.62) (0.47) - {2.08)
Others = 7 - -
Total 13,99 16.00 592 35.91
As at As at
Hollepaiocd 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Due to micro and small enterprisas 506.53 63.02
Due to others (2} 2,967.29 4,293.23
3,473.81 4,357.15
Trade payable aging schedule as at 31st March 2024
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Micro and Small * | athers
Enterprises ("MSME")
Not due
Unbilled dues
Less then 1 year 506.53 2,743.58
1-2 Years E 173.55
2-3 Years 19.28
above 3 years 30.86
Total 506.53 2,967.29
Trade payable aging schedule as at 31st March 2023
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Micra and Small Others
Enterprises ["MSME")
Not due
Unbilled dues
Less then 1 year 63.92 3,909.42
1-2 Years 360.81
2-3 Years 1.93
above 3 years 21.08
Total 63.92 4,293.23
21 Other Financial liabilities As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings = 73.82
Payable to employees 278.64 273.61
2758.64 347.43
E—— Asat As at
22 Other current liabilities ik 3625 S ik 2023
Adwvance received from customers 2116 68.95
Statutory dues payable 152.75 57.34
173.91 126.28
oo Asat As at
B STty s 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 87.09 70.13
Compensated absences - -
87.09 70.13

(This sopce has been intentionally left blank)




Pavna Industries Limited

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March

2024

{All arounts are in locs(T), unless otherwise specified)

24 Revenue from operations

Sale of products
Other operating revenue

25 Other income

Interest income on:
Bank deposits
Security deposits mearsured at amortised cost
Income tax refunds
Prafit on sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
Income from export incentive
Rent received
Foreign Exchange fluctuation gain (Net)

26 Cost of raw material & components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Purchase during the year

Less: Inventory at the end of the year

27 Changes in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
Closing Inventories

Finished goods

Work in Progress

Opening Inventories
Finished goods
Work in Progress

28 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, wages and bonus

Contribution to provident and other funds
Gratulty expense

Staff welfare expenses

Less : Personnel Cost capitlized during the year #
Net Employee benefits expense

# Being portion of Employee Cost of Research & Development division engaged in dies and tools development.

29 Finance costs

Interest expense
Other borrowing costs
Interest on lease okligation

30 Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on right of use assets

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
28,273.49 26,271.51
- 51.58
28,273.49 26,323.09
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
0.08 0.56
10.58 8.89
- ., 430
376 6.94
2317 9.39
0.60 0.50
{4.21) 8.66
33.99 39.35
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1,937.78 1,660.37
19,793.34 18,916.31
21,731.12 20,576.67
1,791.68 1,937.78
19,935.45 18,638.8%
5,047.03 4,343.30
4,343.30 3,721.51
{702.73) (621.79)
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2,014.14 1,905.10
158.36 139.98
55.64 50.25
39298 275,80
2,621.12 2,371.13
{339.51) -
2,281.61 2,371.13
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
S03.70 678,36
23.46 12.30
3.93 4.86
931.08 695.62
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
881.81 £685.40
5.53 17.71
£897.34 717.11




31 Other expenses

Consumption of stores and spares#
Diecasting/ Job work charges

Power & Fuel

Advertisement and publicity

Bank charges

Communication & Postage Expense
Donation

Electricity expenses

House keeping expenses

Insurance Expenses

Legal and professional fees
Payments to auditors##

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rent

Repair and maintenance - Machinery
Repair and maintenance - office
Vehicle running and maintainance expense
Research and development expenseltt
Sales promaotion expenses

Security charges

Software expenses

Trade mark royalty

Travelling and conveyance-Local

Bad debts

150 T5 certification expense
Warranty claim/ Line rejection expense
Office expense

Prior Period expense

Freight & forwarding expense
Miscellaneous expenses

i Consumption of Stores, spares, packing and tools
Opening stock

Add:

Consumption of stores, tools and spares parts
Consumption of Packing materials

Consumption of polishing and plating material

Less: Closing stock

Net Consumption of stores ,spares, Packing & tools

#4 Payment to auditors

As auditors
-Audit fees

32 Income tax

Tax expense comprises of:

Current tax

Deferred tax credit ;

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Deferred tax credit
Income tax expense reported in the statement of Other comprehensive income

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
440,05 561.64
1,377.20 1,037.32
729,54 760.16
11.72 2275
22.34 28.87
2194 19.39
16.62 29.35
0.21 18.27
34.35 38.40
24.03 19.61
125.78 63.69
2.00 1.00
771 16.00
39.79 16.89
69.16 55.40
1494 100.46
36.81 * 108.02
109.64 116.33
0.82 5.63
71.96 20.03
= 101.81
9.23 3.65
70.77 65.68
65.95 62.98
70.68 -
5.00 224
129.66 14.02
27.27 17.36
345 -
375.06 252.72
0.56 {0.32)
3,914.33 3,559.35
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
400.92 343.52
59.06 364.06
198.49 179.36
- 7562
218.41 400.92
440.05 561.64
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
2.00 1.00
2,00 1,00
For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
264.43 25758
5.46 16.00
269.88 273.58
(2.14) {5.92)
(2.14) (5.92)




The major compenents of income tax expense and the reconciliation of expected tax
expense based on the domestic effective tax rate of the Company and the reported tax
Effective Income Tax Rate

Accounting profit before income tax
At India’s statutory income tax rate

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible {taxable) in calculating taxable income:
|tem on which deferred tax has not been created

Impact of change in tax rate

Others

Income tax expense

33 Earnings per share

Net Profit/(loss) attributable to equity shareholders

Nominal value of equity share in %

Total number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year*
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year*
Weighted average humber of equity shares*

Basic Earning per Share on actual outstanding at year end
Diluted Earnings per Share v
* These are in abselute numbers.

25.168% 25.168%

1,047.38 1,002.12

263.61 252.21

0.82 7.32

= 14.05

264.43 27358

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

77750 728.53

10.00 « 10.00

1,21,80,800 60,590,400

1,21,80,800 1,21,80,800
1,21,80,800

6.38 5.98

6.38 7.49



Pavna Industries Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

{All amounts are in lacs(T), unless otherwise specified)

A. Equity share capital*

o Opening balance as ch:‘l::f:;: ei:':llty Balance as at
Atiewiar at 31 March 2022 sin 31 March 2023
during the year
Equity share capital 609.04 609.04 1,218.08
Changes in equi
— Opening balance as sr:lag; ;a :;':'tv Balance as at
s at 31 March 2023 als tep 31 March 2024
during the year
Equity share capital 1,218.08 - 1,218.08

B. Other equity™*

Total

Reserves and Surplus ocl
. Remeasurement of
Particulars : 2
Security Premium | Retained Earnings | General Reserve defined benefit plans

Balance as at 31 March 2022 1,398.72 3,085.01 1.12 14.90 4,499.75

Profit/ {Loss) for the year - 728.53 - 2 728.53

Issue of Bonws Shares - (609.04) - - {608.04)
Dividend (121.21) (121.81)
FJth er comprehensive income for the year (net of tax ) ) . e e

impact)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,398.72 3,082.70 1.12 3251 4,515.05

Profit/ (Loss) for the period - 777.50 - - 777.50

ensive i f

Flther comprehensive income for the year (net of tax ) _ s 635

impact)

|Balance as at 31 December 2024 1,398.72 3,860.20 112 38.86 5,298.30

*fefer note 15 for details

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

This is statement of changes in equity referred to in our report of even date

For Rajeev Kumar & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 0005633C

RY 053

Rajeev Kumar
Proprietor
Membership No.: 070103

Place: Aligarh
Date: 30/05/202

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Pavna

B

Swapnil Jain
Director
DIN: 01542555

(ot

Palak Jain
Chief Financial officer
PAN : BDEPI7242M

Industries Limited

Rles S oim

Asha Jain
Director
DIN: 00035024

"

e
Charu Singh

Company Secretary
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Pavna Industries Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts are in loes(), unless otherwise specified)

34 Financial instruments

i) Financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial instruments by category are as follows:

" As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars

Amortised cost FVTPL FVTOQ Amartised cost FVTPL FVTOCI
Financial assets®
Iy et 964.03 : 3 1,219.03 2 =
Trade Receivables 5,290.06 - - 4,375.22 - -
Loans - - - 250.00 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 13.37 - - 16.94 - -
Other Bank Balances 4.44 - - 4,50 ® w i
Other financial assets 311.67 - - 270.81 - .
Total financial assets 6,583.57 - - 5,136.51 -
Financial liabilities*
Borrowings 11,048.02 8,825.51 = =
HEREE 38.85 : 43.82 s
liabilities -
T 3473.81 4357.15 ;
payables -
Other financial liabilities 278.64 347.43 - -
Total financial liabilities 14,839.33 - - 13,573.90 - -

Falr Value Hierarchy

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value in the financial statements and are grouped into three levels of a fair value hierarchy. The
three levels are defined based on the observability of significant inputs to the measurement, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for financial instruments,

Level 2; Directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.e. derived from prices) observable market inputs, other than Level 1 inputs; and

Level 3: Inputs which are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).The input factors considered are Estimated cash flows and other
assumptions.

Fair value of instruments measured at amortised cost

Eair value of instruments measured at amartised cost for which fair value is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are calculated using Level 3 inputs:

As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars -

Carrying value Fair value* Carrying value Fair value®
Financial assets
Investments 964.03 964.03 121503 1,215.03
Trade Receivables 5,290.06 5,280.06 4,375.22 4,375.22
Loans = = 250.00 250.00
Cash and cash equivalents 1337 13.37 16.04 16.94
Other Bank Balances 4.44 4.44 4,50 4,50
Other financial assets 311.67 311.67 270.81 270.81
Total financial assets 6,583.57 6,583.57 6,136.51 6,136.51
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 11,048.02 11,048.02 8,825.51 282551
Lease liahilities 38.86 38.86 43.82 43,82
Trade payables 3,473.81 347381 4,357.15 4,357.15
Other financial liabilities 278.64 278.64 347.43 347.43
Total financial liabiliti . 14,839.33 14,839.33 13,573.90 13,573.90




Financial risk management

The Company's activities expase it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment
and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages
the risk and the related impact in the financial statements.

Risk Management Framwork

'The Company's activities make it susceptible to various risks. The company has taken adequate measures to address such concerns by developing adequate
systems and practices. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of markets and seeks to manage the impact of these
risks on the Company’s financial perfarmance. The Company’s senior management oversee the management of these risks and advises on financial risks and the
appropriate financial risk

povernance framewark for the Company. The board provides assurance to the shareholders that the Company's financial risk activities are governad by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accerdance with the Company’s policies and risk
objectives. The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the company, to set appropriate risk limits and
controls and to monitar risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and company's
activities. The Company's audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the company’s risk management polities and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framewaork in relation to the risks faced by the company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by
internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the

audit committee.
-

Risk Exposure arising from WMeasurement Management

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, leans and| Ageing anglysis Diversification of bank deposits and regular monitoring
other financial assets measured at
amortised cost

Ligquidity risk Borrowings, lease liabilities and other|Cash flow forecasts Availability of funds and credit facilities.
financial liabilities
Market risk - interest [Variable rates borrowings Sensitivity analysis Negotiation of terms that reflect the market factors
A) Credit risk

a)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial asset fails to meet its contractual obligations. The Company’s
exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each financial asset. The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the
maximumm credit risk exposure. The Company monitors its exposure to credit risk on an ongoing basis.

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and facters specific
to the class of financial assets. The Company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, inputs and factors

A: Low credit risk

B: Moderate credit risk

C: High credit risk

There are certain charges open at MCA portal. These charges are created against the loan availed and which has been fully repaid. We have got no dues
certificate from respective institution and charge satisfaction form filing with MCA is under process.

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset groups Basls of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk |Cash and cash equivalents, loans, and other financial assets 12 months expected credit loss

Assets are written off when thera is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptey or a litigation decided against the Compary.
The Company continues to engage with parties whase balances are written off and attempts to enforce repayment. Recoveries made are recognised in

Credit rating |Particulars As atzztrarcb As at:;zgﬂau:h
Low credit Cash and cash equivalents, loans and other financial assets 5,619.54 4,917.48
risk ¢

Cash and cosh equivalents and other bank balonces

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Corporate finance department in accordance with the Company's policy.
Investments of surplus funds are made only in schemes of alternate investment fund/or other appropriate avenues including term and recurring deposits with
approved counterparties and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on
an annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make
payments.

The Company places its cash and cash equivalents and term deposits with banks with high investment grade ratings, limits the amount of credit exposure with
any one bank and conducts ongoing evaluation of the credit worthiness of the banks with which it does business. Given the high credit ratings of these banks,




Trade Receivables

Ind AS requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company assesses at each date of statements of financial position whether
a financial asset or a campany of financial assets is impaired. The Company recognises lifetime expected losses for all contract assets and [ or all trade
receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12
months expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life time expected credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly

since initial recognition

b) Credit risk exposure
i) Provision for expected credit losses

The Company provides for 12 month expected credit losses for follewing financial assets:

As at 31 March 2024

Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
Particulars 3 i
carrying amount at default losses Jprovisian
Cash and cash 13.37 - 13.37
Other bank balances 4.44 - 4,44
Trade receivahles 5,280.06 - 5,290.06
Loans = ¥ = 2
Other financial assets 31167 - 311.67
As at 31 March 2023
. Estimated gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of impairment
Particulars &
carrying amount at default losses provision
Cash and cash « 1694 - 16.94
Other bank balances 4.50 - 450
Trade recelvables 437522 = 4,375.22
Loans 250.00 - 250.00
Other financial assets 270.81 - 29081

B) Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its

liabilities when they are due.

Maturities of financial liabilities

The tables below analyse the Company's finzncial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities.

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 -3 years Mo;z;l::n3 Total

Non-

derivatives

Barrowings 9,105.16 1,066.92 851.16 24.78 11,048.02
Trade payable 2,967.29 = = - 2,967.29
Lease liabilities 3.47 8.52 8.52 15.53 36.04
Other financial liabilities 278.64 - - - 278.64
Tatal 12,354.56 1,075.44 859.68 40.31 14,330
As at 31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1-2years 2 Byuins Mu:;:t::nB e

Non-

derivatives

Borrowings 5,979.07 574.11 373.72 1,898.61 B,825.51
Trade payable 429323 - - - 4,293.33
Lease liabilities 4.96 8.52 B.52 34.08 56.08
Other financial liabilities 347.43 - - = 347.43
Total 10,624.68 582.63 382.24 1,932.69 13,522

C) Market risk
Interest rate risk
i} Liabilities

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with floating interest rates. The
Company manages its interest rates by selection appropriate type of borrowings and by negatiation with the bankers.




Interest rate risk exposure

. As at As at
Fptale 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Secured Vanable rate borrowings 9,048.002 5,671.51
UnSecured Varmable rate borrowinps 2,000.00 2,000.00
Total borrowings 11,48.02 7.671.51

*The above amount doesnot include borrowings from related party

Sensitivity
Profit or loss and equity 15 not sensitive to higher/ Jower interest expense from boreowings as a result of changes in interest rates on year 1o year basis:
i As at As ac

lars
iy 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Increase mn borrowing cate by 190 110.48 7672
Decrease m borrowing rate by 1% (110.48) (16.72)

.
ii) Assets

The Company's fixed deposits are carried at amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject to interest rate risk as defined in Ind AS
107, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate berause of a change in market interest rates.

-

Currency Risk

The Company has international transactions and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions and recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency

Earnings in Foreign currency

As at As at
Description of Transactions 31 March2024 | 31 March 2023
Export of Material and services 789.03 581.69
Expenditure in Foreign currency
As at As at
Description of Transactions 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Import of Material and services 34.64 14.88
Foreign Currency risk Exposures
As h2
Financial i at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
UsD § EUR UsD § EUR
Trade Receivable In Foreign currency 12,700 2,28,178.63 1,61,714.28
Trade Receivable In INR 10,57,005 2,05,46,197.31 1,38,43,444.00
Sensitivity Analysis of 5% change in exchange rate at the end of reporting period
Einancial Assets As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
1
usn s EUR usD & EUR
1% Depreciation in INR
Impact on Profit and Loss Account -
Income/ (Expense) (2,05,462) : (1,38,432)
1% Appreciation in INR
Impact on Profit and Loss Account -
Income/ Expense) (2,05,462) - {1,38,434)




Pavna Industries Limited
Summary of significant accounting palicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in focs{T), unless otherwise specified)

35 Related party transactions
A. Name of the Related Parties and description of relationship is as follows:

a) Subsidiary Company

b) Entity having substantial interest in the Company

c) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)
Managing Director
Diraector
Director
Directar
CED
CFO
CFO
CFO
[o3
s
Knap
KMP
KMP
KMP
KMP
KMP
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

d) Relatives of Key Managerial Personnel (KMP)

Swapnil Switches Pvt. Ltd.

Pavna Auto Engineering Pvt. Ltd.
Pavna Sun Weorld Autotech Pvt Ltd
Pavna Marketing Pwt Ltd

Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt Ltd

PJ] Wealth Management & Consultants P. Ltd.

Shri Swapnil Jain

Smt. Asha Jain

Smit. Priya Jain

Shri Sanjay Kurmar lain

Shri. Ravindra | Pise

Shri Makarand Haribhau Mahajan
Shri. Ravindra Madan Mghan Agrawal
Ms. Palak Jain

Ms. Charu Singh

Ms. Kanchan Gupta

Mr. Vijay Sharma

Mr. Ram Karan Malik

Mr. Arun Khanna

Mr. Panka] Agarwal

Mr. Alok Sharma

Mr. Rachakanda Murthy

Shri Naozer Firoze Aibara

Shri Dhruv Jain

Shri Achyutanand Remchandra Mishra

Where transactions have taken place during the year or previous year or balances are outstanding - NIL

e) Enterprise over which KMP exercise control or significant influence

Pavna Sports Venture Private Limited

PJ Wealth Management & Consultants P. Ltd.
Ascus Cricket Private Limited

Pavna Electric Systems Private Limited

Pavna International Schools Private Limited



Pavna Industries Limited

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(All amounts are in lacs(T), unless otherwise specified)

Note No.- Related Party Disclosure - Contd..
B. The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

Mature of Transactions Name of Related Party Relationship For the year For the year ended
ended 31 March 2023
31 March 2024
Loan taken during the year
Loan taken Smt. Asha Jain Diractor - 85.00
Loan taken Smit. Priya lain Director - 180.00
Loan taken Shri Swapnil Jain Managing Director & 859.00
Loan taken PJ Wealth Management & Consultants P. Ltd. Entity having substantial 414.50 150.00
interest in the Company
Loan Repaid during the year
Repayment of Loan taken  |Smt. Asha Jain Director . 95.00 200.00
Repayment of Loan taken  |Smt. Priya Jain Director - 180.00
Repayment of Loan taken  |Shri Swapnil Jain Maznaging Director 269.00 580.00
Repayment of Loan taken  |PJ Wealth Management & Consultants P, Ltd. Entity having substantial 1,204.50 325.00
interest in the Company
Interest on Loans (Net of TDS)
Interest{Net) Smt. Asha lain = Director 0.70 8.70
Interest{Net) Shri Swapnil Jain Managing Director 1.99 9.26
Interest(Net) Smt. Priya Jain Director - 0.83
Interest(Net} Pl Wezlth Management & Consultants P. Ltd. Entity having substantial 54.10 76.85
interest in the Company
Remuneration, Salary & Other Expense
Remuneration Shiri Swapnil Jain Managing Director 216.00 216.00
Remuneration Shri. Ravindra ) Pise CEQ 28.00
Rermuneration shri. Makarand Mahajan CrD 5.00 15.00
Remuneration Shri. Ravindra Madan Mohan Agrawal CFO 10.61 -
Remuneration Ms. Palak Jain CFD 3.24 -
Remuneration Ms. Charu Singh cs 7.90 7.12
Remuneration Kanchan Gupta cs 6.23 -
Remuneration Vijay Sharma KMP 24.00 24.00
Remuneration Rarn Karan Malik KMF 26.28 26.28
Remuneration Arun Khanna KMP 25.44 23.44
Remuneration |Pankaj Agarwal KMP 25,16 2216
Remuneration Alok Sharma KIMP 18.60 15.58
Remuneration Rachakonda Murthy KMP 7.29 -
Building Rent Smit. Asha lain Director B.52 852
Lease Rent Smt, Asha Jain Director 0.10 0.10
Trade Mark Royalty Smt. Asha Jain Director 70,77 B5.68
Sales & Purchase -
Purchase Swapnil Switches Put. Ltd. Subsidary Company 159.31 242.99
Purchase - Fixed Assets Swapnil Switches Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary Company - 44,26
Purchase Pawvna Auto Engineering Pwt. Ltd. Subsidary Company 66.27 230.19
Sale Swapnil Switches Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary Company 317.68 368.59
Sale Pavna Auto Engineering Pvt, Ltd, Subsidary Company 2,040.06 2,285.54
Sale Pavna Sun World Autotech Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company 5.43 11.46
Purchase Pavna Sun World Autatech Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company 0.10 0.58
Sale Pavna Marketing Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company 3,044.69 2 695.60
Purchase Pavna Marketing Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company 303.64 100.81
Purchase Pavna Goyarn Auto Pyt Ltd Subsidary Company - 967.81
Sale Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company - 238
DG SET RENT Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company - 0.80
Building Rent Pavna Goyam Auto Pvt Ltd Subsidary Company - 13.78
Investment of Shares- Sales/ Purchase
Advances Pavna Goyarn Auto Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary Company 250.00
Security Deposits
Security Deposit Pavna Goyam Auto Pt Ltd Subsidary Company - 100.00




Pavna Industries Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All gmounts are in locs(X), uniess otherwise specified)

Note No.- Related Party Disclosure - Contd..
C. Details of related party balances as at year end:

Nature of Name of Related Party Relationship As at As at
Transactions 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loan Taken Smt. Asha Jain Whaole time director - 95.00
Loan Taken Shri Swapnil Jain KMP - 2B69.00
Loan Taken Pl Wealth Management & Consultants P. Ltd. Entity having substantial interest in the - 790.00
Company '
Trade Receivables |Swapnil Switches Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary company 114.40 231.76
Trade Receivables |Pavna Marketing Pyt Ltd Subsidary company 755.21 216.05
Trade Receivables |Pavna Sun World Autotech Pt Ltd Subsidary company 107.95 B4.34
Trade Receivahles |Pavna Auto Engineering Pt Ltd. Subsidary company « 255.26 193.16
Trade Payables |Pawvna Auto Engineering Put. Ltd. Subsidary company %
Trade Payables |Smit. Asha lain Whole time director .86
Investments  |Swapnil Switches Put. Ltd. Subsidary company 197.76 197.76
Investments Pavna Marketing Pvt Ltd Subsidary company 10.00 10.00
Investments  |Pavna Sun World Autotech Pyt Ltd Subsidary company 71.50 71.50
Investments Pawvna Auto Engineering Pvt. Ltd. Subsidary company 684.77 684,77
Investments  |Pavna Goyam Auto Put. Ltd. Subsidary company - 255.00
Security Deposit |Smt. Asha Jain Managing director 300.00 300.00

given*




Pavna Industries Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
fall gmounts are in lacsf<), unless otherwise specified)

36 Capital management

The Company's capital includes issued share capital and all other distributable reserves. The primary objective of the Company’s capital
management Is 10 maximise shareholder value and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Campany have

short term borrowings.
Companies Debt equity ratio is:

Particul As at Asat
i 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Debt* 11,034.65 8,808.56
Equity 6,516.98 5.733.13
Debt to equity ratio 1.69 1.54

* Debt includes short term borrowings + interest accrued - cash and cash equivalents ]
37 Employee benefits
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS} - 19 on Employee Benefit as under :
.
s For the year ended For the year ended
tribut fa

Hetines eatal i phgis 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
The company makes contribution towards employee's provident fund and employee's
state insurance. The company has recognised following as contribution towards these 158.36 139.98

schemes.

Defined benefit plans
Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee is entitled to gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act,

1972. The liability of Gratuity is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Salary increases

Actual salary increases will increase the plan's
liability. Increase in salary increase rate

Discount rate

Reduction in discount rate in subsequent

Mortality & disability

Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or

higher than assumed in the valuation can impact

Withdrawals

Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than

assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal

Amounts recognised in the balance sheet:

—— For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of the obligation 272.27 198.40
Current liability [amount due within one year) 87.09 70.13
Non-current liability (amount due over one year) 185.18 128.27
Loss recognised in other comprehensive income:
B For the year ended For the year ended
aHedls 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuarial loss recognised during the year [8.49) (23.53)
Exp recognised in st t of profit and loss
Biise For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost 39.98 37.34
Interest cost 16.21 13.29
Cost recognised during the year 56.19 50,63




Movement in the liability recognised in the balance sheet is as under:

31 March 2024

T For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Present value of defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 22512 188.40
Current service cost 39.98 37.34
Interest cost 16.21 13.13
Actuarial (gain)/loss net & 5
Actuarial loss on arising from change in demographic assumption - -
Actuarial loss on arising from change in financial assumption 2.66 |5.88)
Actuarial loss on arising from experience adjustment {11.15) {17.65)
Benefits paid {0.55) (0.38)
Present value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 272,27 225,12
For determination of the liability of the Company the following actuarial assumptions were used: .
il For the year ended For the year ended

arbowars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate 7.00% - 7.20%
Salary escalation rate 5.00% 5.00%
Retirement age (Years) 58 Years 58 Years
Withdrawal rate 10.00% 10.00%
Weighted average duration of PBO 7 Years 7 Years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability -100% of IALM (2012 - 14}

L]
Sensitivity analysis for gratuity liability:
For the

Particulars or year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

a) Impact of the change in discount rate
Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Impact due to increase of 1% 13.57 11.40
Impact due to decrease of 1 % 12.04 10.13
b) Impact of the change in salary increase

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

Impact due toincrease of 1% 13.71 11.54
Impact due to decrease of 1% 12.37 10.39

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material .Hence impact of change is not calculated
Sensitivities as to rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions before retirement ond life expectoncy

are not opplicable being @ lump sum benefit on retirement

38 Segment information

The company operates in a single reportable segment , for the purpose of Ind AS 108 "Operating S5egment”, is considered to be the only
repartable business segment. The Company derives its major revenues from the activities related to manufacturing of Locks, Auto Locks and

Auto Parts in India.

40 Disclesure under Ind AS 115 - Revenue from Contracts with Customer

1. Disagreegation of r

D ot For the year ended For the year ended
EaRHIpHn 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Sale of products 28,273.49 26,271.51
Sale of services a &
Scrap sales = -
{11) Contract Assets and Contract Liabilities

= For the year ended For the year ended
Patticiars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Trade receivable 5,290.06 4,375.22
Contract Assets - Accrued revenue - -
Contract Liabilities - Advance from customer 21.15 68.95




41 Leases
a) Company as a lessee

The company has leases for office space and buildings. With the exception of short term leases and leases of low value underlying assets,
each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right of use assets and a lease liability. The company has presented its right of use assetsin

the balance sheet separately from other assets,

Each lease geneally imposes a restriction that unless there is contractual right for the company to sublease the assets to another party, the
right of use assets can only be used by the company. The company is Prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying assets as security.

i. Lease Liabilities

Particulars At s
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current 347 4.95
Non-Current 35.39 38.86
Additions to the right of use assets during the year were Nil !
(i} Amount recognised in Profit or loss
. For the year ended For the ygar ended
Particulars
' 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on right of use assets 5.53 17.71
Interest an lease liabilities (included in interest expense) 383 4.96
Expense relating to short term leases 69.16 55.40
Net Impact on Statement of Profit or loss 78.62 78.06
{iii) Amount recognised in the cash flow stat it
h For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars
S 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Payment of lease |iabilities- interest and principal 8.52 21.83
(iv) Maturity of lease liabilities
The lease liabilities are secured by the underlying assets. Further minimum lease payments were as follows:
As at As at
L Pa nts
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Less then 1 year = 347
1-2 Years 8.52 852
2-3 Years B.52 8.52
More then 3 Years 34,08 34.08
Total 51.12 54.58




Pavna Industries Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
{All amounts are in lacs(T), unless otherwise specified)

42 Financial Ratios

Ratio M. nment Unit |N or Denominatar As At Azat % Change % Change
31 March 2024 {31 March 2023 |March 2024 |March 2023
Currant Ratio Times Current assets Current lizhilities 1.02 108 -5.24% -0.20%
Total debt {(Non-current
Debit Equity Ratio Times borrowings + Current  |Total equity 170 1.54 10.13% 5.54%
borrowings)
Eamnings before i
depreciation and
amortisation and Interest expenses
; interest (Profit & loss  |{Including
e ra
Eeft TVice COVEroEe | Times aftar tay + depreziation |capitalised)+ Principal 153 1.94 “21,00% -10.07%
ano
& amortisation repayments {including
expense+ Finance costs |prepayments)
(excluding interest on
lease liabilities))
A f tatal .
Return on equity ratio {9 Profit after tax w"r‘!ge it 12.69% 13.44% -5.55% 1.27%
lequity
tory Turnover . Cost of material
Inventory Turng — ost of materia Average Inventories 2.90 3.00 -3.43% -32.92%
| Ratio consumed
rade Receivables Revenue fro A trad
Trade Recei Yimes =hile feun MEMABE Aok 5.85 623 -6.02% -14,23%
turnover Ratia Operations receivables
bl Furchase + oth
Trade Payables Times rchase + other Average trade 6s 566 7 04% B
turnover Ratio expenses payahles
: Working capital
Net Capital turnover | Revenue from
PR Times _ (Current assets- 131.33 27.53 377.22% 7.18%
ratio Operations e
current liakilities)
Net Profit ratio % Profit after tax Revenue from aperatiq 3% 3% -0.54% B8.71%
Earnings before
depreciation and
lamartisation and Capital employed
Return on Capital intersst (Profit & loss  |(Total assets - current
5% 16.06% 16.30% =1.47% =3
Employed before tax + liakilities + current & i A8k
depreciation & barrowings)
armortisation expeanse+
Finance costs |
: Equity share ital +
Return on Investment [% Profit after ta ity shepe cont 29.71% 27.84% 5.72% 12.02%
securities premium

for Changes in ratio ahove 25%:

Ratio Reason

Current Ratie Mot Applicable =
Debt Equity Ratio Mot Applicable

Cebt Service coverage Ratio Mot Applicable

Return on equity ratio Mot Applicable

Inventory Turnover Ratio Not Applirable

Trade Receivables turnover Ratio Mot Applicable

Trade Payables turnover Ratio

Mot Applicable

MNet Capital turnover ratio

MSME ¢reditors have been paid which has l=ad to decrease in Trade payable, thus having an imact on the ratics

MNet Profit ratio

Not Applicable

Return on Capital Employed

Mot Applicable

Return on Investment

Increase In Profits as compared to previous year

42 Corporate Social Responsibility

Particulars Mar-24 Mar-23
CSR linbiltty for the year:
Average nel profit for last 3 years B50.00 803.86
CSR liability (2% of average) for the year| 17.00 16.08
Ameount spent during the year 17.00 16.08 |
Balange amount unspent - -




Information relating to Litigations
Company has received following GST orders and Notices-Order for Aligarh Unit is Rs, 1489753 and for Aurangabad Unit Rs 9589437
Notica for Input Tax - Recenciliation has been receivad and we are in process of 1ts disposz| and necessary step has been taken.

There is dispute regarding accidental claim by worker which amounts to approximately Rs 17 Lakhs,
Other information

(i} Fursuant to the Taxation Laws {Amendment) Act, 2018, with effect from 01-April-19 domestic companies have the option to pay corporate income tax at 5 rate
of 22% plus applicable surcharge and eess (‘New Tax Rate’) subject to certain conditions, The Company continued to compute tax as per old tax rate for the
financial year 2019-20 & 2020-21 & adopted new scheme from 01.04.2021.

{ii) The Company does not have any Benami property, where zny proceeding has been initiated or pending 2gainst the Company for holding any Benami property.

{1ii) The Company did not have any transactions with Companies struck off.

{iv)There are certain charges cpen at MCA portal. These charges are created against the loan availed and which has been fully repaid. We have got no dues
certificate from respective institution and charge satisfaction form filing with MCA Is under process. There are 2 charges for Reliance Capiptal Loan and Reliance
Home Finance Ltd. Loan is repaid and NOC for the same is received. Compliance is In pracess for Charge satisfaction. Pavna Goyam Auto Pyt Ltd has repaid its
izan. Borrower has repaid but charge not yet satisfiad. NOC is yet to be received

-

(v) The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the respective financial years / perivd.

(vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shall:
(2} directly or indirectly end or investin other persans or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of the Company (Uhirate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like ta ar on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
w

(vii) The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entityies), including forelgn entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether
recorded in writing or ctherwise) that the

Campany shall:

(2] directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficlaries) or

(b} provide any guarantee, security or the like en behalf of the Ukimate Beneficiaries,

{uili} The Company does nat have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961).

(ix) The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender.

(¥} The Company does not have any Scherme of Arrangements which have been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Act,
() The Company has complied with the the number of layers prescribed under of Section 2(87) of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of
Layers) Rules, 2017,

(xi1) There are some differences between stock statement submitted to bank and books of aceounts. These difference are due to clerical mistake while compiling
the data. However revised stock statement are submitted to Bank.

xiil} Since payments to MSME crediters has been made by way of Account Payee chegues, within the specified time limits hence no provisicn has been made,

wiv) During the year the company has given an advance of Rs 107.95 |akhs to its subsidiary Pavna Sunworld Private (imited against purchase of Raw Material and
fixed asset.

xv) During the year the company sold its entire holding in Pavna Gayam Auta Pvt L1d. on 11th May 2023 as such PGAPL ceased to be a subsidiary of the company
w.e.f 11 May 2023, The management is of the opinion that thers is no Gain / Loss on sale of shares and it requires no provision for Income Tax
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NOTICE
(PURSUANT TO SECTION 101 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013)

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 30™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE
MEMBERS OF PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED TO BE HELD AT PAVNA
INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL, ALIGARH—AGRA HIGHWAY, NEAR
MANGALAYATAN MANDIR, ALIGARH-202001, UTTAR PRADESH INDIA ON
SEPTEMBER 30, 2024 MONDAY AT 11:00 A.M TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING
BUSINESS:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 and the

Profit and Loss Account for the vear ended on that date together with the Schedules
thereon, along with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company comprising of the balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the statement of profit and
loss, cash flow statement and statement of equity, for the financial year ended on March
31, 2024, together with the notes thereto, report of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon, as circulated to the Members, be and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. Toreappoint Mrs. Priva Jain (DIN: 03355623), who retires by rotation at this Annual
General Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of section 152 of the Companies Act,
2013, Mrs. Priya Jain (DIN: 03355623) who retires by rotation and being eligible offers
herself for reappointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as a director of the company.

ed

Increase Authorised Share Capital of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 61 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules issued there under (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to the approval
of the shareholders in the General Meeting, the consent of the board of Directors is hereby
accorded for increasing the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from
Rs.18,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eighteen Crores Only) comprising 1,80,00,000 (Rupees One
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Crore Eighty Lakhs only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/~ (Rupees Ten) each to Rs.
Rs.30,00,00,000/- (Rupees Thirty Crores Only) comprising into 3,00,00,000 (Rupees
Three Crore only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten) each.

Alteration of the Capital Clause of the Memorandum of Association

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 13 and 61 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules issued there under (including any
statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and subject to
the approval of the shareholders in the General Meeting the existing Clause V of the
Memorandum of Association of the Company be and are hereby deleted and substituted by
the following:

V. The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 30,00,00,000 (Rupees Thirty
Crores only) comprising of: 3,00,00,000 (Three Crore Only) Equity Shares of Rs. 10
(Rupees Ten) each

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT , for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the
Board (which expression shall also include a Committee thereof ), be and is hereby
authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, including delegation of any of its
powers herein conferred to its Directors, Company Secretary or any other officer(s).”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
Appointment of M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm

Registration No. 005560C) as Statutory Auditors of the Company and to fix their
remuneration

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
thereof for the time being in force) and pursuant to the recommendations of the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors through resolution passed on on September 4, 2024
appointed M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration
No. 005560C), approval of the members be and are hereby accorded for the appointment of
M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
005560C) as Statutory Auditors to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of M/s
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Rajeev Kumar & co., Chartered Accountants on such remuneration and out of expenses as
may be determined by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit Committee.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT approval of the shareholders be and are hereby accorded for
the appointment of M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Registration No. 005560C) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office for a
period of five consecutive years from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the year 2029,
at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors of the Company (or any
committee thereof) in consultation with the Statutory Auditors.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to provide
certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary steps in
pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance with
regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

6. Appointment of Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (DIN:10277614) as an Independent
Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies
ACT, 2013 (including statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) and Regulation 17 and any other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and that of the Board, Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh
(DIN:10277614) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on
the Board of the Company with effect from August 14, 2024, the approval of the
members/shareholders of the Company be and are hereby accorded to the appointment of
Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (DIN:10277614) as an Independent Director of the Company on
the Board of the Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years from August
14, 2024 to August 13, 2029, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder [including
any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof], Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh be
paid such sitting fees as the Board may approve from time to time and subject to such limits,
prescribed or as may be prescribed by the Company from time to time.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
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authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to provide
certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary steps in
pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance with
regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

7. Re-confirm the Appointment of Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara (DIN: 08759817) as an
Independent Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies
ACT, 2013 (including statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) and Regulation 17 and any other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and that of the Board, Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara
(DIN: 08759817) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on
the Board of the Company with effect from June 25, 2020 and was appointed by the
shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing of Ordinary
Resolution on June 30, 2020, the approval of the members/shareholders of the Company be
and are hereby accorded through passing of special resolution for re-confirming the
appointment of Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara (DIN: 08759817) as an independent Director of
the Company on the Board of the Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive
years from June 25, 2020 to June 24, 2025, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder [including
any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof], Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara be
paid such sitting fees as the Board may approve from time to time and subject to such limits,
prescribed or as may be prescribed by the Company from time to time.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to provide
certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary steps in
pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance with
regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

8. Re-confirm the Appointment of Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN: 09835701) as an Independent
Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Special Resolution:
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies
ACT, 2013 (including statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) and Regulation 17 and any other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and that of the Board, Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN:
09835701) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on the
Board of the Company with effect from February 14, 2023 and was appointed by the
shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing of an Ordinary
Resolution on September 29, 2023, the approval of the members/shareholders of the
Company be and are hereby accorded through passing of special resolution to re-confirm
the appointment of Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN:09835701) as an independent Director of the
Company on the Board of the Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive
years from February 14, 2023 to February 13, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder [including
any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof], Mr. Dhruv Jain be paid such
sitting fees as the Board may approve from time to time and subject to such limits,
prescribed or as may be prescribed by the Company from time to time.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to provide
certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary steps in
pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance with
regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

9. Re-confirm the appointment of Mrs. Privanka Moondra Rathi (DIN: 09485101) as an
Independent Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies
ACT, 2013 (including statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) and Regulation 17 and any other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and that of the Board, Mrs. Priyanka Moondra
Rathi (DIN: 09485101) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent
Director on the Board of the Company with effect from August 14, 2023 and was appointed
by the shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing of an
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Ordinary Resolution on September 29, 2023, the approval of the members/shareholders of
the Company be and are hereby accorded through passing of special resolution to re-confirm
the appointment of Mrs. Priyanka Moondra Rathi (DIN: 09485101) as an independent
Director of the Company on the Board of the Company to hold office for a term of five (5)
consecutive years from August 14, 2023 to August 13, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder [including
any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof], Mrs. Priyanka Moondra Rathi be
paid such sitting fees as the Board may approve from time to time and subject to such limits,
prescribed or as may be prescribed by the Company from time to time.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to provide
certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary steps in
pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance with
regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

10. Re-confirm the appointment of Mrs. Himani Bhootra (DIN: 09811030) as an
Independent Director of the Company

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150, 152 read with
schedule IV and Section 161(1) read with Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, and other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the Companies
ACT, 2013 (including statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) and Regulation 17 and any other applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015 and approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and that of the Board, Mrs. Himani Bhootra
(DIN: 09811030) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Independent Director on
the Board of the Company with effect from April 17, 2023 and was appointed by the
shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing of Ordinary
Resolution on September 29, 2023, the approval of the members/shareholders of the
Company be and are hereby accorded through passing of special resolution to re-confirm
the appointment of Mrs. Himani Bhootra (DIN: 09811030) as an independent Director of
the Company on the Board of the Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive
years from April 17,2023 to April 16, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 197 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder [including
any statutory modifications(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof], Mrs. Himani Bhootra be paid
such sitting fees as the Board may approve from time to time and subject to such limits,
prescribed or as may be prescribed by the Company from time to time.”
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to provide
certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary steps
in pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance with
regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

11. Approve the Related Party Transactions

To approve Related Party Transactions of the Company and in this regard, to consider
and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 188 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meeting of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014 and in terms of applicable provisions of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, and pursuant to the consent
of the Audit Committee vide resolutions passed in their respective meetings, the approval
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Related Party Transactions as entered by
the company during Financial Year 2024-25 as per details set out under item no. 11 of the
Statement annexed to this Notice.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thercof) be and are hereby
authorized to perform and execute all such deeds, matters and things including delegation
of authority as may be deemed necessary or expedient to give effect to this resolution and
for the matters connected therewith or incidental thereto™.

12. Approval for Increase in Overall Borrowing Limits of the Company as Per Section
180 (1) (¢) of The Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and all
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made there under
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force)
and in supersession of all the earlier resolutions, the consent of the members of the Company
be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Director(s) (hereinafter referred to as the “Board”
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee thereof for the time being exercising
the powers conferred on the Board of Directors by this Resolution), to borrow any sum or
sums of monies, from time to time, in any form including but not limited to by way of loans,
financial facility, through the issuance of debentures, commercial paper or such other form,
upon such terms and conditions as to interest, repayment, or otherwise and with or without
security, as the Board may think fit for the purposes of the Company’s business
notwithstanding that the money or monies to be borrowed, together with the monies already
borrowed by the Company (apart from temporary loans obtained from the Company’s
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bankers in the ordinary course of business) may exceed the aggregate of the paid-up share
capital of the Company and its free reserves, provided however, the total amount so
borrowed shall not exceed at any point in time a sum equivalent to Rs. 7,50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Seven Hundred and Fifty Crores Only).”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized and empowered to
arrange or settle the terms and conditions on which all such monies are to be borrowed from
time to time as to interest, repayment, security or otherwise howsoever as it may think fit
and to do all such acts, deeds and things, to execute all such documents, instruments and
writings as may be required.”

13. Approval To Sell, Lease Or Otherwise Dispose Undertaking Of Company Pursuant
To Section 180(1)(a):

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 180(1)(a) and other applicable provisions, if any,
of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under (including any amendment
thereto or re-enactment thereof), and as per the Articles of Association of the Company,
subject to such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be necessary from
appropriate authorities, the consent of shareholders of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to create charges, hypothecations, mortgages/equitable mortgages, on movable
and/or immovable properties and/ or whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of the
Company, present and/or future, to take over he the management of the business and
concern of the Company and/ or sell/ dispose of the properties so charged , mortgaged or
hypothecated in certain events, in favour of lenders, banks, financial institutions, trustees
of the holders of debentures/bonds and/or other instruments, hire, purchase/lease
companies, body corporate or any other person/ on such terms and conditions as the Board
may deem fit, towards security for borrowings of the Company from time to time, provided
that the total amount at any point of time shall not exceed Rs. 7,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Seven Hundred and Fifty Crores Only).”

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to
provide certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary
steps in pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance
with regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

14. Approval to make loan(s) and give guarantee(s), provide security(ies) or make

investments in_excess of the prescribed limit as mentioned under section 186 of
Companies Act, 2013

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as Special Resolution:
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RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 179, 186 and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, consent of the shareholders of the Company
be and is hereby accorded for making Investments in other bodies corporate / giving Loans
to any other person / providing Guarantees / Securities on behalf of loan availed by any
other person, from time to time, on such terms and conditions and with or without security
as the Board of Directors may think fit which, together with the investments made / loans
given / guarantees / securities already made by the Company, which may exceed 60% of
paid up capital and free reserves and securities premium OR 100% of free reserves and
securities premium, that is to say, reserves not set apart for any specific purpose, whichever
is more, provided that the total amount of investments made / loans given / guarantees /
securities already made by the Company, shall not at any time exceed the limit of Rs.
7,50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seven Hundred and Fifty Crores Only).”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby
authorized to negotiate and settle the terms and conditions of the investments / loans /
guarantees / securities which may be made by the Company from time to time, by the
Company, finalize the agreements/contracts and documents in this regard and to do all such
acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT any of the Directors of the Company be and is/are hereby
authorised on behalf of the board to sign, submit, attest, place papers and Form(s) for
Certification, as if required and uploading with ROC Office through MCA Portal, to
provide certified true copies of this resolution and is/are also authorize to take all necessary
steps in pursuance of the matter and to file necessary forms, execute all needful compliance
with regard to the matter, his/her or their all acts and deeds will be binding to the company.”

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Sd/-

Swapnil Jain

Date: September 4, 2024 Managing Director
Place: Aligarh DIN:01542555

Registered office:

Vimlanchalhari nagar Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh-202001,India
Tel:+91-0571-2410010

Website: www.pavna.in, Email; cs@pavnagroup.com
CIN:L34109UP1994PLC016359
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NOTES

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF.
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective and valid, should be deposited at the Registered Office
of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting. A Proxy form MGT -11 is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on behalf of the companies,
societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate resolution/authority, as applicable.

Members are requested to note that a person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50
members provided shareholding of those members in aggregate should not be more than 10% of the total
share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a
Member holding more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then
such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder.

2. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the meeting pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company a certified copy of the
Board resolution authorizing their representatives to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

3. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details
relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto. The relevant details, pursuant to
Regulations 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations™) and Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at this
Annual General Meeting (“AGM?”) is also annexed.

4. Members are requested to bring their attendance slip along with copy of the report and accounts to
Annual General Meeting. Duplicate attendance slips shall not be issued.

5. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice & Explanatory Statement would be
available for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the Company on all working days,
except Saturday / Sunday & Public Holidays, between 11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. up to the date of the
Annual General Meeting.

6. Members are requested to notify immediately any changes, if any, in their registered addresses at an
early date to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, quoting their folio numbers/client ID/ DP ID in all
correspondence, so as to enable the Company to address any future communication at their correct
address.

7. Members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested to intimate all changes pertaining to their
bank details/NECS/ mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address/ name, Permanent
Account Number (‘PAN’) details, etc. to their Depository Participant only and not to the Company’s
RTA. Changes intimated to the Depository Participant will then be automatically reflected in the
Company’s records which will help the Company and its RTA provide efficient and better service to the
members.
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8. Members attending the meeting are requested to complete the enclosed attendance slip and deliver the
same at the entrance of the meeting Venue.

9. Members desirous of seeking any information concerning the Accounts of the Company are requested
to address their queries in writing to the Company at least seven days prior to the Annual General
Meeting so that the requested information can be made available at the time of the meeting.

10. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such joint holders who are higher in the order of
names will be entitled to vote.

11. No gifts shall be provided to members before, during or after the AGM.

12. Rule 11 of the Companies (accounts) Rules, 2014 permits circulation of Annual Report through
electronic means to such of the shareholders whose e-mail addresses are registered with NSDL or CDSL
or the shareholders who have registered their e-mail IDs with the Company to receive the documents in
electronic form and physical copies to those shareholders whose e-mail IDs have not been registered
either with the Company or with the depositories. To support “Green Initiative in Corporate
Governance” Electronic copy of the Annual Report is being sent to all the members who’s Email IDs
are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any
member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email
address, physical copies of the Annual Report is being sent in the permitted mode.

13. Members are requested to address all correspondence pertaining to their securities mentioning Client
ID or DP ID numbers, as applicable, including any change of address, if any, to the Registrar and
Transfer Agent of the Company viz.:

LINK INTIME INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
C-101, 1 Floor, 247 Park, L.B.S. Marg, Vikhroli
(West), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India, 400083

Tel: +91 22 4918 6200

Email: pavna.ipo@linkintime.co.in,

Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Investor Grievance Email: pavna.ipo@]linkintime.co.in

14. Members are requested to support this green initiative by registering / updating their e-mail addresses,
in respect of shares held in dematerialized form with their respective Depository participants. The
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are
therefore requested to submit their PAN to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining
their demat accounts.

15. Pursuant to Section 101 and Section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant Rules made
there under, Companies can serve Annual Reports & other communications through electronic mode to
those members whose email IDs are registered with the Company. As per provisions of Section 20 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made there under, a document may be served on any member
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by sending it to him/her by post or by registered post or by speed post or by courier or by delivering at
his/her office/home address or by such electronic mode as may be prescribed including by facsimile
telecommunication or to electronic mail address, which the member has provided to the Company from
time to time for sending communications, provided that a member may request for delivery of any
document through a particular mode, for which he/she shall pay such fees as may be determined by the
Company in its Annual General Meeting. For members who have not registered their email address with
the Company, the service of documents will be affected by other modes of services as provided in
Section 20 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant Rules there under. Printed copies of the
Notice of the Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of
voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent to all members in the permitted mode.

16. Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting and the Annual Report for 2021
will also be available on the Company’s website www.pavna.in for their download. The physical copies
of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company’s Registered Office for inspection
during normal business hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, members
are entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, free
of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the Company’s designated
email id: mail to:cs@pavnagroup.com

17. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 91 of the Companies Act, 2013 the Register of Members and Share
Transfer Books of the Company will remain close from Tuesday, 24 September, 2024 to Monday, 30th
September, 2024 (both days inclusive) in connection with the Annual General Meeting.

18. VOTING SYSTEM:

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Thursday, September 26, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. and ends
on Sunday, September 29, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled
by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of
Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. September 23, 2024,
may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to
their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being
September 23, 2024.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are
mentioned below:
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat
mode
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies. Individual shareholders holding_securities in demat mode are allowed to vote

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts
in order to access e-Voting facility.
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:

Shareholders holding
securities in demat
mode with NSDL.

Type of | Login Method
shareholders
Individual 1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of

NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login”
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password.
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be
re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not
registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select “Register
Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at
https://eservices.nsdl.com/Secure Web/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser
by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting
system 1is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new
screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e.
your sixteen digit demat account number hold with
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown
on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see
e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during
the remote e-Voting period.

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code
mentioned below for seamless voting experience.
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NSDL Mobile App is available on

.' App Store ' Google Play

Individual 1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can
Shareholders holding login through their existing user id and password. Option
securities in demat will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any
mode with CDSL further authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are
g
requested to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and
click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then
user your existing my easi username & password.

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able
to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where
the evoting is in progress as per the information provided
by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will
be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting
period. Additionally, there is also links provided to access
the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the
user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website
directly.

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then
click on registration option.

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from
a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in
progress and also able to directly access the system of all
e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual You can also login using the login credentials of your demat
Shareholders account through your Depository Participant registered with
(holding securities in | NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be
demat mode) login | able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be

through their | redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful
depository authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on
participants company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your
vote during the remote e-Voting period.

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User 1D/ Password are advised to use

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical

is:

sues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding

securities in demat mode with | Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
NSDL NSDL  helpdesk by sending a request at
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individ'ual .Shareholders holdipg Members facing any technical issue in login can contact
securities in demat mode with | CDSL  helpdesk by sending a request at

CDSL helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free
no. 1800-21-09911

B)

holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which
is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and
a Verification Code as shown on the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at
htips://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed
to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

| Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat |Your User 1D is:
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(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical
a) For Members who hold shares in | 8§ Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit
demat account with NSDL. Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300***
and Client ID is 12****** then your user

ID i IN3QQ*** 2 H434%

b) For Members who hold shares in | 16 Digit Beneficiary ID

demat account with CDSL. For example if your Beneficiary ID is
[ 2 dHAAHAAH AR, then your user ID is
12**************

c¢) For Members holding shares in | EVEN Number followed by Folio

Physical Form. Number registered with the company

For example if folio number is 001***
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is
101456001 ***

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing
password to login and cast your vote.

b) If youare using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve
the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your
‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will
force you to change your password.

¢) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company,
your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace
the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and
open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to
open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits
of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical
form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii))  If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have

forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your
demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode)
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c¢) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a
request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio
number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the
votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.
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7.

8.
9.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions™ by selecting on
the check box.

Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN in which
you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens.

Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the
number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also
“Confirm” when prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on
the confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1.

Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc.
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized
to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to shantanu@sbjainassociates.com > with a copy marked
to evoting@nsdl.com._Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI
etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by
clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter" displayed under "e-

Voting" tab in their login.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take
utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be
disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event,
you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.
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3.

In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for
Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section
of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Mr. Kaushal
Kumar at evoting@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for
procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions

set out

1

3.

4.

in this notice:

. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder,

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy
of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cs(@pavnagroup.com.

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID +
CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account
statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@pavnagroup.com. If you are an Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login
method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual
shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9. 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed
Companies. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote
through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants.

Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their
demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEM NO.5

M/s Rajeev Kumar & Company, Aligarh (Firm’s Regn No. 000633C) has resigned as
Statutory Auditor the Company with effect from the closure of the business hours of August
14, 2024. They proposed the audit fees to be revised but the proposal was not passed by the
Audit Committee, hence they resigned as the Statutory Auditor.

This has resulted into a casual vacancy in the office of Statutory Auditors of the Company
as envisaged by Section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013. Casual vacancy caused by the
resignation of auditor shall be approved by the shareholders in General Meeting within three
months from the date of recommendation of the Board of Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommended the appointment M/s. M/s. Arun
Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 005560C) as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of
M/s Rajeev Singhal & co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.000633C).
Accordingly, shareholders’ approval by way of ordinary resolution is sought as envisaged
by the section 139(8) of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act™) casual vacancy caused by the
resignation of auditors can only be filled up by the Company in the general meeting.

M/s. M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
005560C), have conveyed their consent for being appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the
Company along with a confirmation that, their appointment, if made by the members, would
be within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and shall satisfy the criteria
as provided under section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and have given a certificate in
that firm complies with all eligibility rules regarding appointment of statutory auditors.

M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
005560C), shall hold the office for the period of five years to conduct the audit of accounts
from the financial year 2024-25 to 2028-29 to hold office until the conclusion of the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

As per Regulation 36 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, following are the disclosures related to
appointment of Statutory Auditor:

Fee of Rs. 2,00,000/-per annum is proposed by the Board of Directors on such terms and
conditions as they deem fit in consultation with the Audit Committee.

There has been no material changes in the fee payable to such auditor from that paid to the
outgoing auditor.

Brief profile and credentials of M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates are as under:

M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates is one of the oldest and most reputed Audit and Advisory
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firms in Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh. The firm is involved in carrying out professional
assignments in the areas of Auditing & Assurance - including Statutory & Internal Audits,
Direct Taxation, Indirect Taxation, Audits of PSUs etc. for more than 30 years.

They are being appointed to fill the casual vacancy caused due to the resignation of Statutory
Auditor.

No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned and interested in
the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their shareholding and managerial interest in
the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item
No. 05 of the notice as an ordinary resolution.

ITEM NO.6

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board, Mr. Paras
Shrikant Parekh (DIN:10277614) was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive
Independent Director on the Board of the Company with effect from August 14, 2024. The
term of the office of Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (DIN:10277614) as an Additional Non-
Executive Independent Director is upto the date of this Annual General Meeting.
Considering the rich experience and vast knowledge of Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh, his
presence on the Board of the Company (‘the Board™) will be valuable to the Company and
accordingly, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has recommended his
appointment as an Independent Director of the Company.

The Company has received a notice in writing, pursuant to the Section 160 of the Companies
Act, 2013, from a shareholder proposing his candidature for the office of the Director of the
Company. The Company has received the consent in writing from Mr. Paras Shrikant
Parekh to act as a Director pursuant to Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
Rule 8 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and
intimation to the effect that he is not disqualified under 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013
to be appointed as Director of the Company. The aforesaid notice received is available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company till the date of the Annual General
Meeting and same shall also be placed at the Meeting.

A brief resume in relation to the experience, functional expertise and memberships on the
other Company’s Board and Committee(s) in respect of appointment of Mr. Paras Shrikant
Parekh (DIN:10277614) is provided at Annexure I which forms part of the Notice. The
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, require the Company to seek approval of the
shareholders for the appointment of Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (DIN:10277614) as an
Independent Director of the Company.

No one except Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh (DIN:10277614) is interested/ concerned in the
resolution under item No. 6. No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are
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concerned and interested in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their
shareholding and managerial interest in the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item
No. 06 of the notice as a special resolution.

ITEM NO.7

Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara (DIN : 08759817) was appointed as an Additional Non-executive
Independent Director of the Company by the Board based on the recommendation of
Nomination & Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on 25" June 2020 and was
appointed by the shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing
of Ordinary Resolution on June 30, 2020.

Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara is not disqualified from being appointed as Directors in terms of
Section 164 of the Act. The Company has also received a declaration from Mr. Naozer
Firoze Aibara declaring that he meets the criteria of independence as provided under Section
146(9) of the Companies Act, 2013. In the opinion of the Board, Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara
fulfills the conditions required to be fulfilled for being appointed as an Independent Director
of the Company as per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

A brief resume in relation to the experience, functional expertise and memberships on the

other Company’s Board and Committee(s) in respect of appointment of Mr. Naozer Firoze

Aibara (DIN: 08759817) is provided at Annexure I which forms part of the Notice.

The Board places the above resolution before the Members for their approval through
passing of special resolution for re-confirming the appointment of Mr. Naozer Firoze
Aibara (DIN: 08759817) as an independent Director of the Company on the Board of the
Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years from June 25, 2020 to June
24, 2025, not liable to retire by rotation

No one except Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara (DIN: 08759817) is interested/ concerned in the
resolution under item No. 7. No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
are concerned and interested in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their
shareholding and managerial interest in the Company.

The Board of Directors of the Company recommends the passing of the resolution in Item
No. 7 of the notice as a special resolution.

ITEM NO.8

Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN: 09835701) has been appointed as an additional non-executive
Independent Director of the Company on the approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors w.e.f 14" February,
2023 for a period of five years from 14" February, 2023 to 13" February, 2028 and was
appointed by the shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing
of an Ordinary Resolution on September 29, 2023. Mr. Dhruv Jain is qualified to be
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act™)
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and has given his consent to act as a Director. The Company has also received declaration
from Mr. Dhruv Jain that he meets the criteria of independence as prescribed, both, under
Section 149(6) of the Act and under the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations™)
and that he is not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of any order from
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) or any such authority.

He is a Commerce graduate and also having a Bachelor’s degree in Law. He is an
experienced Tax Advisor and consultant with over 13 years of expertise in the areas of Tax
Planning, Settlement Negotiation, Government relationship Management and submission
to Indian Tax Authorities, Proficient in the Computation of the Corporate, Partnership
Firms, and Individual Taxes.

The Board places the above resolution before the Members for their approval through
passing of special resolution for re-confirming the appointment of Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN:
09835701) as an independent Director of the Company on the Board of the Company to
hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years from February 14, 2023 to February 13,
2028, not liable to retire by rotation.”

No one except Mr. Dhruv Jain (DIN: 09835701) is interested/ concerned in the resolution
under item No. 8. No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives are concerned
and interested in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their shareholding and
managerial interest in the Company.

ITEM NO.9

Mrs. Priyanka Moondra Rathi (DIN: 09485101) has been appointed as an additional non-
executive Independent Director of the Company on the approval and recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors w.e.f 141
August, 2023 for a period of five years from 14" August, 2023 to 13" August, 2028 and
was appointed by the shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through
passing of an Ordinary Resolution on September 29, 2023. Mrs. Priyanka Moondra Rathi
is qualified to be appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the “Act”) and has given her consent to act as a Director. The Company has also
received declaration from Mrs. Priyanka Moondra Rathi that she meets the criteria of
independence as prescribed, both, under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing Regulations™) and that she is not debarred from holding
the office of director by virtue of any order from Securities and Exchange Board of India
(“SEBI”) or any such authority.

She has completed Bachelors of Commerce degree from Jai Narayan Vyas University in
the year 2013 and is a member of Institute of Company secretaries of India since 2017. She
has completed Diploma in MBA in Finance from International Business Management
Institute, Berlin, Germany in the year 2020 and is currently pursuing Certified Public
Accountants course. She has worked with Adani Power Limited, Rathi Eduserve &
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Corporate Consultancy Services Private Limited, Sigma Minerals Limited and currently
she is working with Transmissions International India Private Limited Rajasthan as an
Internal Controller & Company Secretary, Finance department She has an experience of
more than 4 years including internship in the field of Secretarial, Compliances and Legal
work.

The Board places the above resolution before the Members for their approval through
passing of special resolution for re-confirming the appointment of Mrs. Priyanka Moondra
Rathi (DIN: 09485101) as an independent Director of the Company on the Board of the
Company to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years from August 14, 2023 to
August 13, 2028, not liable to retire by rotation.

No one except Mrs. Priyanka Moondra Rathi (DIN: 09485101) is interested/ concerned in
the resolution under item No. 9. No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
are concerned and interested in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their
shareholding and managerial interest in the Company.

ITEM NO.10

Mrs. Himani Bhootra (DIN: 09811030) has been appointed as an additional non-executive
Independent Director of the Company on the approval and recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors w.e.f 17™ April,
2023 for a period of five years from 17" April, 2023 to 16" April, 2028 and was appointed
by the shareholders of the Company as an Independent Director through passing of
Ordinary Resolution on September 29, 2023. Mrs. Himani Bhootra is qualified to be
appointed as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”™)
and has given her consent to act as a Director. The Company has also received declaration
from Mrs. Himani Bhootra that she meets the criteria of independence as prescribed, both,
under Section 149(6) of the Act and under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “Listing
Regulations™) and that she is not debarred from holding the office of director by virtue of
any order from Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) or any such authority.

She is an Associate member of ICSI and holds degree of Bachelors of Commerce (B.Com)
and Masters of Commerce (M.Com) and a Bachelor’s degree in Law (LLB) from JNVU,
Jodhpur.

The Board places the above resolution before the Members for their approval through
passing of special resolution for re-confirming the appointment of Mrs. Himani Bhootra
(DIN: 09811030) as an independent Director of the Company on the Board of the Company
to hold office for a term of five (5) consecutive years from April 17, 2023 to April 16 ,
2028, not liable to retire by rotation.

No one except Mrs. Himani Bhootra (DIN: 09811030) is interested/ concerned in the
resolution under item No. 10. No directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
are concerned and interested in the aforesaid resolution except to the extent of their
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shareholding and managerial interest in the Company.
ITEM NO.11

All related party transactions have been unanimously approved by the Audit Committee
and the Board of Director after satistying itself that the related party transactions are at
arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business. The Audit Committee of the Company
reviews on a quarterly basis, the details of all related party transactions entered into by the

Company during the previous quarter, pursuant to its approvals.

A). Particulars Remarks
1. | Name of the Related Party Swapnil Switches Private Limited (SSPL)
Name of the Director or KMP | Mrs. Asha Jain & Mrs. Priya Jain
who is related
3. | Nature of Relationship SSPL is a subsidiary of PIL. PIL holds 50.74%
shares in SSPL.
SSPL and PIL have the common Promoter and
Director
4. Nature, material terms, | Contract for purchase of Switch parts from SSPL
monetary value and particulars | is on continuous basis. Monetary value of
of the contract or arrangement | proposed aggregate transactions during financial
and maximum permissible | year 2024-25 is expected to be Rs. 15(fifteen)
Limit per annum Crores.
Contract for sale of Lock parts from SSPL is on
continuous basis. Monetary value of proposed
aggregate transactions during financial year
2024-25 is expected to be Rs. 15(fifteen) Crores.
The above transactions will be at arm’s length
price and in the ordinary course of business.
5. Justification for Related Party | PIL will leverage SSPL’s strengths in sourcing
Transactions Switch Parts at competitive prices. SSPL will
leverage PIL’s strength in sourcing of Lock Parts
at competitive prices.
b. Date of Approval by the Board 301" May, 2024
of Directors
7. | Date of Approval by the Audit 13" May, 2024
Committee
3). Particulars Remarks
L. | Name of the Related Party Pavna Auto Engineering Private Limited
(PAEPL)
2. | Name of the Director or KMP . Swapnil Jain, Mrs.Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya Jain
who is related
B. | Nature of Relationship PAEPL is a subsidiary of pIL. PIL holds 50.74%
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shares in PAEPL.
PAEPL and PIL have the common Promoter and
Director
4. | Nature, material terms, | Contract for purchase of Motor Vehicles parts
monetary value and particulars | from PAEPL is on continuous basis. Monetary
of the contract or arrangement | value of proposed aggregate transactions during
and maximum permissible | financial year 2024-25 is expected to be Rs.
Limit per annum 25(Twenty-five) Crores.
Contract for sale of Lock parts from PAEPL is on
continuous basis. Monetary value of proposed
aggregate transactions during financial year
2024-25 is expected to be Rs. 30(Thirty) Crores.
The above transactions will be at arm’s length
price and in the ordinary course of business.
5.  |Justification for Related Party | PIL will leverage PAEPL’s strengths in sourcing
Transactions Motor Vehicles Parts at competitive prices.
PAEPL will leverage PIL’s strength in sourcing
of Lock Parts at competitive prices.
6. | Date of Approval by the Board 301" May, 2024
of Directors
7. | Date of Approval by the Audit 13t May, 2024
Committee
C Particulars Remarks
1. Name of the Related Party Pavna Sunworld Autotech Private Limited
(PSAPL)
D. Name of the Director or KMP . Swapnil Jain, Mrs.Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya Jain
who is related
B. Nature of Relationship PSAPL is a subsidiary of PIL. PIL holds 71.50%
shares in PSAPL.
PSAPL and PIL have the common Promoter and
Director
4. Nature, material terms, | Contract for sale of Casting and Plastic parts from
monetary value and particulars | PAEPL is on continuous basis. Monetary value of
of the contract or arrangement | proposed aggregate transactions during financial
and maximum permissible | year 2024-25 is expected to be Rs. 5 (Five) Crores
Limit per annum and purchase of Rs.5 (Five) Crores.
The above transactions will be at arm’s length
price and in the ordinary course of business.
5. Justification for Related Party | PIL will leverage PSAPL’s strength in selling
Transactions Casting and Plastic Parts at competitive prices.
. Date of Approval by the Board 30t May, 2024
of Directors
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7. | Date of Approval by the Audit 13" May, 2024
Committee
D). Particulars Remarks
I. | Name of the Related Party Pavna Marketing Private Limited (PMPL)
P Name of the Director or KMP {Ir. Swapnil Jain, Mrs. Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya
who is related Jain
3. | Nature of Relationship PMPL is a subsidiary of PIL. PIL holds 99.99%
shares in PMPL.
PMPL and PIL have the common Promoter and
Director
4. | Nature, material terms, | Contract for purchase of Finished Goods from
monetary value and particulars | PMPL is on continuous basis. Monetary value of
of the contract or arrangement | proposed aggregate transactions during financial
and maximum permissible | year 2024-25 is expected to be Rs. 20 (Twenty)
Limit per annum Crores.
Contract for sale of Finished Goods from PMPL
is on continuous basis. Monetary value of
proposed aggregate transactions during financial
year 2023-24 is expected to be Rs. 40 (Forty)
Crores.
The above transactions will be at arm’s length
price and in the ordinary course of business.
5. Justification for Related Party | PIL will leverage PMPL’s strengths in selling
Transactions Finished goods wunder Pavna Brand to
distributors at competitive prices.
b. Date of Approval by the Board 301" May, 2024
of Directors
7. | Date of Approval by the Audit 13t May, 2024
Committee
E). Particulars Remarks
1. | Name of the Related Party PJ Wealth Management & Consultant
Private Limited (PWMCPL)
. | Name of the Director or KMP | Mr. Swapnil Jain
who is related
3. | Nature of Relationship PWMCPL is a Group Company of PIL.
PWMCPL and PIL have the common Promoter
and Director
iy Nature, material terms, | Loan is taken by PIL from PWMCPL of Rs.20
monetary value and particulars | Crores.
of the contract or arrangement | Interest rate-As charged in compliance with the
and maximum permissible | provisions of Companies Act, 2013
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Limit per annum

Nature-Unsecured
Tenure- Five Years

Justification for Related Party
Transactions

Loan is taken to cater to the Working Capital
requirements of the Company

Date of Approval by the Board
of Directors

30t May, 2024

Date of Approval by the Audit
Committee

13" May, 2024

Particulars

Remarks

Name of the Related Party

Mr. Swapnil jain

Name of the Director or KMP
who is related

Mr. Swapnil Jain, Mrs. Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya
Jain

Nature of Relationship

Mr. Swapnil Jain is the Managing Director of
PIL.

Nature, material terms,
monetary value and particulars
of the contract or arrangement
and maximum permissible
Limit per annum

Loan is taken by PIL from Mr. Swapnil Jain of
Rs.10 Crores

Interest rate-As charged in compliance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013
Nature-Unsecured

Tenure- Five Years

Justification for Related Party
Transactions

Loan is taken to cater to the Working Capital
requirements of the Company

Date of Approval by the Board
of Directors

30" May, 2024

Date of Approval by the Audit
Committee

13™ May, 2024

Particulars

Remarks

Name of the Related Party

Mrs. Priya Jain

Name of the Director or KMP
who is related

Mr. Swapnil Jain, Mrs. Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya
Jain

Nature of Relationship

Mr. Priya Jain is the Managing Director of PIL.

Nature, material terms,
monetary value and particulars
of the contract or arrangement
and maximum permissible
Limit per annum

Loan is taken by PIL from Mr. Priya Jain of
Rs.10 Crores

Interest rate-As charged in compliance with the
provisions of Companies Act, 2013
Nature-Unsecured

Tenure- Five Years

Justification for Related Party
Transactions

Loan is taken to cater to the Working Capital
requirements of the Company

Date of Approval by the Board
of Directors

30t May, 2024

Date of Approval by the Audit
Committee

13% May, 2024
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H). Particulars Remarks
L. Name of the Related Party Mrs. Asha Jain
D. Name of the Director or KMP | Mr. Swapnil Jain, Mrs. Asha Jain and Mrs. Priya
who is related Jain
B. Nature of Relationship Mr. Priya Jain is the Managing Director of PIL.
4. Nature, material terms, | 1.Loan is taken by PIL from Mr. Asha Jain of
monetary value and particulars | Rs.10 Crores
of the contract or arrangement | Interest rate-As charged in compliance with the
and maximum permissible | provisions of Companies Act, 2013
Limit per annum Nature-Unsecured
Tenure- Five Years
2. Building Rent-Rs.20 Lakhs per annum.
3.Trademark Royalty- Upto Rs.100 Lakhs per
annum
4.Lease Rent-Upto Rs.12 Lakhs per annum
5. Justification for Related Party | 1.Loan is taken to cater to the Working Capital
Transactions requirements of the Company
2.Building Rent is provided to Mrs. Asha Jain.
3.Amount of royalty is given to Mrs.Asha Jain
to use the Trademark registered in her name
which is the identity of the Company.
4. Lease Rent is provided to Mrs. Asha Jain
b. Date of Approval by the Board 30" May, 2024
of Directors
7. | Date of Approval by the Audit 13" May, 2024
Committee

The Board has recommended the resolution specified in Item 8 to be passed as Special
Resolution.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives except Mrs. Asha Jain,
Mr. Swapnil Jain and Mrs. Priya Jain are concerned or interested in the proposed resolution

as set out in Item No.11 of this Notice.

ITEMNO.12 & 13

As per the provisions of Section 180 (1) (c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of
Directors of the Company cannot, except with the permission of the Shareholders in
General Meeting by passing a Special Resolution, borrow monies in excess of the
aggregate of the paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium of the
Company. Earlier Shareholders in the Extra-Ordinary Meeting held on March 20, 2020
approved the limit under Section 180 (1) (a) & 180 (1) (¢) upto Rs.150 Crores.

Taking into consideration the growth in the business operations, foreseeable future plans
and the existing credit facilities availed by the Company, it would be in the interest of the
Company to enhance the borrowing limits for the Board and authorise the Board of
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Directors to borrow monies which may exceed at any time the aggregate of the paid-up
capital of the Company and its free reserves and securities premium but that shall not to
exceed Rs. 750,00,00,000 Crores (Rupees Seven Fifty Crores Only).

The borrowings of the Company are, in general, required to be secured by suitable
mortgage or charge on all or any of the movable and/ or immovable properties of the
Company in such form, manner and ranking as may be determined by the Board of
Directors of the Company, from time to time, in consultation with the lender(s).The
mortgage and/or charge by the Company of its movable and/or immovable properties
and/or the whole or any part of the undertaking(s) of the Company in favour of the
lenders/agent(s)/trustees. Further, the Company in certain events of default by the
Company, may be regarded as disposal of the Company’s undertaking(s) within the
meaning of Section 180 (1) (a) of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence it shall be necessary to
obtain approval for the same from the Shareholders.

The Board of Directors recommend for Shareholders approval through Special resolution.

None of the Directors of the Company is, in any way, concerned or interested in the said
resolution.

ITEM NO.14

As per Section 186 of the Act read with the Rules framed thereunder, the Company is
required to obtain the prior approval of the Members by way of a Special Resolution for
acquisition by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate exceeding sixty per cent of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities
premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium
account, whichever is higher. Earlier Shareholders in the Extra-Ordinary Meeting held on
March 20, 2020 approved the limit under Section 186 upto Rs.150 Crores.

It was thought expedient by the Board that as a measure of achieving greater financial
flexibility and to enable optimal financial structuring and to keep sufficient safeguard, the
Board of Directors increase the existing limit from Rs.150 Crores to Rs.750 Crores under
Section 186 and recommend the same to the shareholders.

The approval of the members is being sought by way of a Special Resolution pursuant to
Section 186 of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, to enable the Company to
acquire by way of subscription, purchase or otherwise, the securities of any other body
corporate, exceeding sixty percent of its paid-up capital, free reserves and securities
premium account or one hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium
account, whichever is higher.

It is proposed that the investment activities of the Company shall be carried on in
accordance with the Investment Policy of the Company.

The Board of Directors recommend for Shareholders approval through Special resolution.
None of the Directors of the Company is, in any way, concerned or interested in the said
resolution.
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ANNEXURE-I TO NOTICE
DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AT
THE TWENTY-NINTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
[PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS
AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015]

Functional Areas

President (Sales & Distribution)
and with Reliance
Communications as  Chief

Executive Officer.

He is currently working with
Idea Cellular Ltd as Chief
Operating Officer (UP West).

Name of Director | Mr. Naozer Firoze Aibara (DIN | Mr. Dhruv Jain
: 08759817) (DIN:09835701)

Age 68 Years 37 Years

Date of | 30-06-2020 14-02-2023

Appointment

Period of | 5 (Five) Years 5 (Five) Years

Appointment

Profile & | He has experience of more than | He is experienced Tax Advisor

Expertise in | 30 years. He was previously | and consultant with over 13 years

specific associated with Airtel as Vice | of expertise in the areas of Tax

Planning, Settlement
Negotiation, Government
relationship Management and
submission to Indian Tax
Authorities, Proficient in the

Computation of the Corporate,
Partnership Firms, and Individual
Taxes.

Qualifications

Bachelors of Arts, Master of
Business Administration and
Diploma in Sales & Marketing
from Delhi University

Bachelors of Commerce and a
Bachelor’s degree in Law

Other Positions | Nil Nil

Directorship  of | Nil Pavna Auto Engineering Private

other Companies Limited

Membership of | Nil Nil

Committees  in

other  Unlisted

Public

Companies

Inter Not Related Not Related

Relationship

Shares in the | Nil 5000

Company as at

31% march, 2024

Name of Director | Mrs.  Priyanka  Moondra | Mrs. Himani Bhootra (DIN:
Rathi (DIN: 09485101) 09811030)

Age 31 Years 32 Years
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Date of | 14-08-2023 17-04-2023
Appointment
Profile & | 5 (Five) Years She has expertise in the field of

Power Limited, Rathi Eduserve
&  Corporate  Consultancy
Services Private Limited, Sigma
Minerals Limited and currently
she is working with
Transmissions International
India Private Limited Rajasthan
as an Internal Controller &
Company Secretary, Finance
Department. She has an
experience of more than 4 years
including internship in the field
of Secretarial, Compliances and
Legal work.

Expertise in Secretarial, Compliances and
specific Legal Work.

Functional Areas

Qualifications She has worked with Advani | Associate member of ICSI,

Bachelors of  Commerce
(B.Com) and Masters of
Commerce (M.Com) and a
Bachelor’s degree in Law (LLB)

Other Positions

Associate member of ICSI,
Bachelors of Commerce and
Diploma in MBA in Finance
from International Business
Management Institute, Berlin,
Germany

Nil

other Companies

Directorship  of

1.Uma Polymers Limited

2.Rex Sealing and Packing
Industries Limited

3.CFF Fluid Control Limited

4.Capstor  Finance  Private
Limited
5.Arrowhead Separation

Engineering Limited
6.Shreeshay Engineers Limited

1. Shreeshay Engineers Limited
2. Sanghvi Housing And
Infrastructure Limited

3. CWD Limited

4. Shivam Chemicals Limited
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Membership  of | Nil Nil

Committees  in

other Unlisted

Public Companies

Inter Relationship | Not Related Not Related

Shares in  the | Nil Nil

Company as at

31% march, 2024

Name of Director | Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh | Mrs. Priya Jain (DIN:
(DIN: 09485101) 03355623)

Age 43 Years 35 Years

Date of | 14-08-2024 01-04-2020

Appointment

Profile & | 5 (Five) Years N.A

Expertise in

specific

Functional Areas

Qualifications Worked for 2 years with | She has a total experience of 10
Automation Control Systems | years in the automotive
from 2002 to 2004. industry. She is responsible for
Currently Working with | the day to day operations and

Bhavnagari Sweets as General
Manager, Purchase and Finance.
He is having experience of more
than 18 years in Food and
Hospitality Business.

Business Development of Our
Company.
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Other Positions He has completed B.E.| She has been awarded with a
Electronics. Degree  of  Bachelor of
Technology in  Computer
Science and Engineering from
Mangalayatan University,
Aligarh in the year 2012.
Directorship  of | Nil Nil
other Companies
Membership  of | 1.Uma Polymers Limited Nil
Committees  in | 2.Rex Sealing and Packing
other Unlisted | Industries Limited
Public Companies | 3.CFF Fluid Control Limited
4.Capstor  Finance  Private
Limited
5.Arrowhead Separation
Engineering Limited
6.Shreeshay Engineers Limited
Inter Relationship | Nil Wife of Mr. Swapnil Jain
(Managing Director)
Shares in the | Not Related 404000
Company as at
31% march, 2024

For & On Behalf of the Board of Directors of
Pavna Industries Limited

Sd/-

Swapnil Jain

Date: September 4, 2024 Managing Director
Place: Aligarh DIN:01542555

Registered office:

Vimlanchal hari nagar Aligarh, Uttar Pradesh-202001,India
Tel:+91-0571-2410010

Website: www.pavna.in, Email; cs@pavnagroup.com
CIN:L34109UP1994PLC016359
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ROUTE MAP OF PAVNA INTERNATIONAL SCHOOL
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

30™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON MONDAY, 30TH SEPTEMBER, 2024

Client ID

Name of Shareholder

Address

No. of Shares

I hereby record my presence at the 30" Annual General Meeting of the Company at Pavna
International School, Agra-Aligarh Highway near Mangalayatan Mandir, Aligarh-202001, Uttar
Pradesh on Monday, 30th September, 2024 at 11.00 A.M.

Shareholder / Proxy name in block letters

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy
Email Address:
Note:

A) Shareholders attending the Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the
attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

B) Shareholder/Proxy holder desiring to attend the meeting should bring his copy of the
Annual Report for reference at the meeting.
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FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
Management and Administration Rules, 2014]

PAVNA INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN: L34109UP1994PLC016359
VIMLANCHAL, HARI NAGAR
ALIGARH 202001 UP IN

Name of the Member(s)
Registered address
E-mail Id

DP. Id

Client Id

[/We being a member / members of ..........cccceeeeenennne. shares of the above named company,
hereby appoint:

1. Name: ......ccoveviiiiinnnn.
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:................ , or failing him

2. Name: ........coovviiiiinn
Address:
E-mail 1d:
Signature:................ , or failing him

3. Name: ..o
Address:
E-mail 1d:
Signature:................ , or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 30" Annual
general meeting of the company, to be held on the Monday of September 30, 2024 At 11:00 a.m.
at Pavna International School, Aligarh and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such
resolutions as are indicated below:
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Sr.No

Description.

No. of
shares held

For

Against

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements
of the Company for the financial year ended on
March 31, 2024 and the Profit and Loss Account
for the year ended on that date together with the
Schedules thereon, along with the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

To reappoint Mrs. Priya Jain (DIN: 03355623),
who retires by rotation at this Annual General
Meeting and being eligible, offers herself for re-
appointment

Increase Authorised Share Capital of the Company

Alteration of the Capital Clause of the
Memorandum of Association

Appointment of M/s. Arun Varshney & Associates,
Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No.
005560C) as Statutory Auditors of the Company
and to fix their remuneration

Appointment of Mr. Paras Shrikant Parekh
(DIN:10277614) as an Independent Director of the
Company

Re-confirm the Appointment of Mr. Naozer Firoze
Aibara (DIN: 08759817) as an Independent
Director of the Company

Re-confirm the Appointment of Mr. Dhruv Jain
(DIN: 09835701) as an Independent Director of the
Company

Re-confirm the appointment of Mrs. Priyanka
Moondra Rathi (DIN: 09485101) as an Independent
Director of the Company

10

Re-confirm the appointment of Mrs. Himani
Bhootra (DIN: 09811030) as an Independent
Director of the Company

11

Approve the Related Party Transactions

12

Approval for Increase in Overall Borrowing Limits
of the Company as Per Section 180 (1) (c) of The
Companies Act, 2013

13

Approval To Sell, Lease Or Otherwise Dispose
Undertaking Of Company Pursuant To Section
180(1)(a):
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Approval to make loan(s) and give guarantee(s),

14 provide security(ies) or make investments in excess
of the prescribed limit as mentioned under section
186 of Companies Act, 2013

Signed this ...... dayof.............ooeeet. 2024

Signature of shareholder

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Notes: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at
the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of
the Meeting.
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